I3 R L

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

2024

FERS
ANNUAL REPORT




EE

CONTENTS

3 HHEE
PREAMBLE

6 EZERR
IMPORTANT NOTICE

6 EKBER

12

12

14

15

15

16

17

20

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EFE SREEEMEMRTHER
DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND STAFF

TE BRERERRER

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

55 BAERELRER

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREENHR

CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FEHMIE
ANNUAL REMUNERATION

RIIER

STAFF

AEEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
NEREBLRIR

OVERVIEW

BEARIEMR

SHAREHOLDERS

EE S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SREEE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

20

21

22

22

23

23

24

25

26

26

28

30

30

31

CONTENTS

AR

INTERNAL CONTROL

EREE T

INTERNAL AUDIT

KBRS

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

EREME
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

S5 E
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FEMZHIE
KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

55 W2
INCOME AND EXPENSES

55K
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

ERBEE R
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

XEFMRAR LR IREER R
MODERN INFRASTRUCTURE SYSTEM

ir e/ " ARANE"

TECHNOLOGY FINANCE, GREEN FINANCE,
INCLUSIVE FINANCE, ELDERLY CARE FINANCE,
AND DIGITAL FINANCE

IR 55 & R RAE 7

NEW QUALITY PRODUCTIVE FORCES
XF=ZRIREER

SUBSIDIZED HOUSING, RENOVATION OF URBAN

VILLAGES, AND DUAL-USE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE
THAT CAN ACCOMMODATE EMERGENCY NEEDS

XHHAR —FH B SRELR
HIGH QUALITY BELT AND ROAD COOPERATION



2

ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

32

32

32

33

33

34

34

34

35

35

35

36

38

38

38

39

REER

OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

ME SR
PLANNING AND RESEARCH
|

TREASURY

RAEHE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
RiEEE

CREDIT MANAGEMENT
SENIEE
INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
FHE5EELS
SETTLEMENT AND OPERATION
BEIA=x(z

COOPERATION WITH OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ANTRSARN
HUMAN RESOURCES AND
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

RIEZ
STAFF TRAINING

SRR EE
IT MANAGEMENT

FREEE
SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT

R EE
RISK MANAGEMENT

SENKEE

COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT

ERXEEE
CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

ez isa=$:d
MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

40

40

40

41

41

4

42

42

42

43

44

47

120

124

125

128

MNP E IR
LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

BRIEX L B
OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

MM EIE
COMPLIANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

MENGEE
MONEY LAUNDERING RISK MANAGEMENT

EENKEE
REPUTATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

E 5 XU
COUNTRY RISK MANAGEMENT

il B XU B B 3
STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT

ERMENEEE

IT RISK MANAGEMENT
HeREEE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
RESRM
HONORS AND AWARDS

HIHRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

4 55 2=
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARARMBENIREAIMIEZ R
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY
OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

B 3%

APPENDICES

HIHRE (RREREITEN)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ISAs

W 54k (1R IREFRM 55 1R & 4R ) )
IFRS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



PREAMBLE

SHIA

PREAMBLE

2024 F I +MA" MY ERESHXE—F, ERERFLRIT (LATER
FRBITFIART) ML =1TAF. —FXk, FERRTEUIEFREAZOH T
RREFAST, 2EARMEITHN_F+AMNZ+EZHR. =ZFE<HEH, RA
SIRMARZFIESIN. PREBTHESINEE, NEENELRHR. F
ZRRARMBE, RABTEMIENBUANE. ARM, LEIREEMN, BEER
Tl 2HZFEAME. EQEAESKY, ENEFERHTHESEN
o, FERNKESH, SMTIENESHERMMAK. BE2024FK, FRBRIT
EARFL2EM18.62012T, TMERFEFIEBE89.612T, UERELRRS TN
BEUFELR.

The year 2024 is crucial for completing the goals and missions of the 14th Five-Year Plan, and it also
marks the 30th anniversary of China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank).
Over the year, under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping at its
core, CDB fully implemented the guiding principles laid down at the 20th CPC National Congress as well
as the Second and Third Plenary Sessions of the 20th CPC Central Committee. It thoroughly studied and
implemented the guiding principles set out at the Central Economic Work Conference and the Central
Financial Work Conference, and faithfully implemented the decisions and instructions made by the CPC
Central Committee and the State Council. The Bank committed itself to making its financial services
more politically-oriented and people-centered. In line with its mandate, CDB went all out to support major
national strategies, key industries and underdeveloped sectors, prevented and mitigated financial risks in
an efficient, orderly and effective manner, and continued to deepen reform and innovation, making new
progress in all respects. At the end of 2024, the CDB group’s total assets stood at RMB18.62 trillion. With
a group-wide net profit of RMB88.96 billion, it realized sustainable development with high quality financial
services.
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MRIREEEN, RN EFEARBDF AN ELEZNEERER, BEXEMEFEBRM— M FIEEK
R, ESNEN, MRERRMAE, FBARDEAR7,000127T, LERBRBIRAIERAE. A
RETH IR RME R/ GUE, AR S 2B AR S SLR R B o REFRAMA , E5) @ LARELFILER,
NEFFERFEFRRITZIRITHE.

REEFSFEV, ENREARSEREREY. 2 NRSWALEMIZEAREIR, LREMIZHEER
BE1.55 12T, BMRERBERMALEH - TR . FRREEUMEFER " IRAXE", ZHiz
R & R R EHAEMAREMI RS S~ M, RESAMIELRRIRES D, ERESHK
BSONAREXAPNEELRE, EXERDZRIRREIER. RS = ATRE"ZEIR, MTFHTNXK
& REEEFERAN FRRA" AHEMZREZREMRS . RERISLEIE, IF—H{HELE
RIBERIERR. PAER S HEEIRX, RRFEERE R EMIZEMERS E S
BRESREBHZE —H—K", HEEX300{CTARTRAT LRSS IR, HERFFHE" —
™ EIMARIER.

SBILRERG R, HEEDB~RERPEHA . E22EXNREEERR, ARNKEERTETR, TR
TR EEKF, MEIGKKE " RiR5. EME. FRE. FLE" . MU RERNZEENG, REMK
EZEMEEMISERLR. cEXNLENEFEEENG, BIA D IANE XS ITIERK RIRNL
RERIUAXCRRER, ILLMIF L RIRIR, ZIEF 2RI /A KK F.

R ECIH, REiE A SREMISEE. T2 FNAHEMIREARRBZIROBERIE, S5
BRI ARSI RICASTEEEFF CIH, I"/A LS REZERIRZMN . T IR
BRI UEEENL, BINTERERY. EXFEXBANEERE X, #2729 EEEHIN
#, MEFATEENUIERR FXSRMBEMATRBER, RUEITRRIEBMENL, ZFAH
IR BRI,

2025F R +HA" MUK EZF. FRARITHERFLUINEFHNRTEFEHLETEXBENES,
BERPRATELSER, B EREARTHARES, MAXFERABE S SUEAESHTH N
E, BERUKELT, EFAFLRNRZE, BNEFEYNCUBRERIUR SN, L LEDNS
RELZR, BHhERERMA" +HA"AXEBREIZSMITE" +RR" REFFBEM, MUAFERXRAN
temERRERIR. RIEEXFBUELTFLRITHAIERTTER!

Supporting economic recovery in keeping with the Bank’s mandate. CDB earnestly implemented
macroeconomic policies and put into effect existing policies and a raft of incremental policies, taking
proactive measures to increase loan issuance. It saw an increase of RMB700 billion in RMB loans, enabling
effective investment of financial resources in key sectors as the government requires, the people expect,
and its mandate dictates, and financing the real economy with higher efficiency. In line with the principle
of preserving asset value and seeking modest returns, CDB reduced funding costs for the real economy,
contributing to the continuous recovery of the economy.
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Supporting national strategies with higher efficiency as required by the Bank’s mandate. CDB
spared no effort in supporting the building of a modern infrastructure system. It issued loans of more than
RMB1.5 trillion to the infrastructure sector, the outstanding balance of which takes a bigger share in its
total exposure. In line with its mandate, the Bank made great achievements in technology finance, green
finance, inclusive finance, elderly care finance and digital finance. Leveraging a variety of products such as
R&D loans and special loans to sci-tech innovation and basic research, CDB helped to foster new quality
productive forces based on local conditions, supported green development through ecology-oriented
development (EOD), and implemented the policies of higher credit lines with lower rates for student loans.
It provided financial services to support subsidized housing projects, renovation of urban villages, and dual-
use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs. CDB also supported the implementation
of regional strategies by financing a number of cross-provincial and cross-basin key projects. It contributed
to rural revitalization by supporting such key fields as high-standard farmland and weak sectors and
underdeveloped areas in agricultural infrastructure. Besides, CDB supported high quality Belt and Road
cooperation, achieved tangible results in implementing the RMB350 billion financing window, and continued
to bring into play the role of the Belt and Road Special Lending Scheme.

Enhancing risk management and steadily improving asset quality. CDB improved its comprehensive
risk management system, upgraded the methods and tools of risk management to improve its performance
in risk management, and enabled early identification, early warning, early exposure and early resolution of
risks. CDB refined its whole-process internal control management mechanism to ensure legal and compliant
operations and sound business development. It improved vertical risk compliance management mechanism
to improve risk compliance performance across its branches. It made proactive efforts to mitigate potential
risks in key sectors, adopted concrete measures to relieve risk and recover losses, and improved loan
recovery after write-offs with multiple measures.

Deepening reform and innovation to improve governance capability and business management. CDB
refined the policy mechanism supporting modern infrastructure development and innovated service models
for infrastructure investment and financing. It intensified innovation in corporate governance system and
mechanism to make corporate governance and operation better-informed and more standardized. It ensured
the full implementation of the scheme to improve its credit system and mechanism to enable a better
performance in credit review. It implemented the requirements of penetrative, refined subsidiary management
and improved the management system and mechanism for subsidiaries by building a system to optimize
the management of subsidiaries. Besides, CDB implemented the requirements of financial regulation and
corporate governance and stepped up efforts to rectify problems discovered in audits and apply the auditing
results, thus increasing the independence and effectiveness of audits.

The year 2025 marks the conclusion of the 14th Five-Year Plan. CDB will continue to follow the guidance of
Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, keep to the general principle
of pursuing progress while ensuring stability, fully and faithfully apply the new development philosophy
on all fronts and intensify efforts to support China’s key industries and underdeveloped sectors. CDB will
continue to deepen reform and innovation to better balance development and security and guarantee
high quality development, and prevent and mitigate financial risks in key areas in an efficient, orderly and
effective manner, so as to help achieve the goals and missions of the 14th Five-Year Plan with high quality
and lay a sound foundation for the start of the 15th Five-Year Plan. By doing so, CDB aims to make greater
contribution to building China into a stronger country and advancing the rejuvenation of the Chinese nation
on all fronts through a Chinese path to modernization.



6 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

FERT

IMPORTANT NOTICE

RITEER2025FF RSN TF2025F4F290HHINBI RFERE
AiTEPELUSITTENMERMSREEN RS H2024FEV FIRECERRERSITIINESAT (FHAEES
K) DA REPEMEREITENS T, FHERELREELOEITRS

The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at the third meeting in the 2025 financial year (the calendar year as adopted
by the Bank) on 29 April 2025.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2024 are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants has audited these financial
statements in accordance with Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and International Standards on Auditing,
and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.

EAS

ORPORATE INFORMATION

EERXER: ERALRT (B FRIIRIT)
EERNEIR: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (485 : CDB)
EEREFA B

EMFE A ARM4,212.48125¢

SEAR B AE - EERTABKEXTTNAE18S

BB B 4R AD - 100031

BiE: 86-10-6830 6688

ZE: 86-10-6830 6699

[zl www.cdb.com.cn

Registered Name in Chinese: ERFF % R1T (shortened to FF&RIT)

Registered Name in English: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbreviated as CDB)
Legal Representative: Zhao Huan

Registered Capital: RMB421,248 million

Registered Address: 18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
Post Code: 100031

Telephone: 86-10-6830 6688

Facsimile: 86-10-6830 6699

Website: www.cdb.com.cn
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RITIER } DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

N3

CES A% T3 HEEFHR {EERAY /&)

Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
X BERK NTES -3 1963128 2018118
Zhao Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963  November 2018
E 0 BIESEK. ATES. 7K ES 1966506 H 2023%058
Tan Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M June 1966 May 2023

EE e MiTES % 1969%F11H

He Xinhong* Executive Director M November 1969

] HEES 5 1968402H 2023%07H

Li Chunlin Government Agency Director M February 1968 July 2023

B O MEEE 2] 19684128 20244038
Liao Min Government Agency Director M December 1968  March 2024
ey HEEE s 1971407 H 20234048
Guo Tingting Government Agency Director F July 1971 April 2023
[ HEES “ 19711148 20259038
Tao Ling Government Agency Director F November 1971  March 2025
KAES BANES ) 1966403 H 20174108
Zhang Shenghui  Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
E & BINES 5 1966401H 2022%028
Tan Long Equity Director M January 1966 February 2022
SKEE BANE S oy 19705104 20234058
Zhang Lusong Equity Director F October 1970 May 2023
FLRZE BiNES 5 196608 H 20234078
Fan Kejun Equity Director M August 1966 July 2023

E 48 RiNES “ 19774054 20244078
Yan Lijuan Equity Director F May 1977 July 2024
FER BT 3 1968403 A 20224108
Wang Weidong Executive Vice President M March 1968 October 2022
e BT 5 1972407 A 2023%F 128
Xie Taifeng Executive Vice President M July 1972 December 2023
EK BT 5 19684128 2024704 A
Wang Kebing Executive Vice President M December 1968  April 2024

PR R BT 5 19724088 20245068
Chen Mengmeng  Executive Vice President M August 1972 June 2024
B BliTic 5 19755018 20255048
Wang Peng Executive Vice President M January 1975 April 2025
FHE EESUWD =3 19654 12H 20224108

Li Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors M December 1965  October 2022
MEE HE®EITE z 19658 11H 20205098
Yang Baohua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965  September 2020
£ BENKEE -3 1966408 H 20224108
Wang Zhong Chief Risk Officer M August 1966 October 2022

EIRFE B FERER B ENEZE.

*Pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities.
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e A% 51 HAEFR {EERAY 8]

Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office

BIIESR. SLBEEEMRR

Directors and Senior Management Members Leaving Office

EINEE HEEE oy 1958405 H 20174108 - 20254034
Zhang Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017 — March 2025
BER BANES oy 19684F01H 20237058 - 20255044

Ge Rongrong Equity Director F January 1968 May 2023 — April 2025

X BT B 1976048 2021%F098 - 20242014

Liu Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976 September 2021 — January 2024
KOE BT s 1972404 20214028 - 2024118
Zhang Hui Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021 — November 2024
XI5 B HELVEE 5 1964408H 20214F04 8 - 20244088

Liu Peiyong Chief Business Officer M August 1964 April 2021 — August 2024

EF.SREEERREH
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BB EEK NTES. SETERERAADUEBAREE, BIFAGETK, ATUESHRREE, HEH
BEFK, PERIGRAEFK, FEXA (£F) AAT. FEXAEARG AT EESEXARGTRITES.
i, RERIRFETEEK. 7K.

Zhao Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Previously, he held various positions successively in China Construction Bank,
including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General Manager
of Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as Executive
Director of China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd. and concurrently Executive Director and President of
China Everbright Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China.

B BEZEK ATESR K. BETERTABBABXMTIAGTK (EHIHE) TK, s@ELTITK, R
ETEEARRIEEK, PERGT RETTK, PEIFRITITESR . BITK, SMNEARBGREIEK, &
BRARAERR, RNEEFR RREIMK, BN LARBIC (37).

Tan Jiong is Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy General Manager (acting general
manager) and General Manager of Bank of China (BOC) Xizang Branch, General Manager of BOC Yunnan Branch, Chairman of Bank of
China Investment Management Co., Ltd., General Manager of BOC Guangdong Branch, Executive Director and Executive Vice President
of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), Vice Governor of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the
Party Leadership Group of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the Standing Committee of CPC Guizhou Provincial
Committee, Head of the United Front Work Department of CPC Guizhou Provincial Committee, and concurrently Deputy Secretary of the
Party Leadership Group of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Guizhou Committee.
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LRk EAN Tﬂ’_*i (ERABEHFEREHBEVALE) . BERRARBLARXTEIKAR, TH—B(LAFRE
BAAE)BKAR . BIBK (BIEE), THR—REIBEK, BREAESHAZIIK. ERIXREEZESEIBIC,
/jJ\/A\EIEO

He Xinhong is Executive Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities). Previously, he held
various positions successively in the Organization Department of the CPC Central Committee, including Deputy Inspector of General
Office, Deputy Inspector and Deputy Director-General of Cadre Bureau | (Civil Servants Management Office), and Deputy Director-General
of Cadre Bureau |. He also served as Director-General of Personnel Department and Executive Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee
of Organs of the Ministry of Veterans Affairs, and Director-General of the General Office.

FEIf NEERARMIXEZZREENE REXTHREZES. SERARLRRNNEZRZETE, MMHZE
FE.EITK, TEEBIL.TK, TEBIC, FAEZEZ. BBK.

Li Chunlin is Vice Minister of China’s National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), and concurrently Government Agency
Director of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of Shaanxi Provincial Development and Reform Commission; member
of the Standing Committee of CPC Municipal Committee, Vice Mayor, Deputy Party Secretary, Mayor and Party Secretary of Yulin; and
member of the Standing Committee and Secretary-General of CPC Shaanxi Provincial Committee.

BiE MEVRHESBK, REATHEES. BEFERERNATE
SNANAEMBRK, PRUEERSNAZEER,

Liao Min is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, he served
as Deputy Director-General and Director-General of the General Office of China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC), Director-
General of CBRC Shanghai Office, Director-General of Bureau IV of the Office of the Central Leading Group for Financial and Economic
Affairs, and Deputy Director-General of the Office of the Central Commission for Financial and Economic Affairs.

IEE. EE, LBREBF/K, FRUEZM

HEE DNEVEIEBK, REXTHEESZ. BEEFSHVSZIRI K. IK, FEITFK, BB ECEKENIE.
BIER K.
Guo Tingting is Vice Minister of MOF and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, she held various positions

successively in the Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM), including Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Department of
Finance, Director-General of Comprehensive Department, and Assistant Minister and Vice Minister of MOFCOM.

ME IEFPEARRITEIOCK, REXATHEES. GEFEARRTESREBEREBEK, BEESREMENANE
WP/ BK.
Tao Ling is Deputy Governor of the People’s Bank of China (PBC) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, she

served as Deputy Director-General of Financial Stability Bureau of PBC and Director-General of the Secretariat of General Office of the
Financial Stability and Development Committee under the State Council.

kEe BNNES. ZEEZINLCEERSERKXIEIK, EELEFTEIK. IK, FEARRITEEMLR
Lér‘_'fk% .%QI\ I:'A:EE)E.‘]/L»E]«-I—JFHO
Zhang Shenghui is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he was Deputy Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of the State

Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection Department
of SAFE, PBC Chief Representative for the Americas, and Chief Accountant of SAFE.
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Bl KBNEZR. BEVMEREEMNROSSD (BIEKR), WEEREES A ORI EE, MEERES & S
K — R R
Tan Long is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Chief Accountant (Deputy-Director-General-

Level), Deputy Director-General of the Treasury Payment Center, and Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of Tax Policy
Department.

KEH BNER. BEETPERZBERFEILIEZRSABAFADIZEREMNALAK . SREE . EFL48HE,

Zhang Lusong is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, she held various positions at China Investment Corporation, including Team Leader
and Senior Manager of Legal & Compliance Department and then Senior Advisor.

AME BNES. BEFRARBUTIERI TGN ITEXEKE DA ZTEVSEEI 0, M EELR W S &K R,
BARBNAESHIEIRIFK. —RKIM A

Fan Kejun is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of the Department of Administration and Finance
of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Macao SAR, and worked in the MOF successively as Deputy Inspector

of the Department of Agriculture, Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of the Department of Natural Resources and Ecological
Environment.

EE BRNER=. EETPEARRTALTEIEE. ZHKIAR.

Yan Lijuan is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, she served as Deputy Director-General of the General Office and Level Il Inspector of
PBC.

IEER BiTK. SAERFLARTERERBRIBK, BERGELESBRIBK, RIITHTTK, BlreiElL
FLEEEIE, ERTHITITR IIAEDITITR.

Wang Weidong is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of
International Finance Department, Deputy Director-General of International Cooperation Department, General Manager of Shenzhen

Branch, Director-General of Administration Office of International Finance Department, General Manager of Chongging Branch, and
General Manager of Jiangsu Branch.

HRE BTK. SEFEIRRITALEINTERAESRSEENELDZE. QAR A N TITKEIE.
BT, ARETE IFEHITITK, 8Rh LS E.

Xie Taifeng is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked at ICBC serving as Deputy Director-General of the General Office
and concurrently Deputy General Manager and then General Manager of the Brand and Service Management Department, Assistant

General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Hebei Branch, Director-General of the General Office, and General Manager of Jiangsu
Branch, and Chief Business Officer successively.
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EFRK BEITK. BEXEHVEE (THAKRSE) BIBK, WEHFZEZIIK, MEFEFK. K MR —R
KR, REITRBZREIRK (3F), BAGRSHRMIFER ORI EE (5, THFITE) . EE(F), 2RI T Ko

Wang Kebing is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of Tianjin Municipal Finance Bureau
(Tianjin Local Taxation Bureau). Then, he held positions in MOF successively as Deputy Director-General of the Department of Treaty and
Law, Deputy Director-General, Inspector and Level | Inspector of the Budget Department, concurrently Vice President of China Remote
Learning College for Accounting, Deputy Director-General (acting Director-General) and then Director-General of the Government Debt
Research and Assessment Center, and Director-General of the Department of Finance of MOF.

BER BiTK. BEFERIVEARBRITIFABATRITK, T BERERRSTIK, WREA1TITK.
Chen Mengmeng is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at Agricultural Development Bank of China as

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Branch, General Manager of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region Branch, and General Manager of
Shandong Branch.

W BOK. BEFEHEORTRESECMELZIE. SEEBEHFeMmZPOEE, RIINTITK.

Wang Peng is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at the Export-Import Bank of China as Deputy
General Manager and General Manager (concurrently Director of the Financial Markets Center) of the Capital Operations Department, and
General Manager of Shenzhen Branch.

FUHE EFSUP. BEERALBRTIFE=Z[BEIBK, HPoATRIERE, ZEEEZFREIBK. BK, TmE 1717
K, EREEBBK, BEASHRERRILIEZSZK. BH, BRALRITAZTEBK, ANTRBREE,

Li Huachang is Secretary of the Board of Directors of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of
Project Appraisal Department lll, Deputy Director-General of Executive Office, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Legal
Department, General Manager of Henan Branch, Director-General of Loan Management Department, Chairman and President of CDB

Capital Co., Ltd., and Director-General of Human Resources Department and General Manager of Human Resources Department of
CDB.

BEE FFEETE SITHLELE. SAERARRITVSBRIBK, EEZEERREK MSBBEK, RIELXEE
EERRIESK, BERARKRITHEITERK.
Yang Baohua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Deputy

Director-General of Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of Operations Department, Director-General of Finance and
Accounting Department, Chairperson of China-Africa Development Fund, and Director-General of Audit Department.

Fhh HEAKRE.XNKEEFSZLE. EEERARRTAZHREIBK. EZIFNEHELTIRE
SEREKBRK, mIEATiITK, BERBK, HEMWLEIE,

Wang Zhong is Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively
at CDB as Deputy Director-General of Human Resources Department, Full-time Deputy Chief of Assessment and Evaluation Team,

Director-General of Operations Center, Director-General of Information Technology Department, General Manager of Sichuan Branch, and
Director-General and General Manager of Treasury & Financial Market Department.

1B, EEHOESE,
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(R IE
N S B
CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BRTEFR2025FFRSWHIWEE , IHABERTHITES, HERARESGTERERBENEZE. £
FITEFR2025FF RS WHBELY, REFTRITHREES RATEFR2024F % XS WE BT 3%
EReREENNZE, BWBEERITRNES.
BRTEFR2024FE—RSWHENETHREXERBEENAZOE, TRIKBERTEIITK. EXTESES
2024FF =R WHNBIFRERESH B ENNMRE, BRERBERTEITRK. RRTEER2025FF RS
WEIBEHIRE RS R R EVAZE, TMEELRITEITK.

KREABEEIRTHREZES. EREABEERITRINES. K WERBEBERITEITK. MIFERBEE
FITERLEE

As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2025, He Xinhong was appointed as Executive Director of CDB, pending
confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2025, Tao
Ling was appointed as Government Agency Director of CDB. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024 and
approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, Yan Lijuan was appointed as Equity Director.

As reviewed at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, Wang
Kebing was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024 and approved by
the national financial regulatory authorities, Chen Mengmeng was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed at the first meeting
of the Board of Directors in 2025 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, Wang Peng was appointed as Executive
Vice President.

Zhang Xiaohui no longer served as Government Agency Director. Ge Rongrong no longer served as Equity Director. Zhang Hui and Liu Jin
no longer served as Executive Vice President. Liu Peiyong no longer served as Chief Business Officer.

FIEFrEN 15

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

FTESEKTRMBETRFM R IZRPREBEV ATAFHEEZEXRDENT, FHERELEH . GUE
HAETEHBAN, ARBERBIMAEZZHRE. t UV EFS I REFTRERIELARES 2EF, H#5
REAREZZHY, RXEFCAEFTEFNERCRE, SEEHER, REEREERNNETEREFFELRT
B ML ERE.2024%F, RITFEHERERBAEFRESK TRMBITRELRFHFNEIFFHFORBIIE K1TH
tSRERBARFIHHEREHFNRBEFEM, BN GUEHFLTLEMN, HRBEREANEZZHSR
0 eI FE MREETRELEBARES.

The remuneration policy for the Chairman, President and Executive Vice Presidents of the Bank is kept in compliance with the relevant
standards for the remuneration of executives of financial institutions overseen by central authorities. In addition to an annual base salary,
an annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries also comprise social insurance, annuities, additional medical
insurances, and housing provident fund. In line with the relevant procedures, the remuneration plan shall be deliberated on by the CPC
CDB Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review. It
is filed with the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approval by the Board of Directors.
In 2024, their annual base salaries and annual performance-based salaries were paid in strict compliance with relevant standards and
regulations. The remuneration of other Senior Management Members comprises base salaries and annual performance-based salaries,
among others, with part of the annual performance-based salaries subject to deferred payment, in addition to social insurance, annuities,
additional medical insurances, and housing provident fund set out the government regulations.
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EEKTEE

(ARMmFEIT 10 Thousand RMB)

Zhao Huan Chairman, Executive Director 65.63 19.62
E BIEEK NTER TK . 65.63 19.62
Tan Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President

VEVaEn;;sF Weidong Eigftive Vice President 59.07 19.30
i?i\jj%'l'mifeng Eigﬁive Vice President 59.07 19.30
VEVaﬁnZJ(Kebing @(ﬁiﬁive Vice President 49.22 16.22
é%h%r? Mengmeng Eggtftive Vice President 44.30 14.68
fﬁiohang iﬁiﬁ;fif the Board of Directors 17.11 22.15
@?gi'%aohua ghriﬁziﬁd%t Officer 7.1 23.03
VIVangJZhong Ehjiﬁgifomcer 117.11 22.10

E1 RITAEEEMRNEE A ER TR

F2: RIEERBEINE, LRAR024FKEHIMERZLTIA, FHFMOTERWER, FITRAITHRE.

Note 1: Government Agency Directors and Equity Directors are not remunerated by the Bank.

Note 2: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration of the above officers in 2024 is still subject to final confirmation.
Additional details will be disclosed when the remuneration plans have been determined.
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RATHFMEATATRINEMEANRMEEXSZE, 8RATIHE KRE. 20 L2RkR. 2V FE HREEST
FREREBE A REE. 2024F , KITREZTURME . RIARONFMEE, FMRRERAEE—LRAL. X
BRAUMMT RIS R TR, BRAEFM R RO AORER. EHMEET @, LACEH M2 ECAHLE, 052 3 B
RERESEREREDNE RBEENTE, PREXSUFMER A RERNEEREE K RTSME LM
HEBIDR—ARXEOHERE, ROREZIING, BEELAFEZRE. EXETRE . RWRE . THRKH
AERKES, RYMANENHEZLALA, A ARTHRRKERTER. R TRAKG, B FRETKER ERK
RIZNEERZE REAXAFZRERIN, KRERTEMRIIAE, ATN2012FEENA TR BNV FE, F12E
ITRLSHH—ELATREVFSIE, £ R TRKGRITREITR. 20245F , RTHEMBEEEZEEE, R
EHOEBZURIVAERRARE, 2 HREFSZERERETHE.

Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures made by CDB to the staff; these include salaries, bonuses, allowances
and benefits, social insurance, annuities, additional medical insurances, and housing provident fund. In 2024, the Bank continued
adopting a position- and performance-based salary policy and gave priority to staff working in the front line, holding key positions
and having excellent performance, in resources allocation, aiming to provide more effective incentives and restraints. With regard to
remuneration, the Bank improved the remuneration policy to ensure that the remuneration resources allocation is commensurate with
the performance evaluation results. It ensured the implementation of administrative measures on the deferred payment of performance-
based salary and the recovery and deduction of performance-based salaries in line with the regulatory provisions. The Bank joins local
government’s social insurance schemes to fully protect the rights of the staff and provide coverage in basic endowment insurance,
healthcare, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium in accordance with the threshold and
percentage mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to make elderly care payments to the
Bank’s staff members after their retirement. In addition to the basic elderly care, CDB, approved by competent state authorities, set up
annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and will be
paid as planned during retirement. In 2024, the Bank kept reinforcing the operation and management of annuities and actively adjusted
investment strategies according to the market changes, making every effort to ensure stable and sustainable operating income of
annuities.

RITIER
STAFF

HE2024F K, AEFAFLBERT12,580 AN HAOQO%HN R THBEAR LU EZH, 79%MRATIBERRERL L
FHoe

At the end of 2024, the CDB group had a staff of 12,580, of whom 99% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 79% a master’s degree
or higher.
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AERE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

NERIESRR
OVERVIEW

FTRFEROASHARTREZSA T LR, FERENTEE . NFTER . MAEE. BRHEHHASAE
MUH, REEORKRORFAM BB NTHSINNE, BUBENRAEN, ENRAARESMEBR M. FEEE
FFERZRBAREN . MEERMCERTLRITER), WEER, HBRF TRELEASIER, EAE. EX
B REL.EFTETEERRERRET, ERAE. XKL ARR. SAEEERBITRZMENEETIRE,
REE . BEE JUEX R BRI ARKSHEERRMNI/ENG, RERIARKEREFS S5 AT EE, RETIRTT
BEMENSRERRE.

REFMMBRERANS BERPRUSRITENEPZE NS, BUZOLIFTELRR, BRETHBASHEFHRNR
PEFEHSEXBREOER, BETEZIRELIEF2BILEEE R R TENS, RANFESE R
AFIERRMEN_TRE=FPE2HEE, TAGERDELER. BEFERSITELFTEARETRE, RLIAR
TRIMENBEE.ARY REABETERECERMARZE, RRZFFAZTERESRXH. ARTFREL
FIHE, RHRTLFIZERSUREN, MRRENERBGZRM R BRI, EENEIENBUEES.

REAQTREEHNG. RUSBEBETHABRR, EFDRARARRTEARGEEEEY, BENMFALRITR
ZEN. cEREFSRENG, EFTHARNGRNTER, UREEVSEE  RIEXNG . FEXK . Ritk.
FRAIEE ARBAFMEBHFILTHEBERSFZXPEREN, AEFZIW LTS REERERIRLETER
RS ESEEZMANT RABEETMEITEERLRI2T WeARES. sREEARBRIFENMATAZ
Bl GEZ, T ENTERR MRS

RALSGEEERY NEBEFSWURERE. £ANEE, FUHNEESSWT, BRFJRNEHR, BBINE
BoBR. BN RHET M, RA R TREBBUICUKE AEMFEEDRANREETENEE, MEEIIER
LR BED BRI

REBA, RITRAFEELFBEREREMILZMOERLATENAECUEXHAFEERER.

The Bank insists on integrating the Party’s leadership into all aspects and processes of its corporate governance, and continues to
improve its legally defined corporate governance mechanism with transparent powers and responsibilities, effective coordination, and
balance between different functions, to make sure that major decisions are well-informed, the effectiveness of execution is improved,
and the systematic supervision is enhanced. It improves the compliance and effectiveness of its corporate governance. Strictly
abiding by laws and regulations, regulatory requirements, and the CDB Articles of Association, all functions perform their duties in a
diligent and standardized manner. The CPC CDB Committee plays a leading role in setting the direction, managing from a big-picture
perspective, and ensuring implementation. The Board of Directors performs its responsibilities as the main body that makes business
decisions by developing strategies, preventing risks and making decisions. The senior management follows the instructions of the CPC
CDB Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors in making operational plans, enhancing management and strengthening
implementation. The Bank establishes and improves the system and working mechanism of the employees’ congress to guarantee
that staff representatives participate in corporate governance in an orderly and law-based manner, and keeps improving its governance
effectiveness and high quality development capabilities.
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Upholding and strengthening the CPC leadership. CDB upholds the centralized leadership of the CPC Central Committee over finance
and consolidates the studies of the Party’s innovative theories. It enhances cohesion and forges the Party’s soul with the Xi Jinping
Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. It establishes and upgrades the working mechanism for implementing
the important instructions and comments of General Secretary Xi Jinping, and takes thorough measures to ensure implementation.
It thoroughly studies and implements the guiding principles of the Third Plenary Session of the 20th CPC Central Committee, and
researches and formulates relevant implementation measures. CDB adheres to the fundamental principle of supporting real economy
and develops a deeper understanding of making financial services more politically-oriented and people-centered. It firmly stays on the
path of financial advancement with Chinese characteristics, and proactively fosters and promotes the financial culture with Chinese
characteristics. It organizes and carries out the Party discipline education, exerting consistent and sustained efforts to make it a regular
and lasting activity. It also intensifies efforts to counter corruption and enhance integrity to build a clean political environment.

Enhancing corporate governance mechanism. CDB deepens communication and exchange among all functions of governance.
Before making decisions on major business management matters of the Bank, the Board of Directors seeks opinions from the CPC
CDB Committee in advance. It refines the mechanism for reporting to the Board of Directors, which read through 50 written reports on
the implementation of authorization schemes, annual financial supervision, operational risk, reputational risk, anti-money laundering,
subsidiary management, and NPL transfer, etc. in 2024. In addition, at its meetings, the Board of Directors heard 12 special reports
made by the senior management on data governance, analysis of business continuity impact, and special audit on capital management,
etc. across the year. It organizes duty performance evaluation on directors and senior management and operation performance evaluation
on executives in a standardized manner, keeping refining the internal evaluation and incentive and restraint mechanisms.

Improving corporate governance and operation performance. CDB strengthens the whole-process, closed-loop management of
proposals of the Board of Directors and updates the meeting arrangements made at the beginning of the year on a quarterly basis so as
to deliberate on proposals and arrange meetings as per plans, and make corporate governance more refined and standardized. It also
faithfully implements the resolutions made by the Board of Directors as well as the opinions of directors, ensuring that there are relevant
records, supervision and feedback.

In the reporting period, there was no significant difference between the actual corporate governance of the Bank and the normative
documents issued by regulators on corporate governance.

RIS
SHAREHOLDERS
REBR, RITRRBEDEB LN BE2024F R, RITRARFERNSLLER N TR:

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB’s shareholders and their shareholdings by the
end of 2024 are as follows:

BRZR BFERN S
Shareholder % of Total
T BUER 36.54%

Ministry of Finance

hRICERAFFRRIAT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 34.68%
BN AFAEREEAT 7 19%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. e
SEMLRHELERS | 590
National Council for Social Security Fund e
s

ait 100.00%

Total
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WEER AN ESBAMRT, REXREEMEK . MREKRSE. VEEES TENRAEIZRIT RIEESHRE
R, EFR-BITPREEEHRAALRZARR

PRICERFTARTELATREBFE(FEARANEBATZ)HEREARINEBRE AT, RIEESHRIRN,
MUHBRBMARKEZEFKENEBERERELVTEHRIARMNNEITHREANS, ZUNEEERMATRESLE.

BRMNRRFEERTELIZME(FEARKNELATE)HEFINCERREERRINERITETAT, £
MEZRINGE RN G B2 AFRBULRA=ZEEE . REEHE,

cEHAREESEERE2EHSREESNEEETENM.

MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating fiscal
and tax policies, and exercising fiscal supervision. As authorized by the State Counclil, it represents the government to perform the
responsibilities as an investor of central state-owned financial capital in a centralized way.

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial
institutions, and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial
assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas
projects, equities, debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.

R
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEREM

Members of the Board of Directors

RBESBRAEN(ERFLRITER), AMTESSHIBRESHR, BFESEHITESR (RFESBK). 48HFE
EM6ERNES. BEl, RAMTESKABNKIEMLE, BIESKHEMEE, NTESERE: B8R BW. WL &fE
EEHERARAEZ. VEM. FFB. ARBRITERIKIZBHBEATALL, 815 FF K. Blk. BEE. B9,
RNESHRABMILK, 81 KESBL. KER. ALRE. OWB. EFSWH: FUR.

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is Zhao Huan
and Vice Chairman Tan Jiong; the Executive Directors are Zhao Huan, Tan Jiong, and He Xinhong*; the Government Agency Directors
are each appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBC. They are Li Chunlin, Liao Min, Guo Tingting, and Tao Ling.

The shareholders appoint Zhang Shenghui, Tan Long, Zhang Lusong, Fan Kejun, and Yan Lijuan as Equity Directors. Li Huachang is the
Secretary of the Board of Directors.

MERBREFER SR EENIZE.

*Pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities.

EETRR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

KTEZERBAXZEZRZEINR(ERALARTEEYETRR . EE2NRNEIEZER IEFEVSMELRE.
RETRE, MEPELR.FASHRAR, EFRNUEANREEBITHR, FRRITEBKEBEREHES,; Bt
BERKPLRER. FEEZETINKREL R, FERFRTIHY, RAEENAYARZMNEARANRIRERTHE,
BEAIAE, NEEE. AMEHEEREETE, NEEERN, —RIRAID IR E OFEMBEH R, BEB
HiItERE FETHETUHARENE, FERESE, RENFITESEKREEEERNRNEIS.
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The Board of Directors fulfills its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and the CDB Articles of Association. Its responsibilities
include making annual financial budgets and statements, profit sharing plans, losses compensation plans, rules of procedures of the
Board of Directors and related revised plans, and policies and systems for information disclosure of the Bank. It reviews and approves
medium- and long-term development strategies, annual business operation plans and investment plans, annual plans on bond issuance,
plans on capital management and issuance of capital replenishment instruments, major projects, management rules on risk management
and internal control, internal management structure, plans on the establishment, adjustment and cancellation of tier-one branches in
and outside the Chinese mainland, charters, annual working plans, annual reports, and institutions of internal auditing. It decides on the
authorization to the Chairman and the senior management.

BEERIEHE

Work of the Board of Directors

20245, AMTEZSRFUINEFHNRPEFEHSEIXBRIES, AERTHR EBERAKRITE, HE
REARNERBVRESEFRYMEN T, FETEREBAR, IBIVRER D, INEERMAER, MEHRER
R FPREREASER, TSR EEERUELEERE, MBNARBRTHELRERSZTIMMRIARRK, #)
FRRBRITRSEREANLE . XEFXEREFTLR. CUBLENRS ST ITEREHIRY. 2FEAEFESWN
TR, BB EE TN MEME L RZE52IMINE .

In 2024, the Board of Directors of CDB continued to follow the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics
for a New Era and faithfully implemented the decisions and instructions made by the CPC Central Committee and the State Council,
always making its plans and advancing its work in line with the bigger picture of the causes of the Party and the country. It kept
improving the governance system and building up the governance capability of CDB, fulfilled its duties in compliance with laws and
regulations, and made prudent and well-informed decisions. It maintained the leading role of CPC CDB Committee, and supported
the senior management to strengthen operational management. It exerted greater efforts to research and decide on major matters
concerning CDB'’s reform and development. It promoted CDB to make new achievements in supporting major national strategies,
boosting development of real economy, and preventing, mitigating and resolving risks. Over the year, the Board of Directors convened
seven meetings, at which members reviewed 52 proposals, including the business operation plan and financial budget plan.

EELHLE) A

Committees of the Board of Directors
ATEESTREABRARNIRFZEEZAR HIHEAS NREEZERS . XEKXFGEHERS . AEE5FHHE
RRENENERS. BENERASREEESENARIE, HEE<AR.

The Board of Directors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human

Resources and Remuneration, all of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors and report to the Board
of Directors.

BEEZRNKBEEZERR. TEATRNATRPRREBRNEEEEER, REVSFRERZYN BEREFE
ZEWNN BRADEATERUEESRERITER, SRSFEREBBEANEEBRRATHR, OEFFIREIK
RIEWE2024F, RITHRBARMKRAEEZRARIREKEY, RAMAXELR . EEEEEASEI. £2F
AFOREW, BINEE TN WESMEA R RAEENY . MBS ETRE22MNE, WREEERARIBEASF
2MEBLIR.

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development
strategy and the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the
execution of the annual operational plan and investment plan and the fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national
strategies and the supporting policies and advises the Board of Directors. In 2024, the committee strengthened strategic planning, and
deliberated on major matters of reform, development, operation and management. It convened five meetings to review 22 proposals on
the business operation plan, the financial budget plan, the capital management plan, and the profit sharing plan, and hear two special
reports including one on the development of green finance.
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HHERS. TEATHZABETEZERMIERS, P KBRETANNEET I 55 B8 %
AENAEE T TAE, WERIFNIMEE TN TR, IR EMEBE I ESIE S BB INE . 20245, RITHITE
REFEREMSIET AREHLREIETTEBER, BEMENIMBEHIMEIE, KEFREESESAM
MBI @FEBFIIXSW, BNFERE . ABIEHIFNIREFOTUNE, WM FiEiT. WEBEH SR
Bt SMNERE TP FE E BT R E H B R S 16T 5 UL IR

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-term
audit plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external
audit; and advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2024, the committee continued to supervise financial operation,
internal control and internal audit, oversaw and assessed the performance of external auditors and audit, and evaluated the compliance
and effectiveness of operation and management. It convened 13 meetings to review six proposals on the annual report, and the internal

control evaluation report, etc. and hear 16 special reports on financial operation, internal control management, internal auditing, and
annual audit and interim review of external auditors, among others.

REEEZRAR. TEMTHFNNKEELAE, hESAEEEN2EANKEERERXK. Mz XK. RaMHX
% & XX R FIE R, XX BUR - B IR & XU 7 2 88 113 17 8 BRI, 42 52 =& UG B IR A 0 2R 2 41 A9
BIE. 2024 AT AR EEZRACRF/AELRRNRZ S, 22 EXNREEERR, MUXNKEELZIER,
SRR M TRE | #5 2 VB HTUF X B2 @ F B SRS, B2 IR BIERE XK R 1F BRI 513X
2, WX KIR B 51 E%E T BUCR

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their
comprehensive risk management and control of various risks with regard to credit, market, and liquidity; conducts regular assessments of
risk policies, management, and resilience; and advises on how to improve risk management and internal control. In 2024, the committee
continued to coordinate development and security, improved the risk management system, refined comprehensive risk management
measures and tools, and strengthened risk monitoring and early warning, making consistent efforts in promoting risk control. It convened
five meetings to review 13 proposals on the comprehensive risk management report, and the risk appetite statement, among others, and
heard special reports on risk identification and assessment.

XBERGRHEZERR TEARTNEAXBIGHEITHES, SE—RXEXFHER, MHEFEEXKIZSBERERHN
REE2024F, KT KRR G EHERSTKEN XK SEE I TEXKXFEEHE, BXXEKRXHE
MEBSRKLEERKYING, HAITEXKISRAEREURR, A RS XEISGEEKFE. 2 FFHF2RRIL,
HINKEKZZEEREONRE, W —RXKZ 5 ERBEREIME LR

Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee reviews major related-party transactions, handles the filing of
general related-party transactions and hears the report on the overall situation of annual related-party transactions. In 2024, the
committee kept standardizing the management of related-party transactions, refined the related-party transaction management system,
and put in place a long-acting mechanism for related-party transaction management and risk management and control. It also promoted
the upgrade of the intelligent related-party transaction system to improve its management of related-party transactions. It convened two
meetings to review the proposal on the related-party transaction management report and hear three special reports including one on
filing of general related-party transactions.

AEEFHERS . FTEATHENELAITHMARGENER, 0EESRENTESNSRERARTM A RE
W, HFEBARELE, IEESNSRAEEARANEEEFARE, WETREARETULERHAOESSREE
W 2024%F, AT AEEFMERSALNEBEESCER . RLSREEENE  RESYEZSFEARIE,
REBLEN. 2FEHASREW, FNEZTSNARRITEZERAR ATAREMSREEARTMAIRS
11T R,
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Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of
the Bank, proposes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and
senior management, and preliminarily examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises
the Board of Directors on the matter. In 2024, the committee brought into full play its professional advantages, advanced its work by
strengthening the board building and senior management, improving performance evaluation, and gave advice and recommendations.
It convened five meetings to review 11 proposals of the Board of Directors on CDB’s appraisal targets and schemes, the remuneration
plans for executives and members of senior management, etc.

SREEE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ATEREEERTK . ATK. ESZSUBRAMSREBEARME . SAEEERB(ERARRTERIRE
ELBRNARZEEEEN, WESFEA TR 20245, AT REERNEELITRELBSNEET SRR, FEM
SEHMEeREEEENAEERNRRINGBMIT/ERE R BAE. 2T 1. 2K . RRY . EHSRELR"
NEAERR, BXERESBERN FELN, RECEMBEMZFERE HFE ARAXE" REXFE" =
AIRBR EHSHREHE —F— K 22 EXNREREERR BUS S TNKEEEE, NBRNEENEE,
M E S INE XU RAE , REEA NI NKE MBR=RGRE, ENRUERRIEN, 2EEH
ZEETERY BHTRERR. BSRIOMNEMBEAESHNEETSHENFELE BT,

The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other senior
management members. They discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the CDB Articles of Association and the
Board of Directors, and report to the Board of Directors. In 2024, the senior management of CDB faithfully implemented the instructions
of the CPC CDB Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors, continued to standardize and strengthen its decision-making
mechanism and working procedures for the authorized operation of the senior management. Following the business strategy of stabilizing
development, strengthening principal operations, controlling risks, driving better performance, and promoting high quality development.
Focusing on priority tasks, CDB makes targeted and sustained efforts to support enhancing infrastructure construction on all fronts,
advance technology finance, green finance, and inclusive finance, elderly care finance and digital finance, and promote subsidized
housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure, and high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It improved the
comprehensive risk management system, strengthened vertical risk management in both the head office and branches, intensified internal
control and compliance management, and tackled risks of key projects effectively, boosting its risk control capacity. It enhanced assets
and liabilities coordination, promoted risk prevention and resolution, prioritized cost-reduction and efficiency increase, and improved the
quality and effectiveness of operation and management on all fronts, fulfilling the major tasks assigned by the CPC Central Committee
and the State Council and annual business objectives set by the Board of Directors.

A &R 2 il

INTERNAL CONTROL

20245, RITHFBUANEIZH . AT TEMNEHEEE, ARERARNTPE, FERARNEEKFE. UK
EREAZEENS RUABAEZEN ZNBEE" MR, DEARESARUEF =ZFITHTIR (2024-2027
F), BH2027 FEARNEENRURANSEER. ERESNIEREI. FEEENITTFERBNG, BeE
HL . DRI ERURITIFEIEIRER , BT A SAARIZIFE AR, & 217 2R FRIERFRAITITMAE TE,
BRI EMFLETER, TRANMREENER THEFEITFN, MFEERSEIE. FRAMBRHBER
M, MEPARLRIAA TR EFHERRFEEARBMEZGRE, AREHER.
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In 2024, CDB continued to strengthen its internal control. It kept improving the management of rules and regulations and carried out
dynamic adjustments to basic authorizations to refine the authorization management. It improved the whole-process internal control
management mechanism and consolidated the achievements of the three years of efforts in internal control and compliance. It issued a
Three-Year Action Plan for Internal Control and Compliance Improvement (2024-2027), which specifies the general goal, key tasks and
implementation path for internal control and compliance improvement across the group by 2027. Besides, CDB continued to upgrade
the long-acting mechanism for internal control evaluation, improved the group-based, hierarchical and differentiated internal control
evaluation index system, and revised the internal control evaluation scheme for branches, and all branches and subsidiaries conducted
their internal control evaluation on a regular basis. CDB also enhanced the vertical management of the risk compliance line. It conducted
the annual evaluation on risk compliance management of branches and completed vertical reporting, among other tasks. CDB also
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control. No major defect or significant deficiency was discovered in the internal control system
during the reporting period, indicating effective work in this area.

WERE i+

INTERNAL AUDIT

RE(ERFRRITER) ABRFEHHNEEARTADERTTATHARE L1F. 2024F, RITINERZ AP RE T
ZREDWER, BEXREER, BRENASD, FENERTT, EFRENTF AR TRUKENSRE
EZRANER. FREBRXBFABHHANREEMRAEIT, EEERXRERBREFLL Y FRIRDITHIRFA
U FLXESEEBERFT, BREGARREE . FRARATMEBEILLZE INCER. FBREZR ér&‘”*
o RXEFERIATE T, REFSEUBERINR. FTREENKR . XEKX 5. K%k RAEE . GRFH S XK
ME, (RAEEYEERT . FREBIERE. W HELSM . RAKRTSEEREEIT, RELELERRES. %é}‘t
ﬁi\i? o LM BT B R AR EIT R I AEE K, MU T E RTINS, RN BLIR U LA HHE RS
SAERITHORMSE, REFAREFEFHER T, BENCTASTHRERBN. AFZETLRAZ =L L0
BHEER, RUETELE . KN ARASZ  NEEE. IEENSEZELEENENTENE, MBEEHE. K
R FEBUTEITRE, TEETRE, MEAREFTT, ENHHFHEERRBREMABIESTEA, FTE
BITRAE, MIsR T A 1B 5, RETIRTT & 1t TAE R

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors.
In 2024, CDB implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee, met regulatory
requirements, focused on solving problems, and laid stress on value increase, bringing into a better play the role of internal audit in
promoting the Bank’s deepening reform and high quality development. Audits on special loans to urban village renovation projects of
megacities were conducted to promote the implementation and realization of major national policies. Audits on business operation
and management were conducted on three branches and one subsidiary to promote business compliance and stable and sustained
operation. Audits on credit services such as NPL transfer and write-off, foreign exchange credit, M&A loans, and risk classification
of financial assets were carried out to promote prevention and mitigation of credit risks. Risk compliance audits on comprehensive
risks, related-party transactions, anti-money laundering, capital management and performance-based salaries were also carried out to
enhance the management efficiency and effectiveness. Besides, audits on IT management such as data governance, business continuity,
and system launch for production were conducted to promote the upgrade of the data governance system and its operation safety.
CDB advanced the rectification of problems identified by the National Audit Office and internal audits and upgraded the rectification
mechanism to improve the effectiveness of rectification and consolidate the achievements. Greater efforts were made in advancing
economic accountability audits, and the in-office accountability audits were carried out in a steady manner to guarantee appropriate
and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints concerning CDB’s asset security were handled in a transparent manner. The Bank
promoted the coordination of audits with all supervisory parties such as disciplinary inspection, tour inspection, organizational and
personnel functions, risk management and internal control compliance to form supervisory synergy, so as to strengthen information
and achievements sharing. CDB kept refining the integrated management of auditing, strictly controlled auditing quality, and carried out
research audits seriously. Special efforts were made to enhance IT support for auditing and promote big data analysis and application. It
strengthened the building of audit team by recruitment and training to increase auditing efficiency continuously.
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2024%F , RITHESEL(RITREAMXKZIZEEMENVBEXER, fIEXKXZEEIEAN . XXX HHR
ETEAN, FEABEXUVSFHEREFRAXKIZERER, #—LRBUXKIZENEE. REHPA, &7
KRR GETB—REULER, ROEEWHT, ENEELAROBHLRERN, REMIREARTERARFZITH.

BME2024F KR, KTRELEXREKIZXHREN606.20127T, RELXKXHEFRETN.4527T, FARRHMEX
BRI 5 EFRLEHMN,856.8427T; WENKEKDWRER (NBRRIEEFR. RANRTFENEREM) 5
BRSO RS N2.23%, WENKFKEASIFEAALMEEAZT NS RERT (HIBRRIESHER. K
ANRTEREMERESM) SRRV RS H2.23%, WA XEKL PNRERM (NBRRIEEFR. BN
RITHFENERESH) ARAFIMAILLGIN3.17%, YFEXRKI 5 nELHIEK.

RESITENRENXKRZXSZ1FE, BER " MEREMEI+ XEKAOXAEARXS"FHRE.

In 2024, CDB continued to implement the Measures for the Administration of the Related-Party Transactions of Banking and Insurance
Institutions, and formulated administration instructions for related-party transactions and operating rules for the Related-party Transitions
Office. It continued to integrate the requirements on related-party transaction management into relevant business systems and procedures
to further strengthen the compliance management. During the reporting period, the Bank’s related-party transactions were carried out
in accordance with general commercial terms in compliance with laws and regulations. Such transactions were priced according to fair
commercial principles, and no behavior was found detrimental to the interests of the Bank and its shareholders.

At the end of 2024, the balance of credit related-party transactions of the Bank totaled RMBG60.620 billion, the total amount of service
related-party transactions reached RMB145 million, and the total amount of deposit and other related-party transactions amounted to
RMB185.684 billion. The balance of credit extended to a single related party (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposit
certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.23% of the total net capital at maximum; the total balance of credit extended
to a single related corporation or a group customer of an unincorporated organization (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank
deposit certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.23% of the net capital at maximum; and the balance of credit extended
to all related parties (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposit certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for
3.17% of the net capital, all meeting the regulatory requirements for related-party transactions.

For detailed information on related-party transactions defined in accordance with accounting standards, please refer to Notes 10 to the
Financial Statements: Related-Party Relationships and Transactions.

El=t 4
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

2024%F , ATNEELEERBHEIRLREER, FEMEBEERBEREEE ENREAGERBEIERN. £S5
2. REEERRETERKERR, BREAXFEETMNEETEREENS . RO ARBRITEERS. UF
SERRBRE WTCHBRIIMNIRERNOR . XESHNESMEEEZRERE THEIURE. FRERKES
E LB, BRIKEERAFAERICH IRSUBRRRERER.

In 2024, CDB conscientiously implemented relevant regulatory requirements for information disclosure and continued to intensify the
whole-process information disclosure management, with a focus on improving the information disclosure performance. The Board of
Directors and senior management of CDB took the initiative to fulfill their information disclosure responsibilities, and urged relevant
functions responsible to faithfully perform their information disclosure obligation. It formulated and duly released its annual report and
sustainability report, and standardized disclosure of major information on accountability for and corrections of problems identified in
both internal and external inspections, and change of accounting firm, accepting public supervision on its own initiative. The Bank also
evaluated the implementation of information disclosure regulations to ensure there was no false or misleading information or major
omission in information disclosed.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FEMFHIE
KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(ARMERITHESLE Million RMB or %)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

=R
Total Assets

VU EIONEE ST
Total Loans and Advances to Customers

18,618,341 18,654,522 18,243,083 17,167,941 17,103,575

15,398,359 14,904,502 14,474,924 13,262,498 13,049,924

ARERE 9 9 9 9 9
Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0.87% 0.58% 0.78% 0.84% 0.79%
e R
Allowance to Total Loans Ratio 4.80% 4.66% 4.28% 8.80% 8.38%
TR E
Total Liabilities 16,844,398 16,974,792 16,637,502 15,629,661 15,622,983

NN
Ej‘i”h%}r.t% 13,328,529 12,724,297 12,125,956 11,480,377 10,722,092
Debt Securities Issued

3¢ 24

R & AN ik S 1,773,943 1,679,730 1,605,581 1,538,280 1,480,592
Total Equity
)
Profit for the Year 88,960 87,417 84,340 80,794 118,816
P =
RAFREE 12.37% 11.65% 11.37% 11.66% 12.03%

Capital Adequacy Ratio

A RFERS (BRIMIRIN AHHMSBRELREFRETRECWSIHENRE, REFIEBN, ARITRABFAIEHHE,
UAERMARTRo

Note: Al the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting
Standards and, unless otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.
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INCOME AND EXPENSES

2024%F , KITNERHAERZEZNER, BEETRTIUWRERN, REEREBNLEEFRURS R . AL

#F3H889.6012 7T *JU@HSU\ EETEZENRAKR, @EIIMABFKAL,411.05127T. EAFH SR = ERE
(ROA) 0.48%, )85 Wz & (ROE) 5.15%.

In 2024, CDB faithfully implemented national macro policies, stayed committed to its mandate, supported national strategies and

contributed to the better performance of the real economy. CDB made a net profit of RMB88.960 billion across the group, in which net

interest income, as the leading source of income, reached RMB141.105 billion. The CDB group saw an ROA of 0.48% and an ROE of
5.15%.

( ART & AT Milion RMB)

2024 2023 g
Change+/(-)
?p%rufté\g Income 172,996 209,658 (36,662)
ﬁctaﬂf\;\%eqt&lﬁ\terest Income 141,105 160,313 (19,208)
:)gp%rftitr?g Expense (67,367) (107,299) 39,932
ﬁcﬁd%g%B&LEé%i and Administrative Expenses (13,941) (13,501) (440)
;E“_p%éjtfg Profit 105,629 102,359 3,270
iﬂﬂﬁfﬁm 105,579 102,377 3,202
;\J}Zhnii |§§fmﬁg Tax Expense (16,619) (14,960) (1,659)
g 88,960 87,417 1,543

Profit for the Year
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

B E2024F K, EH R LEEN186,183.4 12700 WARID R BE2024F R, KM A K ERAREN146,887.72
25T, BLEIEK3.12%, S5 S HN78.89%. AREHI168,443.9812 7. KRR R EEMRLZ KR & £20244F
xR, BERITRFIUEFRIN133,285.2912 7T, FLEIEK4A.75%, SR GRDEAI79.13%.

At the end of 2024, the CDB group had total assets of RMB18,618.341 billion. Loans remained the dominant assets of the Bank, with
the balance of loans and advances totaling RMB14,688.772 billion, up by 3.12% year on year and accounting for 78.89% of the total

assets. Total liabilities stood at RMB16,844.398 billion. Debt issuance was the primary source of funding. At the end of 2024, the group
had a balance of RMB13,328.529 billion in debt securities, up by 4.75% year on year and accounting for 79.13% of total liabilities.

( AR E A T Million RMB)

T
2024 2023 Change+/()
AR 18,618,341 18,654,522 (36,181)

Total Assets

WM& R A7 ARAT R B Ak FR I
Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with 191,440 241,788 (50,348)
Banks and Other Financial Institutions

V-9 e OSE TN 14 o
Loans and Advances to Customers 688,77 14,244,743 444,029
él’ﬁ XJ\
Investment Securities 2,261,035 2,776,027 (514,992)
Lfth 1,477,094 1,391,964 85,130
Others

£33
SRR 16,844,398 16,974,792 (130,394)

Total Liabilities

BARITHRBIUS
Debt Securitios Issued 13,328,529 12,724,297 604,232

H
B BUA] 2 A AR HLAD 5510 ' . - 606,473 673,951 (67,478)
Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions

(2 b 75 P R TR U K 7 3R
Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions and 2,764,204 3,369,604 (605,400)
Due to Customers

Hith

Others 145,192 206,940 (61,748)
FrEENREH

Toral Equity 1,773,943 1,679,730 94,213
LA 421,248 421,248 -

Share Capital

BRARNTRIMBRAR
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 427,019 412,127 14,892

— RS
General Reserve 285,230 278,378 6,852

ROEF A E M
Retained Earnings and Other Equity 611,942 540,988 70,954

|3k BD 2%
DA a 28,504 26,989 1,515
Non-Controlling Interests
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

o SHEORIA RIS R

MODERN INFRASTRUCTURE SYSTEM

2024F , KITRARMEXL P RAXTF2EMBEMRBRRBE, BEEMIRBRITZOREE, T
PNEERERIE, SRERSMRUEMIRBAEREZIR, RIRSIFRIE . GEIR . KF E /45 3£t
B, E2 . B RS W A REAM IR, B EMIRE, R RN EMRENER 22 EMMRE.
EERWEMIZE KB 1.57127T.

In 2024, CDB thoroughly implemented the CPC Central Committee’s plan to enhance infrastructure construction on all
fronts. Focusing on its core role as a bank for infrastructure, CDB took the initiative to support major national projects
and provided high quality services for modern infrastructure development. It also provided support for networked
infrastructure including transport, energy, and water conservancy, infrastructure for industrial upgrading such as

information, science and technology, and logistics, urban, rural and agricultural infrastructure, and national security
infrastructure. CDB issued infrastructure loans exceeding RMB1.5 trillion throughout the year.

-

A ImM S X REHTEATRRIA

Hangzhou Bay Area Loop Line & Parallel*'ﬂe Project in.Zhejiang_
e

-

—
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The Photothermal + Photovoltaic Pilot Project in Aksay Kazakh Autonomous County, Gansu

0 <
TETRKMEMIZEERA R F ALK BIZIME
Ningdong Water Conservancy Infrastructure Renovation and Upgrade and Construction of Digital-twin Water Plant in

Ningxia
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TECHNOLOGY FINANCE, GREEN FINANCE, INCLUSIVE FINANCE, ELDERLY CARE FINANCE, AND
DIGITAL FINANCE

FITECREEN, BFENARERFABRRA, RRMFREeR. Seth. EEER. FEZER. LFERABK

XEs

ENRAREEEIRES R, BUN R OIH . FXF=l RRF= LW AMEEZ LR ARHOSRRS, IO R
R—rl— 2/ RMER.

ANERGESH, B2EGELMAEAR BRYSAEERGZEEHERS, HERMMIE. 42 REEIE, 85
UHELRENES. FeTREFFEEEH™ RRS, HHASHNESETREXERES, HEHEWPER
SEIE &M, A BEERER. ZFEXB . ASHREELMEIFNE, RRRSEMFERZRNEFHLERES
[EES=ck iR

UEBEBNRAENE  INEEXERDFEA " RMFEER"BUR, MiFBZEA 5. BUNRMKEEZS/IR
F. BSREERRELE. NEHRRRABR ARSI, P2 NEERY . FEMUERRERRS, SRS
NV

RIRENZR UM ETERER, XPHEBRRFZEMRERZRAILXERFAERSNERIR . FENMRS RS
EXRTREME, BINWEXFERSHAMNI.

RRRINBFEREBR, RNRT=HIESHRAREN, @& Mib=.0" TR, FEilaR s 5
BT R RAIMBE

Based on its mandate, CDB continues to increase

the investment of financial resources, and takes the iﬁﬂjtﬂ-ill:liﬁiﬁﬁﬂz?«%;ﬁﬁ
initiative to provide support for technology finance, Danjiang River Estuary Basin Ecological Protection Project in Hubei

green finance, inclusive finance, elderly care finance
and digital finance.

CDB spares no effort to deliver technology finance
services, intensifies financial support for technological
innovation, emerging industries, future industries,
and the transformation and upgrading of traditional
industries to help form a virtuous circle of technology,
industry and finance.

CDB makes great efforts to develop green finance,
upgrades the green finance governance system
and establishes the Green Finance Committee
at the senior management level, to continuously
enhance the environmental, social and governance
management. It innovates green financial products
and services such as sustainability-linked loans and
green financial bonds, promotes the EOD model,
and facilitates the implementation of Beautiful China
demonstration projects. It increases support for key
sectors such as clean energy, green transportation
and ecological and environmental protection,
supporting the building of a Beautiful China and the
comprehensive green transformation of economic
and social development.




CDB supports initiatives to improve the people’s
livelihood with inclusive finance. It implements the
policies of higher credit lines with lower rates for
student loans to ensure the effective delivery of student
loans. It intensifies efforts in providing emergency and
post-disaster reconstruction financial services, and
boosts all-round rural revitalization with a focus on
ensuring national food security and consolidating the
poverty alleviation achievements. It also keeps refining
the on-lending financial service to provide substantial
support for micro and small businesses.

CDB also proactively adapts to the needs of an aging
society. It provides support for major projects such as
inclusive elderly care infrastructure, community home-
based elderly care service network, and upgrade of
elderly care institutions’ service, contributing to the
supply of better basic elderly care services.

CDB made integrated plans for the development of
digital finance. It has successfully put Xi'an data and
R&D base into operation and fully implemented the IT
infrastructure in the three centers in two localities. It
also continues to empower business innovation and
development with technology.

HRIEES STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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ERFRRITEFEMESANFERRDENG

Applications for CDB hometown-based student loans
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NEW QUALITY PRODUCTIVE FORCES

RITRLRSFREF N ITIETY, BEMLEK
MEFTXF A R B IE S E R U, AR ET
HEMDE, UZTUGEERFRIFER
TGk kR, ARMEIERERRTRES DT
N o

With a focus on key sectors including strategic emerging
industries and integrated circuits, CDB sets up a special
task force for supporting new quality productive forces,
increases technology loans, and supports the priority

industries to take the lead in development through
diversified and comprehensive financial measures,

injecting new momentum into the development of new

quality productive forces based on local conditions.

Xf5 SATR B

0 <

BRI AR
Shenyang SIASUN robot project

SUBSIDIZED HOUSING, RENOVATION OF URBAN VILLAGES, AND DUAL-USE PUBLIC
INFRASTRUCTURE THAT CAN ACCOMMODATE EMERGENCY NEEDS

Y R AR T R X B R R A S TR

Urban village renovation of Pangzhuang, Huiji District,

Zhengzhou, Henan

KITRMZFFRERS . BPNBE F2H
B AHREMEESE ZATIR"B&, BB
WIRSBRBERZBOR, RERIBERE,
PARBHTERERENZLTM,

The Bank supports the construction of major projects
including subsidized housing, renovation of urban
villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can
accommodate emergency needs, helping to solve
the housing problems for the people in an efficient
and effective manner, promote urban-rural integrated
development, and improve the security and resilience of
urban high quality development.
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HIGH QUALITY BELT AND ROAD COOPERATION

FTRFBLUSE. IFE8. ERENBR, RIRRSZ SKFEIINTR, LUELFI, 5000 TARTRAEEL . —
—BEMRAR . EREAREBNUEMRESEANESHNF, DU RE/E " AE, FEINE " EEE " WEKE " O
Bl 51, REED —HAEMRE. ~LERAEGHE. SRS HERESIBELMERSEZRR, BRRH
HHEFHERE, BRARKRKER, IMEMNHER, RESREBLRE " —F—K"BUSHTRK.

To serve high-standard, sustainable and people-centered development, CDB takes the initiative to support high quality opening up.
Through the RMB350 billion financing window, the Belt and Road Special Lending Scheme, and the GDI Special Fund, CDB supports
the “hard connectivity” of infrastructure, the “soft connectivity” of rules and standards, and the “heart connectivity” between peoples
with partner countries through financial connectivity. It has enabled significant progress in a number of key projects in sectors such as
infrastructure, industries, trade, financial services, and social and people’s livelihood, effectively promoting local economic and social
development, improving people’s sense of gain and achieving win-win results. CDB has made new achievements in supporting high
quality Belt and Road cooperation.

0 <

BN ERMEMRRERINNEDZRIE

Overseas RMB Loan for grid infrastructure in Chile
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PLANNING AND RESEARCH

20245, RITEITHEMINAR I, eIFFERERS, RRAMALREZSHR RUERSHEERZR, &
FRE"STHAEEERENG, RIRAREEEQIREE, MEBXBREEGREENIARIE . RAFR TR
AAYETHRTA R, USIN TS AEZTRR . RHBERLESWE LN, TS ERRITE, BIREMEN +2R"
BEXRERmMB.

In 2024, CDB advanced its planning and research initiatives and innovated intellectual support services, providing advice and proposals
for local development. The Bank boosted the development of its national high-end think tank. It continued to improve the system and
mechanism for bank-wide development of think tanks and carried out peer exchanges and cooperation among think tanks, providing
strong research support for policy making. It carried out in-depth preliminary research on the 15th Five-Year Plan, actively participated in

research by joining special task forces, undertaking commissioned projects, and providing opinions and consultation services, so as to
make forward-looking plans for major and key projects of the 15th Five-Year Plan.

zedlF

TREASURY

20245, RATIRA K RE. THL AATENEREN, NEERRREERNRERE. EERITRAAR
MEREF2.37 AT, FERFRIMBI12H1ZT, RITEIMIMDRIFI17TCET BRI RDHRIF281ZT. 7k
ERBEBZERFENAN R TIFRRESFEEREPFRBEE.

BTEERRER, RIT"KIZFTHERBSRERR " XHFEREMNTE SETREEEM K220 7T,
BRETHR(IFLEERABILXBRRE MESBZUNITERITHEERAS, E—TRAZEHSMH
KRB RERBBSESFHZER, ESURITZFERS, FEFEM Anuﬂl BRI R ITTREENDREE R KH
FRG FEEN AT HRR, BESUFARMT IFHRE, AU ZTEEFRBHT RS ITFNER, RNERFEF KR
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In 2024, CDB improved its capability in raising long-term, stable, sustainable, and cost-controllable funds, and provided strong financial
support for its business development. Over the year, CDB issued RMB financial bonds worth RMB2.37 trillion in the Chinese mainland,
with a balance of over RMB12 trillion. It issued overseas foreign currency bonds worth USD1.7 billion and overseas RMB bonds worth

RMB2.8 billion. International ratings agencies, such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s, consistently rated CDB at the same level as
China’s sovereign rating.

CDB remained committed to the green development philosophy. It issued RMB22 billion themed green financial bonds for Green, Low-
carbon and High Quality Development of the Yangtze Economic Belt and Support for Building a Beautiful China. For the first time, CDB
issued green financial bonds based on the China-EU Common Ground Taxonomy: Climate Change Mitigation to improve the quality of
green bond supply. The Bank supported the development of bond market by issuing floating-rate bonds on a regular basis to diversify
the variety of floating-rate bonds. For the first time, it successfully issued a 7-day repricing DR benchmark medium- and long-term
floating-rate bond. It continued to promote the development of the secondary market, carried out market-making support operations on
a regular basis, and improved the market-making transaction evaluation system for CDB bonds, strengthening the liquidity advantages of
CDB bonds.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
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BE2024FFR, ATHEROAREARZEN9, 9401275, PHRKNDEN6,54112 7T, O —REKRZDEN16,526127T, &
ARERBRI2.37T%, —RAKRFTEE10.25%, Z0O— RREAFTEER10.24%; KTHATEAOREARZEN19,51912
T, —REARREFMZO—RE mu%ﬁ16,2021z;c,J\zl:}EET12 32%, —WRARERMZO—REATER
10.19%

The purpose of CDB’s capital management is to promote national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations,
and preserve and increase the value of state assets. CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees business
growth. In 2024, in line with the principle of preserving asset value and seeking modest returns, CDB strengthened its capacity to
independently generate capital. With its capital structure remaining stable, the Bank saw an increase in its total capital stock. Following
the capital management philosophy of the CDB group, it continued to enhance its capital restraint mechanism to guide business
development as mandated by its mission. The Bank took the initiative to carry out internal capital adequacy assessment, developed
group-wide plans for capital management and capital adequacy ratio, and established a capital budgetary system at the group level.
Capital management continued to perform better, providing capital support for fulfilling the development tasks while meeting the
regulatory requirements.

As of the end of 2024, the Bank, on a consolidated basis, had a total capital of RMB1,994.0 billion, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,654.1
billion, total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,652.6 billion, capital adequacy ratio 12.37%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 10.25%, and
Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 10.24%. As for the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,951.9 billion, both total
Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,620.2 billion, capital adequacy ratio 12.32%, and both total Tier 1 capital
and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 10.19%.

RISEE

CREDIT MANAGEMENT

2024%F , RiTRFE I SRR ENKERIZ, %Jﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁtlﬁ MEREREESS BHENERTRER
Ko BEFTIECH, BB RN CIFIENNG , RHEMPRN. BERIRAEASLIHMRR SN, 2RSS
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RMHEE— &R, RABNEENTH . BB BEUKE,

In 2024, CDB maintained a good balance between business expansion and risk management and carried out credit extension and review
efficiently. It intensified credit scheduling guidance and enabled stable credit business growth. CDB followed fundamental principles and
broke new ground and established a mechanism to drive innovation in financing modes. It promoted the application of the innovation
achievements such as preliminary loans and fixed asset-backed financing model and created a financial “toolkit” for life-cycle support of
infrastructure. With a focus on supporting China’s major strategies, key industries and underdeveloped sectors, CDB stepped up credit
structure adjustment to promote the steady increase in the percentage of infrastructure loans. It rebuilt the credit approval authorization
system, established a framework consisting of “basic authorization + special authorization + differentiated authorization”, which can
prevent risks while enabling first-line business development, making the authorization management more standardized, refined and
better-informed.
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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In 2024, CDB mobilized financial resources on the markets to help businesses access direct financing, support key national strategies,
and reduce financing costs for the real economy. It served as an underwriter for 89 clients, completing the issuance of 153 debenture
bonds for a total of RMB388.004 billion. CDB’s services, such as bill acceptance, discounting, re-discounting, domestic factoring,
domestic guarantee and entrusted loans, developed steadily, effectively meeting diverse needs of market players. CDB generated
an annual business volume of RMB66.337 billion, supporting key industries such as green development, transportation, advanced
manufacturing, municipal facilities management and energy supply. It continued to implement the national policy of reducing fees and
cutting costs and control the prices of financial services.
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SETTLEMENT AND OPERATION
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In 2024, CDB continued to improve its operational service development capabilities, refine its operational system, and innovate
settlement products. It enhanced the operations risk management and control to improve the quality and efficiency of operational
services, effectively meeting customers’ demands for settlement services. It handled settlement of RMB21 trillion in local and foreign

currencies, clearance of RMB201 trillion in local and foreign currencies, and settlement of fund transactions and bonds of RMB159 trillion
throughout the year. With no major operations risk incidents or capital losses, CDB strictly guarded the bottom lines of safe operations.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2024, CDB continued to play its role as a leading bank of syndicated loans, intensified its cooperation with other financial institutions,
and promoted the development of the syndicated loan market. With new syndicated loan agreements worth more than RMB1.4 trillion
signed, CDB remained China’s largest provider of syndicated loans. CDB duly revised its administrative measures on syndicated loans
and facilitated the high quality development of its syndicated loan business to better support major national projects and the real
economy. It continued to promote cooperation in on-lending loans and strengthened interaction with on-lending banks for synergy
to make financial resources accessible to the real economy and improve the quality and effectiveness of services for small and micro
businesses.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2024, following the CPC’s guidelines on organization, CDB continued to improve the professionalism of its staff members. Answering
the call of the government to stabilize employment, CDB recruited staff members from various channels and offered better career

development prospects to motivate staff members. At the end of 2024, the CDB network included 37 primary branches and four
secondary branches on the Chinese mainland, one branch in Hong Kong, and 11 representative offices in other countries.
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In 2024, CDB implemented the Regulations on Cadre Education and Training, the National Cadre Education and Training Plan (2023-
2027) and the guiding principles of the National Conference on Cadre Education and Training. By emphasizing the overall planning,
focusing on key points, consolidating the foundation, and improving quality and effectiveness, CDB kept making its staff education and

training more updated, systematic, targeted and effective. It focused on building a cadre team consisting of high-caliber professionals,.
holding more than 20 training sessions on theoretical capacity and over 150 sessions on duty performance improvement.
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In 2024, CDB implemented the strategy of Digital CDB and enhanced the top-level design of digital finance. It drew up a three-
year action plan for digital finance development to drive substantial progress in digital transformation. With data elements and digital
technology as key drivers, CDB took multiple measures to empower business innovation and development. It established data archives,
launched the new core second-phase student loan accounting system, released the student loan APP, and advanced the development
of key projects such as “smart credit” and the new edition of risk system cluster. It sped up the integration of business, technology
and data, enhanced IT integration, and continued to improve its cybersecurity capabilities, constantly improving its capabilities for
independent and controllable IT operations. CDB successfully put into operation Xi’an data and R&D base, continuously improved its
resource allocation and service supply capabilities, and gave full play to the role of IT in supporting and securing business development.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital), with a registered capital of RMB94.877 billion, was founded in August 2009. In 2024, in keeping
with its mandate, CDB Capital gave full play to its role as an equity institutional investor, coordinated with CDB in supporting China’s
key industries and underdeveloped sectors. It increased support for technological innovation and advanced manufacturing to promote
faster growth of new quality productive forces and build up patient capital. CDB Capital continued to follow the guiding role of Party
building and resolutely corrected the problems identified in tour inspections and audits, making significant advances in improving its
comprehensive risk management, building routine, long-acting risk management system and internal control and compliance system, and

improving comprehensive operation and management quality. At the end of 2024, its total assets were RMB184.909 billion and the asset
under its management reached RMB277.938 billion.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in
August 2017, with a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion. In 2024, CDB Securities made great efforts to build itself into a distinctive
professional investment bank and underwrote RMB346.066 billion bonds. The company received industry honors such as 2024
Outstanding Underwriter (Bonds Issued by Government-backed Agencies) by Shanghai Stock Exchange, Outstanding Bond Underwriting

Institution by China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd., and 2024 Junding Award for Bond Financing in Investment Banking in the
Chinese Securities Industry by Securities Times. At the end of 2024, its total assets were RMB48.789 hillion.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Financial Leasing), with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion, was listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016. In 2024, centering on promoting technology finance, green finance, inclusive
finance, elderly care finance and digital finance and boosting the development of the new quality productive forces, CDB Financial
Leasing took its advantages in synergizing financial resources with physical assets access to keep improving its capabilities
in supporting the real economy and increased financial support for key sectors including technological innovation, advanced
manufacturing, green development, and micro, small and medium enterprises. It continued to promote business transformation and
innovation, increased investment in direct lease and operating lease, thoroughly advanced asset-liability management, and improved
comprehensive risk management, laying a solid foundation for high quality development. Its leading position in the industry was
continuously consolidated, which further improved the effectiveness of its support for the group’s strategies. At the end of 2024, its
total assets were RMB405.850 billion.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund (CADFund) was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specializing in Africa
investments, with a total fund scale of USD10 billion. In 2024, CADFund advanced high quality development of its investment business
in priority areas such as the Ten Partnership Actions announced at the Beijing Summit of the Forum on China-Africa Cooperation. At the

end of 2024, its total investment commitments in 39 African countries reached USD8.208 billion, which could mobilize USD32.8 billion of
investments from China to Africa.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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CDB practices comprehensive risk management following the basic principles of symmetry, full coverage, independence, and
effectiveness, establishing a robust risk governance structure, which works efficiently to keep risks under control at various levels.

In 2024, CDB maintained its prudent risk appetite in response to the complexities, risks and challenges both at home and abroad. It
made a special effort to strengthen its risk management system to create a clear governance structure and fully-developed procedures,
modernize the toolkit and carry out effective monitoring. It refined its risk management system, processes and tools, and effectively
handled various sources of risks. A group-wide exercise was carried out to identify and evaluate risks, categorize risks, comprehensively
screen out management deficiencies, and devise targeted risk control measures. CDB formulated the CDB group risk appetite statement,
optimized the group’s unified risk appetite management system, and intensified risk appetite implementation across the group. It
upgraded the vertical risk compliance management system of branches and advanced the initiative aiming at improving comprehensive
risk management capabilities of branches with a view to enhancing their risk compliance performance. Besides, CDB also strengthened
the risk penetration management in subsidiaries and conducted evaluations on their risk compliance management to execute strong
guidance and supervision on the risk compliance line of subsidiaries. With continuous efforts to foster a risk management culture, the
risk awareness of the entire staff was strengthened to enhance CDB’s risk management capacity.
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CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB further upgraded its credit management system that complies with its mandate, and refined its internal management
system including the Credit Management Manual and the Measures for Management of Fixed Asset Loans. It adopted vertical
management on the credit management line and intensified risk prevention and control in priority areas and on management of
projects with potential risks. It strengthened the overall management of principal and interest recovery and asset quality, seeing to
high-level principal and interest recovery as well as stable and improved asset quality. CDB continued to improve its internal rating
system and refined the country and sovereign rating models to fully cover the key points of country risk rating specified by regulatory
authorities. It released the measure to evaluate special loans to urban village projects, revised the operational procedures for rating of
incidents involving major risks, issued relevant regulations on identification of customer defaults and quantification of internal rating risk
parameters, and thoroughly amended the Credit Rating Manual to give better play to the basic role of credit rating in risk management.
Complying with the new capital management regulations, CDB steadily promoted the implementation of the new credit risk weighting
method, based on which it actively developed a risk exposure classification-based management system. It formulated annual credit
policy guidelines to specify priority areas for credit business, differentiated policies, and risk prevention and control requirements. CDB
also upgraded the risk early warning management system and continued to optimize the group customer management mechanism. It
comprehensively implemented the Measures for the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks and strictly carried out
risk classification of financial assets. It carried out comprehensive credit risk screening on a regular basis, so as to keep a dynamic track
on customers from sectors with high risks. By doing so, the Bank effectively prevented and mitigated risks in key sectors and supported
the prevention and resolution of local debt risks in an efficient and orderly manner. It further improved the group’s asset preservation
regime and mechanism, and strengthened the scheduling and driving mechanism for NPLs involving major risks and after write-offs,
improving its overall asset preservation management. Besides, the Bank further advanced digital transformation of credit business and
initiated the building of a smart credit system.
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MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

20245, RMTEVIXTERFRERLF /MG, £ R NHZNRHE T, MEREdZSNEEE, BRI R
EZRERRN, EEAFEEERER —FUTIZINE. TELCEXNLRMER, BUR~AGEDHMEMLTE, RRET
IR X S BERERCENG . BYVRERERNIMIHBREN, BEENRURTARMNREN, SHAEERSE
BRI RN, B8 R A =K B K S BAR BT 37

In 2024, CDB kept a sharp eye on the developments in international and domestic financial markets, intensified the risk management
and control of capital business with a prudent market risk appetite, effectively responded to emergency risk incidents, and coordinated
the integrated market risk management across the group. It improved the limit system for exchange rate risks, strengthened the currency
structure matching of assets and liabilities, and took the initiative to manage exchange rate risks through hedging transactions. It kept a
close track of changes in monetary policies both at home and abroad, continued to improve the asset-liability interest rate structure, and
took multiple measures to mitigate and control interest rate risks, to ensure that the interest rate risk level was generally under control.
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LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB consistently followed a prudent approach to liquidity risk management, and continuously improved its liquidity risk
management mechanisms, taking into account the sources and purposes of funding. It achieved a good matching and structural balance
between the total amount, maturity and schedule of assets and liabilities. It dynamically evaluated the impacts of multiple factors such
as loan recovery, bond issuance and payment of principal on liquidity risks to prevent various risks from turning into liquidity risks. It
leveraged various means and instruments such as cash flow gap analysis and liquidity risk indicators to identify, measure, monitor and
control liquidity risks across the whole process, so as to ensure proper liquidity reserves. It continued to improve liquidity risk stress
testing methods and extend scenario design dimensions, and all stress tests were passed in 2024. Besides, CDB also kept improving its
capabilities of managing emergency liquidity risks and carried out emergency drills on a regular basis to guarantee the liquidity security.
The liquidity risk indicators all met the regulatory requirements.
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OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB continued to reinforce the foundation for its operational risk management, faithfully and steadily implemented all
requirements of the Measures for the Administration of Operational Risk of Banking and Insurance Institutions, revised its measures
for the management of operational risks, formulated six supporting implementation rules, and formed a “1+6” institutional system
for operational risk management. The Bank carried out operational risk stress test, refined the requirements and procedures for the
management of the group’s risk incidents and their loss data, improved ways and methods of risk self-evaluation, and carried out
scenario evaluation on major changes, in order to improve the effectiveness of operational risk management. It also intensified the
monitoring of outsourcing risk indicators and organized outsourcing risk evaluations.

B B

COMPLIANCE RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB continued to improve its compliance management performance and compliance risk prevention and control capabilities
to ensure legal and compliant operations and sound business development. It enhanced the group’s whole-process compliance
management and intensified efforts to improve overall management and dynamic tracking of prior compliance management and make
analyses and research on regulatory rules to go deeper, turning the external regulations into its internal requirements, to improve its
compliance review mechanism. It strengthened the in-process compliance monitoring and reporting, duly disclosed regulatory penalties
of the group and published regulatory compliance risk alerts. It also improved the post-examination and correction to strengthen
the evaluation on the effectiveness of internal compliance examination and promote the implementation of regulatory comments
on correction. With a culture of rule of law and compliance, CDB carried out legal education and compliance training. It promoted
compliance and enforcement of regulations among staff members by enabling them to know and understand the regulations while
improving their compliance awareness in accordance with the law and regulations.
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MONEY LAUNDERING RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB upgraded its money laundering risk prevention and control capability in an all-round way to ensure safe and stable
operations. Adhering to the risk-based principle, it closely observed the newly-revised Anti-Money Laundering Law and updated
regulatory requirements to refine its anti-money laundering (AML) system. It promoted the application of money laundering risk
assessment results to strengthen risk control in high-risk sectors. Besides, CDB improved the tools and models of its money laundering

risk monitoring system to make its money laundering risk management more technologically sophisticated. With intensified AML post-
supervision and inspections, awareness campaigns, and training programs, CDB fostered a robust AML compliance culture.

— s
EEXNKESIE
REPUTATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2024%F , AT — P REFENKREELES . DRENF IR, MRZFIDEL, EHRAFZXEEIEKF. M
SRELMBTHIAER RIEE, RSN EITERE, FREEHE IR XAZ. HEFEXNREERRZIR,
REZNNLERS, HRATREFER.

In 2024, CDB further improved the full-coverage, whole-process operation mechanism for reputational risk management and made great
efforts to carry out training and drills, striving to improve its reputational risk management performance. It intensified efforts in monitoring,
analysis, research and evaluation of reputational risk to continuously improve the pre-evaluation processes. It organized inspections over

hidden risks to enable proactive risk prevention and control. It promoted the establishment of a reputational risk management system
and prudently responded to public opinions, thus maintaining a good image of the Bank.

A MG B IE
COUNTRY RISK MANAGEMENT

2024%F , RTBMNNERBUELFEBEN, FETEEANLERER, siASEN. 24 MENREE 5 XK
. MU EEE R XKERFRETE, BARMELZ OB ZMAMNMELAR, R CE B N RMEE. 2@%E
SLEANE R AER R, RATRELMNRERADTNZENH, REERLSRELR.



42 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

In 2024, CDB took effective measures to respond to changes in the international political and economic landscapes, continued to
upgrade its country risk management system, realizing dynamic monitoring, analysis, early warning and reporting of incidents with country
risk. It improved the methods for setting country risk limits to make the limits management and control better-informed and increase its
rigid constraints so as to continuously strengthen its country risk limits management. The Bank comprehensively implemented its country
risk appetite and country strategies, and systematically conducted special studies and quarterly reviews on major risks, ensuring the
sound and steady development of its international business.
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STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2024, CDB focused on its mandate and continued to improve the systems and mechanisms for supporting major strategies, key
industries and underdeveloped sectors. It continued to monitor on the driving factors of strategic risks, with no major strategic risk
incidents occurring during the year.
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In 2024, CDB continued to strengthen its IT risk management system and continuously improved the IT risk governance structure and
management procedures. It carried out IT risk evaluation, monitoring, control and reporting, went all out to promote the development
of business continuity management system, and completed the comprehensive business impact analysis, striving to improve its IT risk
management.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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In 2024, CDB, committing itself to making its financial services more politically-oriented and people-centered, focused on its core role as
a bank for infrastructure. Balancing economic, social and environmental benefits, the Bank actively promoted major national strategies,
key industries and underdeveloped sectors, providing high quality services for economic and social development and strong support for
advancing the GDI and implementing the UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

The CDB Sustainability Report 2024 will be released to communicate the Bank’s approaches and practices in performing corporate
social responsibility and boosting sustainable development.
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People’s Bank of China
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Financial Technology Development Award — Second Prize

Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacific (ADFIAP)
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Development Awards 2024: Infrastructure Development

China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd.
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Bond Market Leader of the Year

Outstanding Issuer of Policy-based Financial Bonds

Interbank Market Clearing House Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Clearing House)
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Outstanding Issuer of Green Bonds (Financial Bonds)

China Foreign Exchange Trade System
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Outstanding Post-trade Service Institution in the Interbank Foreign Exchange Market

Ministry of Justice and National Office for Law Popularization
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Outstanding Organization in the Mid-Term of China’s 8th Five-Year Plan for Publicity and
Education to Raise Public Awareness of the Law

Office of the Social Affairs Administration Coordination Group of Central State Organs
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An Outstanding Central State Organ for Promoting the Peaceful China Initiative

Office of the Landscaping Committee of Central State Organs
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Role Model of Nationwide Voluntary Tree Planting in the Capital

Central Committee of the Communist Youth League
Social Work Department of the CPC Central Committee
Ministry of Civil Affairs

Ministry of Water Resources

Ministry of Culture and Tourism

National Health Commission

China Disabled Persons’ Federation

CPC Guangdong Provincial Committee

Guangdong Provincial People’s Government
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Gold Medal of the 7th Chinese Youth Volunteer Service Project Competition
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RITAMER . EHRBRITHEENERHNER. SHRRITASRERURARXM SIREWE.

HAVANA, EMHMSREEMEERDEZREVIHENORERS, RRRRTIFLRT2024F12331BNEHLRITUS
PRRAR2024FEHEH RBRITEERRMAETRE.

—. EREITEANER

HNZRAEEM DT IHENORERNT THEITIHE. TITHREN EMS IS M SREFITORE" HoR—S @R T HA)
EXLENTHFE. ZRPEEMSITRRIEETN, FMIRZTHLRT, AETTRLERAEOEMEE. FNBE,
HMNFBMHEIHIERERRT Y. BH0, ARERTFITENRMT £,

=, XEHITSED

KEFITFMEAAMRBIRLFIET, NN KRN SREFHTHRAEZNEI. XLEFWMARX XM SREEERBTHEIT IR
HITBERAE S, RMNAWXEEMBERLERS N

HMNAEE PR EHXBETRIOC20T ¢

(=) ZEBEFMNER. RFRENYSERESENTBERIRETE

(Z) @MU EeEH



(— ) REBFRMBER. FRHRKENVSERERANOTBERREITE
2024%12A31H, ARARITEHRTRGBEP UHERMLAIT BN LK
REMBREMAART153,781.7912 7T, HNHIANTABIEBIRE
HERNART7,428.92127% ; RARENUEZIBRERDEHTAIARD
50,562.21127t, HNHIANFTUTRAGRRIMAART150.86127T. 2024
FEEHMEEPRANEMERAMER,. RIUKENMESBREBE
BREREESFEIT IART418.36127T.
MR BRTRPERREES. RPKENVYSEBRABDWIT AR
RARMTHALRGTEEZ(UATHR BER" ) RIB(DLSITENSE
225-&E TEMAFITE)NIE, XEMBERIRKER, EUSR
=B RSB IREME R EM-IT
FEEBTITEE MR RAMER. RFGFENYEBRERNERRKE
BVEHIANEREREEM, ER=NERRAEEETERBERREL.
S FUAMESR AL AT B R RN EF . RS RFFE N S BR
4R, EEELAMBEHEECZAEAELOMER. BLUREAR. BN
RBEMFNRSXESHONKE S EIEEATPERAES .
T ERRATEEEMBESNEAEREAMMNBEEEAE
(1) BEBERUEHXNRFEMLSIAND—NEE, EERENTE
A, AHEITEEXNXESE ;
(2) ERANKIZEM. FAMELEREBRENHHIRE ;
(3) ATHRBMETTENAFER. 2FEERANENRE ;
(4) F=MBRMRAAERRORRAE AT
FRBITHRIAIEBIRKITRBES TAAX BRI S
FERBRITOTPERREAITE, FRTEENER, ZATAENSH
ME, BMBEARLESNMTAGEMER, SREAETEEH
EAMERIR . RULEMNBEHL X BEHITER.
BXERSAMESRERTM. (£), MER. (—), HE/N (X)),
MEEN (Z4A), BEE/N (E+=Z ) RESEFZ. (Z2).
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BANFNAINR T 52 MERABR. HRAENYSERAE BTN

ERRETRIEX NN BB IO RETHERM, TEALE

() SERFECHEE. FHREE, UREEBREBHNRLEX
PO ERISHI ;

(2) SABUHTMEITHE. BEEDRE. SHET. EARRES
B0, RO LA ERRENE, SURAEN L EARHEE
2RI S A B R E 2

(3) ST B PR 0 X SRR R\ MR T LA 3 2 M AR X 40 0 28
#2405

() SESHBRBRRARROARISATNALE 48X 00
a2l ;

(6) SHEIHEEXNEERENBERH.

RIOPTORELRT, TEESE

() BNERTRMERRALINESEE, WASUH. BEE
B XS, BEXAANHEIRNARILET TFE. RIBER
ETHIOEE, LRI BERRTIR SRR T ERERSH
WAL,

(2) BFERANMSNEYSEBREMIMOEENEREE, RA)
WP T ERENEARREEEN. BOMNERLERAER
SCHIMTATOR PR A0 2

() WFHEEIE, ROERT EREARODFER. SHFRR
REGBRHTER, W57 RN BN,

(@) BAOBREE TEDTEFEROXREEORA, Q55 LR
AR ERE, UPEEARIMATEN, BINXEREEED
PHE R EAE R R AR ORI E BT ERIE,
BB IE L A S B

(6) WFE=MBMARRTALE, BIEREER, £ETERRE
FERAMERANMSER . ERADORIIFENE. Le
RIS ERBERBL NI ARASRBRITNET T
HORERE.

(Z)gmpEdra st
FERFOEHUTHTIBORLE. 2. ERREAOASESL
8. AFERIHIRESS, F2024E128310, AHMSRERE
HOMNAFEANEHUEROATARNERTRRITRT. R
REBERANEIEE N0 EHROR RS F 0 AR T94.24
fZEAART1,365.68125T ; Meoh, FFARITHRAW B AR,
REREENRBASHTEOBMUERORENENARF71.74
fz5.
FRBTBLITEAT AT AU EGRTREMNGHYS
ESOR

o HEMUEEFAEORN ;

o BUSSEMEIHNRXEINEENTEER

.« BEAEANENEIENRARBALRTERLTOTHER.
FERTEOUTENSBER, FRENEOUIEEHOTE, ¥
REAHN, FI, RIVGLOLERNEIHEH XTI IR
MXRBES AN, (Z+A), KHZE. (Z)AKEA. (E+E ).

HNHBARRBENEMUER, TROEHEFETERRE

(1) MEMUEEREH ST RIFIEAE XA H TS TRER
MEFATIFEAE

(2) BEHFEERIFETARXZEM THERNFINISURFF LR
T LA RIS

(3) EHMEIRZMTERBAFTANMIR, TRERRBEFERRTIEAR
BEAIRSNHREHOAES. BEORRKE, ULREBNEN
WERRBE T R SIFREMSST

(4) DITMIHEFRRITHEMUEERRRNGEE. FIEEEEASR
RENMABEMREBHIRMATE. RAFFEMLEIEFHEMNE
FIABITRERONKG R EMS ST HFERZTRERR, A
HERFLRTEEMUEIURTSTIEEREBAZREIEREAN
e,
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M. Hpfs2

EEENEMERAR. BMEEEEFLRT2024FFEREFRENES, EFAEEVSREMBNMOEITRS

BNV ESRELARNEFUHBAABRZHMER, RNEANEMEELREAELANEILESEL.

FEFNHEMERERNET, ANUFERRZHEMER, FUtEIES, EREAMEREEEMSREIXNERITIES THEL
HERGFEERT —HHEUFFEERNER.

ETHEMNESATHIE, NRENBEAMEEFEERER, RNNIAMREZEEX. £AXHTHE, KN ETERFE2RE.

h. EEEMGEENUSRRNET

EEEARRBAEVESITENNAERG M SRE, FEIMARRE, Higit. JTMEPLZENREE, DENSRENE
ERTEEIERSBNERER.

ERHVSREN, EEEARTEARRITHESELER, RESHELETRXNEIM(NER ), HzAFLLERKR, K
WHEITER . KILEERH T EMIME TR,

BEERARRBEFRRITOMSRELE.

7o EMSIHImI I SRR E T RISEE
HMUBEGRNVSREBUREAGFAERATHEIBRSENEAERRANAERLE, HFEACSERITELNFITRE. FER
IERSKFIFRIE, BHAEMEZBFIHENATHREITER -—ERERFENCELN. BIRTEHRTHEERHRSH, WR
FETMPERERICESRERTEZNY ZSREEBEREMSREFLHOELFIRE, WBEANERIERDN.
ERBEIDENVATHEITTENZRES, FOSBRWAE, FRFRVAEE. B, HOBRTUTIE .

(=) RFMTEHTFREESFERSEOVSRRERNERNE ; RITHZEREITEF U X LN, FRETS . EHAEIHE
B, EARKRETERNEM. ATFERTRILREE. ME. WEBRF. ERFEAEZEFARENZ L, RELNBTHE
BESMNEARERONLS T RELNE THERSHOERERIONE.

(Z) TRERITHAXOAEES, DIRIHASHHEITER.

(=) N EERERATBORB AL ST RAAX K E NS E N

(0) EERERERFELERENBIAMSEEL. BN, RIFERNMNETEE, BUYESENTRRITHEEEERNTEERE
ROEDHRBEAREBGFAEEATHEEFHE L. NRENBLEERWNNFEERTHEN, FIHENERLNERITRESR
RIEREREAZIBEVSRETOERKE  WRKBEARD, HNEIALRELREERL. HNNELETREFRITRER
TRFHER. AT, RRNETEBERTESBIFLIRITAEFELE.

(B)IFNMMESRENSATIR. EUNAS, HIFNUSRRESARRMBEXZZMNE.

(7)) EARRITHEERU SEHNNMSEERMAESD . ELANEITIERE, UNUWSRREREFUTERL. HNARES. BEHMH
TEART, FXNEITRRIAIBLEHET.

HMNEREEITHHNEITEE. NEZHMEREITRMSEEIMHTARB, SEDBHNERITHIRALESENAEIZS

R

HMNZEeE TSR MEAXNRVERZER@AERREHER, F5RERAETENGIEANZWHANIBLENAEXRMNE

=T, DARAAXBIBTSERERE ( W& )

MNERERBDBIHETD, HNBEEMLEEMNARYSREFHARAEZTE, AMARRERITED RINERFITRE PEREX

LT, BRIPERZNZELEATFRBEXLERM, SAERISEELT, NRSERPMERIHREPABEETERNAERFEREILHE

ARMBH EFEREL, HONBERNERITHREPERBIZET.

PEDEMSITID : BEZ
(MEAKA)

hEedbR

PEDEMEITID : TRH

—_OZREMBZ+ANH FEEMSITID - 280
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BHRIRITR™ A

2024 12R 318 (BRAH XS, SPMBNHIARTELT)

A EEH T

N& RFHRFRBITHRIM (—) 71,882 98,366 71,327 97,823
FHE LRI (=) 119,558 143,422 168,067 140,421
FEARS (=) 477,735 544,247 477,735 554,200
PTEERE~ (m) 3,903 3,569 3,465 2,893
ENBE SR> (H) 598,960 477,525 598,848 477,456
RN GER AR (7X) 14,688,772 14,244,743 14,197,243 13,756,973
SREA

XHM A~ (£) 739,694 902,061 509,580 675,568

AR # (/\) 537,881 700,985 531,425 696,356

HARGAUIRE () 973,602 1,167,521 937,379 1,131,498

Hitbi s TREZER (+) 9,858 5,460 2,000 2,000
KEARAN IR F2 (+—) 3,479 522 531,506 533,050
& E %~ (+=) 148,182 133,253 14,527 14,529
gL 388 1,057 385 997
TR R~ (+=) 1,910 1,887 1,606 1,586
BE (+m) 723 713 = -
BB HE (+%) 196,093 192,263 175,137 172,582
Hth# ™ (+7%) 45,721 36,928 14,365 12,450

ARt 18,618,341 18,654,622 18,234,595 18,270,382
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BHRRITETAGE - &

2024F12R31H (BRAFERN. EPBEAIIHAARTEST)

AER oy
Bk % H Ath & @A FER I (+t) 1,976,479 2,506,350 1,982,415 2,516,386
= BUF A H fh & R fE K (+/\) 606,473 673,951 289,930 385,980
FARE (+n) 19,707 43,265 10,576 27,617
i 4 Wik (Z+) 2,883 2,621 = -
PTEERR AR (m) 9,291 8,271 8,434 8,025
S B S R R =K (=+—) 10,432 17,090 = 1,132
R U7 5R (Z+2) 787,725 863,254 966,946 1,017,412
Rz AR T3 (Z+=) 3,962 3,627 3,077 2,810
R (Z+m) 22,785 38,391 21,215 36,785
it s fz (Z+H) 15,640 20,733 15,396 20,489
ERTTHRFIESH (Z+x) 13,328,529 12,724,297 13,286,856 12,679,504
B FTERL A 6R (+&) 6,631 6,589 - -
Hffafs (Z+t) 53,861 66,353 29,503 31,331
A& 16,844,398 16,974,792 16,614,348 16,727,471
EEERE
KB HE A (Z+N\) 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
HARRIR (Z+) 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hitm sl (=+) 22,375 (4,740) 32,085 8,541
BHENR (=+—) 244,369 229,477 244,369 229,477
— R & (=+2) 285,230 278,378 279,278 272,496
ROEFE (=+=) 589,567 545,728 461,072 428,954
HEFEBASRAENGAGIT 1,745,439 1,652,741 1,620,247 1,542,911
DERE RN (=+m) 28,504 26,989 = -
AEEN@ AT 1,773,943 1,679,730 1,620,247 1,542,911
AGFATEEN G R 18,618,341 18,654,522 18,234,595 18,270,382

J5 B T 55 HR AR BT A AW 53R RAGARLER

AMEMEHTINRAESE

EERERA. BEFK K TEMRETK MM RITA
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2024 (BRBEETWAIN, TBEMHYHIARTERT)
AEH 17
—. Bl 172,996 209,658 145,407 167,316
F 2N (=+H) 141,105 160,313 123,922 141,673
FEWAN 613,056 642,040 584,187 614,095
F B (471,951) (481,727) (460,265) (472,422)
FEHERAERBEAN (=+%) 409 530 122 164
FEHRMEEAN 1,048 1,450 762 844
FEHERAEXH (639) (920) (640) (680)
REWE (=++) 25,968 28,918 21,322 19,121
He . WKEMESELWHRERE 160 69 109 -
DU SR LA B B AL A 5 (186) . .
L&

AAMELHHRE (=+N\) (9,963) (5,127) (662) (3,760)
CHRHE (=t+h) (4,659) 4,522 (3,316) 4,839
N ON (m+) 16,138 15,420 198 307
HethUas 3,998 5,082 3,821 4,972
Z. Bl (67,367) (107,299) (60,123) (83,330)
Bi & XMt A0 (mH+—) (4,573) (4,689) (4,291) (4,405)
W& RERR (m+=) (13,941) (13,501) (11,761) (11,292)
ERBERSK (m+=) (40,070) (80,089) (44,065) (67,557)
HAR = RE#R K (218) (1,575) (4) (76)
HAthlv &5 R A (M) (8,565) (7,445) ) -
=, BlFE 105,629 102,359 85,284 83,986
o E SN 36 94 25 24
o B (86) (76) (56) (67)
. e R 105,579 102,377 85,253 83,943
R TS A (m+%) (16,619) (14,960) (10,140) (10,136)
. O&EFE 88,960 87,417 75,113 73,807
HE TR S RA &% FE 86,904 85,283 75,113 73,807
DERERES 2,056 2,134 - -
N, Httg SR AR R (=+) 27,222 8,378 23,544 7,184
HEFEBASIMAENEMBEEWENTE 28 27,115 8,315 23,544 7,184
(—) MEAREES XH#RANEBE SRR 2,596 18 91 110
1LEHITEREZHITUEN 91 118 91 118
2HMNATERRAANEES 2,505 (100) = (8)
(Z) MERESEHRENHAMBE SRS 24,519 8,297 23,453 7,074
1 H MG E A R MEES 25,142 7,048 23,901 6,833
2 HMBPIRAEAREAES (820) 85 (111) 95
3R SIRFRITEZM 531 1,359 (337) 147
4. 5 (334) (195) = ©)
JAETF OB R A H AL & U2 TR % 107 63 = -
t. GElkEEaH 116,182 95,795 98,657 80,991
HETFEATIMBEENGEREBM 114,019 93,598 98,657 80,991
HEFLHEBRENEZEWE S 2,163 2,197 = -

T B A 55 R o B A A Y S5 4R R A A AR 4
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BHMAEEN DTN

2024 (BRBAFEH STRMHHARTEATT)

AR TFRARMEENT
—. 20241 B1ARE 421,248 182650  (4740) 229477 278378 545728 1,652,741 26,989 1,679,730
Z. AEBRTHER
(=) %A = - - - - 86,904 86,904 2,056 88,960
(Z) e (=+) - - 27115 - - - 27115 107 27,222
SEREEH - - 21115 - - 86,904 114,019 2,163 116,182
(Z) EERARD = = = = = - - (73) (73)
() FiEoE
1TREBRAR (=) - - - 14,892 - (14,892 = = -
2RI — MR & (=+2) - - - = 6,852 (6,852) = = =
IHFAAENHE (=+=2) = = = = - (218321)  (21,321) (575)  (21,896)
=. 2024512A31ALH 421,248 182650 _ 22,375 244,369 285230 589,567 1745439 _ 28,504 1,773,943

RETEAAMEERA

—. 20231 B1HEH 421,248 182650  (13,098) 214,825 260425 513,776 1579,826 25755 1,605,581
Z. AEHETHER
(—) %78 - - - - - 85283 85283 2,134 87,417
(Z) Hfa G E ke (=1) - - 8,315 - - - 8,315 63 8,378
SARHARE - - 8,315 - - 85283 93,598 2197 95795
(Z) FREERARD - - - - - - - (254) (254)
(1) FEoE
1TREBRAR (=+-) - - - 14,652 - (14,652 - - -
2RIM—MRB A& (=+2) - - - - 17,953  (17,953) - - -
3MEHEENSE (=+=) - - - - - (20,683)  (20,683) (709)  (21,392)
(7) Hfth - - 43 - - (43) - - -
=. 2023512831 HEH 421,248 182650 _ (4740) 229477 278378 545728 1,652,741 _ 26,989 1,679,730

T B 0 55 4R A B VE A AR Y S AR R B A AR 4)
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WITATREEN T LR

2024F E (BRBHIWAN, TEMHYAARTEAT)

—. 20241 F1ERH 421248 182,195 8,541 229,477 272,496 428,954 1,542,911
Z. AEEETHER
(—) %7 - - - - - 75,113 75,113
(Z) el (=+) - - 23,544 - - - 23,544
SRBHERH - - 23,544 - - 75,113 98,657
(=) AR
1RRERAR (= - = = 14,892 = (14,892) =
2R — N R (=+2) = = = = 6,782 (6,782) =
BXEEMNHNE (=+= = = = = = (21,321) (21,321)
=. 202412831 ARH 421248 182,195 32,085 244,369 279,278 461,072 1,620,247
L WRA SRR UOR ARSSKE  BROR —RARER ASER &
—. 20231 A1EHRH 421,248 182,195 1,314 214,825 255,123 407,898 1,482,603
. FEHRTHEH
(—) %F58 - - - - - 73,807 73,807
(Z) Efhra s (=+) - - 7,184 - - - 7,184
SElE S - - 7,184 - - 73,807 80,991
(=) FEHE
1TRBMAERAR (=+—) - - - 14,652 - (14,652) -
2R — RN A (=+2) - - - - 17,373 (17,373) -
3XFIEENDE (=+=) - - - - - (20,683)  (20,683)
() HAh - - 43 - - (43) -
=. 2023512A31HEH 421,248 182,195 8,541 229,477 272,496 428,954 1,542,911

T B I 55 R o B A AR Y S5 4R AR AR ER 4
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BHERRITHUERER

2024 E  (BRBEFXMIN, €MENHIARTEIIT)
AEH 1T

Lp=TAN 20244 20234 20244 20234

—. REEHFENRERE .
TFI R SRR TN E] A SR IR % R D B 141,812 29,411 4,429 29,388
) b &RV AR £ 418050 - 51,111 - 2,396
= HAth S REALAGHR R 25RO R 48,757 - 58,657 -
BEBFR. FEHERBESHIAE 597,594 630,265 563,879 590,132
KB HMSKEENEXNUS 189,478 111,958 171,232 82,505
ZEFEHAETNNT 977,641 822,745 798,197 704,421
R G R AN BT O% G NN (491,657) (408,620) (491,280) (418,879)
= b RGN R 25508 (23,265) - (16,762) -
6 H fh S REA A 7R % I AR - (55,263) = (60,263)
& P IE RN AL 17 R IR B (604,982) (339,545) (584,117) (307,518)
RAFR. FEHARMALHIAE (65,807) (82,029) (67,334) (73,926)
INERIEARIZANAS (8,178) (7,868) (6,841) (6,612)
H AR S INE TR (85,047) (96,924) (72,202) (81,911)
IMEMEZEFNHEXNNS (40,162) (27,146) (10,185) (22,983)
ZEFDHUETH /T (1,319,098) (1,017,395) (1,248,721) (972,092)
ZEFRDFENAERE R (%) (341,457) (194,650) (450,524) (267,671)

Z. BREHFENRERE .
W ERFE R IS 1,589,082 1,564,244 1,533,760 1,469,504
BERARGREINIE 65,822 66,101 72,738 76,123
WEFATREAME B AR &5 E - - - -
BE R SRAFDHEXNAE 1,402 2,423 853 268
BHREHA RN DT 1,656,306 1,632,768 1,607,351 1,545,895
BARZANRS (1,208,945) (1,473,526) (1,147,619) (1,361,657)
ﬂl’@ﬁ:mfiﬁ TR R = MH MK IR = A (23,652) (21,551) (1,760) (679)

Ve

BEEDHUETH /T (1,232,597) (1,495,077) (1,149,379) (1,362,336)
BEREH=ENRETRE S 423,709 137,691 457,972 183,559

=, BRFHFENRERE .
R R EIN & - . - _
Heip . FAIRKDBERREETRENAE - - = -
RITRFIEFWREINI & 2,374,527 2,377,639 2,365,081 2,369,010
BB FME G SR ERKEINNE 511,770 102,536 262,746 104,992
BB HMBEERENEXNIAE - 1,458 = -
%ﬁlﬁzdzijbﬁm..)\d\fr 2,886,297 2,481,633 2,627,827 2,474,002
REXMANRL (2,349,390) (1,898,590) (2,115,743) (1,883,270)
SERM. FAREATEXANIE (430,054) (409,734) (416,917) (407,258)
HAp . FASXMAAEDEBEROBRF . FE (525) (365) = -
XA HMEERENFERNAS (2,471) (1,714) = -
EREHUETRH/NT (2,781,915) (2,310,038) (2,532,660) (2,290,528)
ERFDTENASRE R 104,382 171,595 95,167 183,474
M. CERTHMRERAESENIRIF 2,352 7,416 1,143 3,354
. RERAEENY ARG 188,986 122,052 103,758 102,716
m. EMRERASENIERD 788,435 666,383 806,916 704,200
N, ERAERAEFEMIRE (M+7x) 977,421 788,435 910,674 806,916
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REFAFAVAIZIZER HI3%IT B E RN, Z2%ITH 4t 7788 M.
t ERFARSAHEE
MANEFEENEZFRIEABERIFTMAT:

EF€mAERRTAS A E KB BBUEH AR ™94,877 100%EEHE
. _ FiEHWFHEE. . .
EFERESHRAS o E AR ?ﬁﬁﬁg"f&;ﬁ AR 50,000 100%H 454
PEERESHRAT o K B EeRAREE AR 32,548 84.99% Bl 4 H
EFEMEEESERAS B KB jE%%ik%&ﬁ AR 30,000 100%HIEHFE
BRAEE. &
EREAERNFRAS o E K B e ARM12,642 64.40%EHEIFH
EFFIES RO FRA S E X IE % AER9,500 BO%EEIHE
EMERFRAT FEE®E BRER 451,584 100%EEHE

REANF ARG RZERAULG FRAEERRELA. FT024EE AEARFEEBEAR T SEREANRTTEL
FEAFRH (2023 E. ).
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I\ W 4R 3R E E 1 B E
(—) REREBHRRITRI

AR T
TE | 2024f12F31H  2023%12A31H  2024412A31H 20234127318
EERE 2 2 2 2
FRUR R BT 71,880 98,364 71,325 97,821
Ait 71,882 98,366 71,327 97,823
( Z) 7F R ] Ml SR
ZEH T
mE | 2024f12[31H  2023%12A31H  2024412A31H 20234127318
BFRIEAEMRT 83,120 90,664 142,370 106,352
FROR A ERIT SR 1,232 651 1,178 637
BRI EART 34,393 51,879 24,525 33,435
FRURIMER TSR - 70 = -
it 118,745 143,264 168,073 140,424
RITFA 863 217 - -
Ait 119,608 143,481 168,073 140,424
B BEEE
. B (50) (59) (6) (3)
TKEMNE 119,558 143,422 168,067 140,421

Fo024F12H31H, AEFABFME WK AR M ERAARTI43.33M27, TEHAEAFATATRTERNERRRALT
MERTETHEERRBERASMRIES (20235F 128310 ARM169.64127T).

(Z)FHEE

AR T

HE | 2024512A31H 2023412310 2024412H31H  2023412A31H

FIIE A EART 436,462 480,281 436,462 480,281
RERE M IERIT SR 3,000 15,000 3,000 24,900
FRURIME A RTT 37,977 48,108 37,977 48,108
N 477,439 543,389 477,439 553,289
Rz itF S 838 1,167 838 1,220
&it 478,277 544,556 478,277 554,509
. B (542) (300) (542) (300)
B - 9) - (9)

T E & 477,735 544,247 477,735 554,200

(M) fTEEMA~RAGR
1. fTEEmMIA
PAESRMIAEMNER/EXETITUANE~ ARFRARINNE ~HARNAANERGILREM, EFF—ERFIZIRNRKIA
EREFLHFAANE, A —ERRRAKAMAROERNESTHARL. TESRTIENARNEBESEAALETREX
N HFRFINOLRETENRANTRL, BENAEARRTEMNI AN AZ0E, XL e AR R B RRAEE.
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FTARFAERE, ARAFENTEERIENGR/BXEHREARMET RO T -

A EH 20245 12H31H

CERLGFETH

RHE# (BFETXEHFERER) 343,258 2,923 (7,839)

SO ERF SN EIR 30,192 = (427)
N7y 373,450 2,923 (8,266)
FEETETR

FIR 5 # 50,785 980 (1,025)
it 50,785 980 (1,025)
&1t 424,235 3,903 (9,291)
gk,

20235128310

CEGETR

BMEHR (BFEIXEHAERR) 445,774 2,269 (7,197)

SN ERFN ST EAAR 1,278 19 -
N7 447,052 2,288 (7,197)
FEETETR

FIR F # 159,477 1,281 (1,074)

F ZHAAX 5,135 - -
It 164,612 1,281 (1,074)
&1t 611,664 3,569 (8,271)
Jrapss 20244£12H31H

CERLGETH

RHER (BFETXEHFERER) 310,021 2,871 (7,412)

SNCIZ HAFI ST #AAR 4 = -
N7 310,025 2,871 (7,412)
FEETETR

FIE 5 # 29,729 594 (1,022)
N7 29,729 594 (1,022)
&It 339,754 3,465 (8,434)
gk,

20235128310

CRGETHR
RHEHR (BEIXEHAERR) 424,563 2,090 (6,958)
SNTIERFN ST EAAR 52 1 -
It 424,615 2,091 (6,958)
FEETETR
2 # 138,983 802 (1,067)
F ZHAAX 5,135 - -
It 144,118 802 (1,067)

&it 568,733 2,893 (8,025)
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2. EfSit
(1) A2RMEEH

AEAFAFERRERMNFEREHSHENAANEENHTERRE, REHME ALKARTHATTHILEHES JT
FHREOERR REKER F. FL024F12831HNBAXAE HARM87.58{27T (20235 12H31H . ARM75.421Z7t) .

AEAEPIEANAANETENEERNERERXNBE RS RBENLAANEEHNREPHIANER LRSS = EORE
HREK.

2 HerReaEH

AERFBREERERMNFAXEHSENUASAETMHTERRE. WEHME hAKEAFBER LS PEHEMBITRNG
B FAXXERAEREREEMAERNCREHNSENASRETHHETERRE REHPMEALATTEFLATIERER
HERMERAIRTHNGES. ARTEHERESRE INCEPERARANIEEHNSHNASRETHHTELHRE. HEH
MENEBRRBLZHEEMINCHO, b, FIREHREHIV S F2024FE12831THMNE X AL N ART204.81127T (20235124
31H:. ARM155.99127T), KM BEHREH I K T2024F12831H B X KL A ART68.61127T (2023 12H31H . AR M3.401Z
JT), B E# WS F2024F12831BE X AE H ARM301.881Z5T (20235 12H31H . ARMOZTT).

F2024F12R31 8 AKFACZH AR MEARENNSREEMTAAANER N~ LN RIHRENRER TN = EHHR
HEMYAREK (20235128318 F).

(R) INBREERMBE™

A& AT

HIBRMFIR
s 599,008 477,507 598,764 477,284
Hith 1,161 1,161 -
NG 600,169 478,668 598,764 477,284
Rzt F S 84 172 84 172
&it 600,253 478,840 598,848 477,456
B B EEE
Ho E—ME - - - -
BN - - - -
EZMER (1,293) (1,315) -
NG (1,293) (1,315) = -
KEMNE 598,960 477,525 598,848 477,456

FEATENRERZ 7 TREMERVER T +H— (I ERYPKE.

(73) R BERFBK

1. EHBERMBERSHEROT .

AREH AT
TiE | 2024%12A31H  2023%12A31H | 2024F12H31H  2023%12F31H
PARE S P ARTH B AR 14,635,287 14,190,321 14,143,758 13,702,551
UapMETEEETHITALSHHRE 53,485 54,422 53,485 54,422

&t 14,688,772 14,244,743 14,197,243 13,756,973
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(1) DRERRATEMERERMERDHAMOT .

AEEH AT
S mE | 20MF1RASIA 0NFIAIA | 20F12ANE 200F12A%E
E-Y N CET 15,134,606 14,646,153 14,821,893 14,327,107
N BEEREH M 210,177 203,494 = -
NIt 15,344,783 14,849,647 14,821,893 14,327,107
RitFIA 33,396 36,919 31,470 34,983
&it 15,378,179 14,886,566 14,853,363 14,362,090
Hi E—ME 13,384,681 13,372,962 12,964,008 12,949,557
EHER 1,788,375 1,325,842 1,688,697 1,226,631
EZMER 205,123 187,762 200,658 185,902
AR EEE
He . E—HME& (232,493) (238,554) (221,951) (230,177)
B (350,334) (329,057) (329,726) (302,302)
EZME (160,065) (128,634) (157,928) (127,060)
it (742,892) (696,245) (709,605) (659,539)
WE N E 14,635,287 14,190,321 14,143,758 13,702,551
@) UAamETEEHETIITALIRANEAMERNER DO T .
AEH X6y
S mE | 0MF1RACIA 0NFIAIA | 202F12ANE 200F12A%A
BRRRMBREE 53,576 54,855 53,576 54,855
NRMETE (91) (433) (91) (433)
&1t 53,485 54,422 53,485 54,422

FEARERPYOREAAENRREME+— () BRYFHE.
2. RSB EAEZEE

EH

20241818 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
M R F5 .

REE-MER 16,406 (16,406) - =
BEETHER (15,181) 25,020 (9,839) -
HBEE=MEK (41) (5,661) 5,702 -
i 60,487 8,578 4,337 73,402
IR (38,089) 30,722 38,106 30,739
F HAsk i E (30,076) (21,874) (5,282) (57,232)
2 - - (6,089) (6,089)
B 2 4% 55 TR - - 5,676 5,676
HAithZEwh 433 898 (1,180) 151

2024E12831H 232,493 350,334 160,065 742,892
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gk,

20234111 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203

B ER 675 .

BEE MK 46,845 (46,845) - -
HEE MR (14,613) 34,105 (19,492) -
BEE=ZNE - (5,727) 5,727 -
wig 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
EFiItE (26,283) 109,287 2,937 85,941

Bk 4 Bl (21,208) (22,939) (7,815) (51,962)
2R W - - (11,210) (11,210)
Y|l 2 & SE BT K - - 5,205 5,205
HthEz 431 1,334 (1,855) (90)
20234128311 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
4T

20241 F1H 230,177 302,302 127,060 659,539
M ER 5 F5 .

BEE—MR 11,772 (11,772) = =
BEE_MR (14,691) 24,530 (9,839) =
BEEZMER (25) (5,329) 5,354 =
i 60,327 8,568 4,333 73,228
EHitE (36,712) 30,333 37,485 31,106
B Ak 4 B (29,326) (19,798) (5,044) (54,168)
ZIHEE - - (6,061) (6,061)
= B A TR - - 5,676 5,676
HithEzh 429 892 (1,036) 285
20244128311 221,951 329,726 157,928 709,605
gbk.

20234111 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229
B R 75 .

BEE-MER 44,145 (44,145) - -
BEEMR (12,495) 30,878 (18,383) -
BREE=-MR - (5,257) 5,257 -
i 42,476 4,872 - 47,348
EHitE (24,214) 92,428 2,821 71,035
B Egegm| (19,744) (20,687) (7,459) (47,890)
PR - - (11.112) (11,112)
Y E A% $E TE R - - 5,205 5,205
HthEz) 405 1,264 (1,945) (276)

2023%E12/31H 230,177 302,302 127,060 659,539
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I BT ECERESENEAEN (LNBARE FORKENER)  ATEARIIERNEARKEZE R MSH
BEFRZMBEREE R FNR. F=NRZBRERE, MEANSBERELEZOITEEMAE 12D B NEANFLHAMN

HERREZ B AR,

FEEAEAMBR—EBEMBR-ENBR=ZNRAESARTE975.78/Z T, B EMAEAEART646.821Z7T. ik —# =
ME=MRRAEART308.58ZT, HEEBMAEEZFARTIBAIIT MR ZHBENR-—HNTRAEARTE91.00Z7T.
BRERDBREEEARTIS3.60(ZT: MIBR=#BENR-FIRELEART146.48{2T, B R D BEEZARTI9.091Z7T.

3. MEAGYEMERE R RMNT

MERZASIAREH, WIZERE DX DBHP TR N T U BARTNEENTRIER, MRED 2 B THREH, Wiz

REMRIIW L D@,

A &M

A

e stmwm otame s ks e

2024%12H31H

(e EN 2,566 430 1,190 10,739 14,925
RIE T 1,632 832 752 743 3,959
F $E 4R BT R
AR GERK 8,884 3,230 6,067 13,822 32,003
BB GER 23,966 140 3,457 5,673 33,236
ait 37,048 4,632 11,466 30,977 84,123
2023%12H31H
(B EN 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147
RIUETER 615 6,786 2,177 672 10,250
e ZRAE
IR EE R 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 46,271
B TER 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&it 36,724 12,173 36,656 28,185 113,738
AT A

r otawm otame mes owar  aw

2024%12H31H

FEREX 2,491 101 1,110 10,739 14,441
RIETEK 1,632 832 684 743 3,891
HHBIR ¥ FE R
IR GERK 7,963 3,078 6,067 13,210 30,318
BRGER 23,966 140 3,457 5,673 33,236
&1t 36,052 4,151 11,318 30,365 81,886
20234 12A31H
FEAER 976 49 20,487 11,470 32,982
FRAE BE3R 615 6,718 2,177 672 10,182
e ZNAE
HEHRTEK 15,033 1,562 10,355 11,042 37,992
B TER 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&it 29,558 12,105 35,612 27,951 105,226
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(€)X SHHEEmME~

IR EEH

TiE

UZ S ENHENERESREMUA RN EITE
BETIT NG HiR &R~

BURF B A BUR LS T35 1,711 2,122 1,711 2,122
SRVE RS 18,848 41,457 18,746 40,335
A F i 3,137 10,299 2,400 9,555
ERZ:2: 75,004 117,890 75,004 117,890
BEEET 291 321 = -
BRERESHRE 10,717 13,294 = -
BT RFTRIER M = & 3,003 3,743 - -
MEHETH 626,983 712,537 411,719 505,268
N 739,694 901,663 509,580 675,170
EEMARMETTE BHTEHHIT N\ L HRIREM
SRR
NE R - 384 - 384
REERITR - 14 - 14
INF - 398 - 398
&it 739,694 902,061 509,580 675,568
() AU 3%
A& AT
HE | 2020%12H31H  2023%12F31H  2024%12H31H  2023412A31H
B ROEBUR LG R 55 441,896 592,081 441,896 592,041
SRR 360 240 = -
ANEMRS 93,631 105,936 92,731 105,532
K= RIS 18 20 = -
EHEH I R H A 6,471 5,453 =
N 542,376 703,730 534,627 697,573
RZitF S 5,923 8,888 5,853 8,858
&it 548,299 712,618 540,480 706,431
He R 546,787 710,920 540,480 706,431
EMER 26 28 = -
E=ZMER 1,486 1,670 =
B WEEE
Hip E—HB (9,061) (10,129) (9,055) (10,075)
B (5) (6) = -
E=MER (1,352) (1,498) = -
NG (10,418) (11,633) (9,055) (10,075)
T @ & 537,881 700,985 531,425 696,356
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1. AU REE ST
KEH

202451818 10,129 6 1,498 11,633
iz 3 = 33 36
BHItE 209 (1) = 208
B Ak 4 B (1,395) - - (1,395)
A k] = = (179) (179)
SMEITEZER 115 - - 115
20244128311 9,061 5 1,352 10,418
gk

202341 H1R 10,209 - 1,806 12,015
BB 57 .

BBELE MR - 13 (13) -
wig 45 - - 45
EHFITE (247) 6 - (241)
BHs s E (51) (13) (295) (359)
ST ZR 173 - - 173
20234128310 10,129 6 1,498 11,633

20245%181H 10,075 = = 10,075
EITE 209 - = 209
B s 4k A (1,344) - - (1,344)
T E= 1 115 - - 115
20245128318 9,055 - - 9,055
k.

20231818 10,188 - - 10,188
TR (246) - - (246)
BRG] (40) - - (40)
SN EER 173 - - 173
2023%12H31H 10,075 - - 10,075

i ERTEEEOREANE SORARESHNEN. ANBREBITHR/BRNERREES,
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() B fmass 55
AEH T
S omA | 204FI2ASIE 0BF12A3A | 2024F12A3E  202012A01H
BUR RO BUR LG (R 55 666,939 551,841 644,804 527,032
SRV GRE 15,932 9,381 12,076 8,231
AT RE 159,773 222,894 153,806 215,801
=S 503 166 = -
Bk FFE 121,492 373,033 118,004 370,639
NG 964,639 1,157,315 928,690 1,121,703
RiTH A 8,963 10,206 8,689 9,795
Ait 973,602 1,167,521 937,379 1,131,498
Hep B 973,600 1,167,504 937,379 1,131,498
424 - - - -
B 2 17 = -

T024FE, ARARATHMENRAESMREDZERBNSHFFAEK (2023F K. [).
1. Hip i R E & EE
A& H

20241 /81H 236 - 1,326 1,562
b 26 - - 26
EFITE (102) - - (102)
E) sk 4% B (71) = (156) (227)
W E - - (1,027) (1,027)
20244E12H31H 89 = 143 232
gk,

202318 1H 128 - 1,324 1,452
iz 84 - - 84
BT E 59 - 10 69
E) Ak 4% m (39) - 8) (43)
2023412831A 236 - 1,326 1,562

20241 B1H 221 - - 221
iz 25 - - 25
EHitE (102) = = (102)
E HAsh 4% m (71) - - (71)

2024%12831H 73 = = 73
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| %
b
o

20231 81R 95 - - 95
i 79 - - 79
EITE 59 - - 59
BHs s E (12) - - (12)
2023%128 310 221 - - 221

T BEMITETEOESAMRE SURAEESRNEN. ANBEBIHY BN ERAEES.
(1) Ett s TR H

AEH Fi ey
A 6,055 3,460 = -
JE A AgAX 3,803 2,000 2,000 2,000
A1t 9,858 5,460 2,000 2,000

AERABEZRHUNB TARTNTHHEBEEANAANEHTEEE R AR BEEREANSRAS, FLEN, Z5ERE
TERARINTARBGAERENAANELTNBASKED LK.

(=) KEIRIUIR R

&R AT
S mA | F12ASIA 20BF12A3A | 204F2A3E  202012A01E
X F AR E - - 547,550 552,003
WEEEMEE SRR 3,479 522 2,909 -
&it 3,479 522 550,459 552,003
W BEEE - - (18,953) (18,953)
KEMNE 3,479 522 531,506 533,050

Fo02412F31 B, AEANBERNAEL Y HRATRE, AR FATORAREESSMAR LT (20234128318, B).
AFETBEFATRAEE, BRIt AEANBEERSELVHRALTREA,
(Tt EEE™

AEH piy
BE 201,730 180,466 27,502 25,772
=R (48,041) (41,578) (12,985) (11,876)
REAEE (5,517) (6,268) = -
& E 7 A TR 10 633 10 633

&it 148,182 133,253 14,527 14,529
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1. AERFREE. RIHFIERAEESESETITNOT:

‘
i
=]

RiE

20232125318 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 180,466
2024412531 H 25,126 10,116 45,773 120,715 201,730
Rit#rA

20232125318 (9,499) (3,143) (5,192) (23,744) (41,578)
20244125318 (10,680) (3,863) (7,106) (26,392) (48,041)
BEES

20234125318 (73) (17) (845) (5,333) (6,268)
20244E12H531H (73) (36) (861) (4,547) (5,517)
KEME

20234125311 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 132,620
20244E12H31H 14,373 6,217 37,806 89,776 148,172

| -ﬁ-
-\
gi

EE

2023%E12A31H 22,472 3,198 102 25,772
2024F12831H 24,053 3,364 85 27,502
KitirH

2023%E12A31H (9,092) (2,692) (92) (11,876)
2024F12831H (10,243) (2,667) (75) (12,985)
WENME

2023%F12831H 13,380 506 10 13,896
2024%12831H 13,810 697 10 14,517

(+=) ZRHE
TRE=RE. RITHHESLEIIRMOT:

|
i
=

R{E

2023%12831H 1,238 2,695 3,933
2024%12831H 1,279 2,920 4,199
R

2023%12831H (404) (1,642) (2,046)
20244E12831H (446) (1,843) (2,289)
T EME

20234128 31H 834 1,053 1,887
20244E12831H 833 1,077 1,910
FIRMIHEIR (F) 20-35 1-23
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AT

S mR L aeRR k| &b
FRf&
2023%12H31H 930 2,361 3,291
20244128 31H 979 2,531 3,510
Kt
20234128 31H (319) (1,386) (1,705)
20244128311 (357) (1,547) (1,904)
WEMNE
2023%12831H 611 975 1,586
202451283118 622 984 1,606
FIRMIHERR (£F) 20-35 1-23

(+m) &%

‘
i
&

TKHE A 1,257 1,247
BB EAEE (534) (534)
WEMNE 723 713

AREEAFEOTHELHN, AT ERRY ST L ERSHOTRKALRTN, ARARBUTHEKEF AT
WIRE AT TN, TR PRI Rk 5 4R 6 7 - 0 X0 R

F2024E128318, AERMEEFERE, BESMAIARTS.34125T (2023128318 ARM5.34127t) .
(TH)BERSHEA~=RAR

AEH Fixy
BB A 196,093 192,263 175,137 172,582
BIEFRER AR (6,631) (6,589) = -
71 189,462 185,674 175,137 172,582

1. BEAEHHNEHERIFOT:

20241811 185,674 172,582
TP (FHE/N m+5) 11,798 10,485
TTAEMEGR AR (HE/N =+) (7,993) (7,930)
Hith (17) -
20244E12F31H 189,462 175,137
20231811 166,230 158,311
AR (HHE/N m+5) 21,777 16,592
TTAHMER A (/N =+) (2,329) (2,321)
Hfth (4) _

20235 12831H 185,674 172,682
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2. BEiRATHBEFSR R~ RAGRX AR EERITNT:

AER 2024412H31H 2023412H31H
BIEFTEH R

REREEE 748,099 187,025 712,529 178,132
SRIERAAMETE 59,700 14,925 49,012 12,253
it R R EH A 27,542 6,883 23,113 5,786
A 835,341 208,833 784,654 196,171
BIEFEH A GR

SHBRAAANELHEHM (79,563) (19,371) (44,223) (10,497)
NIt (79,563) (19,371) (44,223) (10,497)
N 755,778 189,462 740,431 185,674
AT 2024%12H31H 2023%12H31H

BIEFRSHA

REREES 715,383 178,846 675,199 168,800
SHBAAANEEH 10,966 2,741 8,037 2,009
Tt o 6k & H A 22,219 5,555 19,915 4,979
it 748,568 187,142 703,151 175,788
BRIEFTEH R

SHBAAANETH R EAM (48,020) (12,005) (12,824) (3,206)
INF (48,020) (12,005) (12,824) (3,206)
i 700,548 175,137 690,327 172,582

REARAGT TR ARREBLERNRBINEEREH.

(+77) Hi g™
ZAEH AT
S mR | 204%12A31H  202%12A%1H | 20212A31H  203%12A31H
T R B SR 15,107 13,815 253 300
R B 7,598 7,933 7,561 7,859
M 1,982 1,954 = -
KSR A 1,118 1,080 202 251
i A = 861 1,145 639 885
EERGEEENS 146 147 = -
Hith 21,070 13,228 6,229 3,344
N 47,882 39,302 14,884 12,639
R EAEE
He pIH 2 (349) (107) (314) (82)
Hith (1,812) (2,267) (205) (107)
INF (2,161) (2,374) (519) (189)
T E 1 & 45,721 36,928 14,365 12,450
(+) Bk R HAith & B AL TF DT
ZAEH T
. mR | 204%12A31H  20F12A01H | 20212A31A  208%12A31H
BRHMET 1,905,612 2,430,145 1,905,612 2,430,145
BEHRIERTSRMY 42,249 44,845 43,380 46,860
SN M ERTT 27,155 28,876 27,155 28,876
BSNERIT SR 4 687 4,682 8,522
NG 1,975,020 2,504,553 1,980,829 2,514,403
NITFIE 1,459 1,797 1,586 1,983

Ait 1,976,479 2,506,350 1,982,415 2,516,386
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(1/\) EBAFFIE A £ LA AR

AEH T
. mAR | 204%12A31H  20F12A01H | 20212A31H  2023%12A31H
RAEMRTRIERTSAVEER 518,830 566,003 256,981 349,539
BN MR T RIFRTESRIBERK 53,145 70,666 791 827
SMNEBUF AR 29,882 29,443 29,882 29,443
INF 601,857 666,112 287,654 379,809
RitH 8 4,616 7,839 2,276 6,171
&t 606,473 673,951 289,930 385,980

AEARTEBUFME th SR (BN BRI A DE+—. (R) BRY PIKE.

(TH)IRANEE
AEH AT
RRAEMBITHRA 10,627 19,609 1,522 4,000
BN EMERITIRAN 9,021 23,304 9,021 23,304
it 19,648 42,913 10,543 27,304
NitF 2 59 352 33 313
At 19,707 43,265 10,576 27,617

(ZH) ZSUEmAfR
F202426120318, ARERHHSMABEEEHARE EARKEREBROER (20236128318, 7).

(Z+—) ZEHEME B~

Fis 3 T

ZBHRMIIR

(5% 10,423 17,039 = 1,125
Nt 10,423 17,039 = 1,125
RitFA 9 51 - 7
&3t 10,432 17,090 = 1,132

FERARTRHENR S ORRPYERT+— (7) BRYTHRE.
(Z+ ) BIKER

&R AT
S omA | 224FI2ASIE 20BF12A3A | 204F12A3NE  202012A01E
1 SEEIERR 559,546 647,531 694,284 758,433
1k EHRTFR 114,239 104,916 158,058 147,664
W RIESFRK 1,753 1,938 1,753 1,938
R TR 109,651 106,253 109,651 106,253
It 785,189 860,638 963,746 1,014,288
RitH 8 2,536 2,616 3,200 3,124
AHit 787,725 863,254 966,946 1,017,412

AEARTREGFRZZOMERMERE+— . (Z) BRYTHEE.
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(Z+=) EAER T

b S 20244
. S T
TR & EIEFMIG 1,787 6,142 (5,813) 2,116
BR T 3@ # %% - 216 (216) =
BAKRTEF 837 (61) (48) 728
HERE 57 R ANTRE 4 1,464 (1,463) 42
FERTR 1 451 (451) 1
TSK{HMRILERLE 961 259 (145) 1,075
HAth - 42 (42) =
&it 3,627 8,513 (8,178) 3,962
gk

20234
S omE ®hm KEMW AEES S
TH. & RIEFAE 1,515 5,960 (5,688) 1,787
IRIT4&7 % - 211 (211) -
BRIREF 1,005 (110) (58) 837
HEREHRPTRE 6 1,393 (1,358) 41
FEELARS 1 424 (424) 1
ISEHMRILEER 825 253 (117) 961
Hith - 36 (36) -
Ait 3,352 8,167 (7,892) 3,627
T 20244
. . S T
TR & EIEMIG 1,116 5,085 (4,810) 1,391
BR T &% %% - 185 (185) =
RIREF 834 (66) (43) 725
HERE BRI TRE 27 1,246 (1,246) 27
FEEAR 1 394 (394) 1
ITREFMRIBBELHE 832 225 (124) 933
Hith - 39 (39) =
it 2,810 7,108 (6,841) 3,077
k.

20234
S omE ®hE KEMW AERS SR
TH. e RIEFAE 916 4,935 (4,735) 1,116
BR T &8 # %% - 181 (181) -
BARTEF 087 (111) (42) 834
HERE BRI TRE (12) 1,194 (1,155) 27
FEERTR 1 372 (372) 1
ISEHMRIBEE R 713 218 (99) 832
Hith - 32 (32) -
&it 2,605 6,821 (6,616) 2,810

T2024512R310 , AKE LR N IR THM AR+ FH LB THX MR R (2023512A318 : [).
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(=4 m) R 3w

AR

S mAR | 20mEIATE AWEM AEES  202F12A31
A FrSH 25,861 30,861 (45,067) 11,655
BER 11,209 32,814 (34,154) 9,869
RMRYE MBS 79 813 (809) 83
Hith 1,242 4,953 (5,017) 1,178
A1t 38,391 69,441 (85,047) 22,785

7
1

A FriSH 24,688 20,625 (34,785) 10,528
HEF 10,840 31,074 (32,407) 9,507
RIMRYUE MBS 65 618 (612) 71
Hith 1,192 4,315 (4,398) 1,109
A1t 36,785 56,632 (72,202) 21,215
(Z+FH) Mitffk
AEH by
BRRER M ESBR 15,086 20,159 14,842 19,915
BB F RS HME SRR 554 574 554 574
&it 15,640 20,733 15,396 20,489

1. BRURIER M SHERKE

&R

202451818 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
R EEF5 .

MNE—NREBEE MR (159) 159 = =
MNEZMBREBEE MR 251 (251) = -
MNEZMBREBEE=MR - (126) 126 =
BHitE (3,289) (4,779) - (8,068)
g 8,458 242 - 8,700
F HAsk 4% [ (1,749) (3,949) - (5,698)
SNTPITE ZER (1) (6) = 7)
20244128 31H 11,016 3,700 370 15,086

% %
b
#

202341 H1H 7,880 15,237 244 23,361
MR TS

MNE—BREBEE MR (956) 956 - -
MNEZMBEBREE—NER 2,763 (2,763) - -
TR (1,946) 4,093 - 2,147
iz 2,841 - - 2,841
B Ak 4 Bl (3,087) (5,197) - (8,284)
SNRITEZER 10 84 - 94

2023128 31H 7,505 12,410 244 20,159




82 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

1T
20241 B1H 7,505 12,410 = 19,915
32
ME—REBEZEE MR (159) 159 = -
MNE_MBREBEE—NE 251 (251) = -
MNEZMREBEEZNER - (126) 126 =
EFITE (3,289) (4,779) = (8,068)
i 8,458 242 - 8,700
E|#As45[E (1,749) (3,949) = (5,698)
SN E ZER (1) (6) - 7)
20244128310 11,016 3,700 126 14,842
k.

20231 51H 7,881 15,237 - 23,118
M.

ME—REBEZE MR (956) 956 - -
MNE_MBREBEE—NER 2,763 (2,763) - -
BITE (1,946) 4,093 - 2,147
g 2,841 - - 2,841

F HAsk 4% Bl (3,087) (5,197) - (8,284)
SN E ZR 9 84 - 93
20234 12831H 7,505 12,410 — 19,915

F EFTEEERESENEAERILMEAOME SARKTNEN. AT RFRRKERYSEREARKREZ@ MK LR
ARE MSBRFRKEEMSEREE—NR. F_NR. F=MRZEBRXEEE NEEANSBRAAEENITERMAE2
MR RMENFEINTHRERRE Z B NS,

(Z+R) ERITERSFIES

B
i
=]
7
1

N AT &R 12,894,808 12,301,027 12,858,552 12,261,614
AR R % 30,010 30,010 30,010 30,010
R ZRF ARG 154,718 154,692 149,723 149,776
KRV FE 7,355 - 7,355 -
Nt 13,086,891 12,485,729 13,045,640 12,441,400
RNITHFIE 241,638 238,568 241,216 238,104
&t 13,328,529 12,724,297 13,286,856 12,679,504

T20245F12R31 0, ARFARETETHRFSIEFZRARIEREL S FISHMERTAHEAER (2023F128310: @).
1. EFERHRS

AERRAELT 2024412H31H
o meEE HBER O EEAE% RE
BRI AR T &R GRS 2002-2024 2025-2065 1.35-5.85 11,925,258
BAXTART RS 2015-2021 2025-2037 2.08-4.27 872,166
BINETART &GRS 2012-2024 2025-2032 2.45-4.50 13,394
BINEITING @RS 2016-2024 2025-2037 1.00-5.39 47,734
RATRL T & B iR RE 12,858,552
FRERINRITHIINT Z 2017-2024 2025-2027 2.00-5.57 15,395
FRAIARARITHAR T HRE 2022-2024 2025-2029 2.05-3.47 21,968
FRIAEIRTHARTEE 2023 2026 3.50 699
B RERTNEHENAERARTHRS (1,808)

AERRFEMEFRET 12,894,808
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k.

ANEH R AT 20234 12H31H
o wo®R ABSR O WEAE% W
BEREXTARTERIFRSE 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
BRARITARTEMHESH 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.69-4.27 926,084
BINRTT AR T SR HRE 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4.50 14,490
BINKTHIT & RESE 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 64,678
FATR AT S B RF R 12,261,614
FATEINRITHING ELR 2014-2023 2024-2027 1.38-5.77 25,673
FRIFEANRTHAR T HE 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
FRAIFIRITHARTEE 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
B ERRSEHENAERRTHRS (2,842)
AR ER B L A & R R 5 R A0 12,301,027

2. R E S

AEAREIT 2024%12H31H

AEARATENETARTRREZS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
ﬁt% H

AEAREIT 2023412H31H

AEARATERNETARTRARERS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

RITERTHOREGHF WA AT ATRIRENFR, EAERE BRERTRTERERA, GHENERFRERFAE.,
3. MfTZHBEAME

AEAREIT 2024412H31H
AFERETART ZREAR 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,723
FATEIIRITER_RBELMR 2020 2030 2.88 4,995
AEARTZRRARAET 154,718
k.
ER R AT 2023412H31H
ATBEREGTART ZRERER 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,776
FATEIIRITER—RBLMR 2020 2030 2.88 4,916
AEAEXTZRARRAIT 154,692

AREF DB F20206F . 2022F M2023F 177 —RFARSE AR EHNERS, AN ERSMEEEREBIERRRRT
XHPAZHREZFANELT, AERAANEETARRSFRERMNBRENNITSFENRE—B BAE—XEBIHEH
BeElZF RS MAREARTEERN, REFRERFRE.

LREFREEZFAATENRBICHE SERERTXHTAENEEREEHN, AEAANBHEEHEFNASHTEHRIE,
FER RN RRE AT BTG AELA.

4. EELES

AEAREIT 2024412H31H
AEARATEIETARTELFE 2024 2025-2027 2.20-2.40 4,482
AERARKTEINETINTRLFE 2024 2027 4.89 2,873

AEARKTRTERLFEET 7,355
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(Z++) Hih fa

AEH Py
ERM BN F RN IME S 18,522 19,676 18,522 19,676
TR R I 10,444 9,277 4,015 4,234
HERILES 6,426 6,906 = -
NAEFEBRLEREMITEERR 5,107 7,505 = -
#iEfise 3,538 2,689 = -
AL AR 885 10,357 638 864
RIPEFTZIEER 204 1,439 = -
Hfth 8,735 8,504 6,328 6,557
&It 53,861 66,353 29,503 31,331
(Z+N\) ZHER
20244 52023412 831H
T BLED 153,908 36.54
CE&AF] 146,092 34.68
BIEMERLEHERRELSD 114,537 27.19
LEMHSREESEES 6,711 1.59
&1t 421,248 100.00
(Zt+h) BZELR

AEH 20244 5 20234

BEA AN 182,650 = = 182,650
)T 20244F % 20234F

BeA O 182,195 = = 182,195

(=1) EftiRE W
1. FlERP EAR RS WA A E & R

B
i
=
7
1

TREE S E M A E b LR AWt

EFTERERE TS ARSER =T 91 118 91 118
HRETEREAANEES 2,503 (88) = 4
B TSRS m - (12) - (12)
INGF 2,594 18 91 110
BEESRHR AN EME S
HARRIRE A A MEER 35,298 9,160 33,096 8,893
B BT ARG S S AR RS (1,344) 276 (1,228) 218
HFRBRAGERRELES (1,330) 110 (148) 126
SNTIRFITEZM 677 1,416 (337) 147
Hith (680) (285) - (1)
R TS Rissm (7,993) (2,317) (7,930) (2,309)
Nt 24,628 8,360 23,453 7,074

&1t 27,222 8,378 23,544 7,184
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FE&H

2023%1A1H (55) (21,136) 5,644 868 1,128 453 (13,098)
REERR 118 (57) 7,048 85 1,359 (195) 8,358
20234 12F31H 63 (21,193) 12,692 953 2,487 258 (4,740)
REEREF 91 2,505 25,142 (820) 531 (334) 27,115
20244£12531H 154 (18,688) 37,834 133 3,018 (76) 22,375

2023%1H1H (55) (46) 1121 7 211 12 1,314
REEREH 118 35 6,833 95 147 ) 7,227
20234 12B31H 63 (11) 7,954 166 358 11 8,541
RELEER 91 - 23,901 (111) (337) = 23,544
20244 12B31H 154 (11) 31,855 55 21 11 32,085

*: HftEE BN REERNERRD.

(Z+—)BF2R

REFPEROBERIE, RTTERBEVSITENTFFERII0%EAEZERRAR, HEATEERRLARETHARS
KA AREIS0%H, TUFAFRR, SEZHAE, ATRROZERRAMRTATRIATHSRABFLERITIRALR. #E

SRR EAE, FETNEERRARIEOTRITRREARMN25%, A5 KTLEREMERREBRRRAT

(=+2) — AR AES

ju)
N o

ER AT
A7 279,278 272,496 279,278 272,496
FAF 5,952 5,882 = -
A1t 285,230 278,378 279,278 272,496
FATERBUBESHSHAVAZSSITHREENEN WS (2012) 208 ) W E, ERIASBREESNEM B —HKX

B AR A RUORAMRITE ARIRAIAT 5 M = XA B T Rk . RN _E— MR MBS & B AR T KBS R = F AR KR EHT.5%.
BAXREENE, AT FANAERDBEFBFRR—ESTIED RN EE,

(=+=) ROEFHE

&R T
S mAR s 20mE 22E 203%
FRRE 545,728 513,776 428,954 407,898
. AEFEASRAEENSTE 86,904 85,283 75,113 73,807
W RBUEER RN (7,511) (7,381) (7,511) (7,381)
REERRRAR (7,381) (7,271) (7,381) (7,271)
R — MRS A& (6,852) (17,953) (6,782) (17,373)
B #) 5 BL (21,321) (20,683) (21,321) (20,683)
HAth - (43) - (43)
FERRT 589,567 545,728 461,072 428,954
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1. 2024F RSB

RITN2024F ERFE N B, REEZERRARART7ISAMZTI T A2024F Z, 2024 F H A AN BT REFEFSHA.

2. 2023FFEF A E
FEELT2024F8 26 B ERTT2023FE EFES LA RN T

(1) BERERBREARART73.81Z5T.
(2) RE—MNEAEZART67.82{27T.
() NEHM LA ART213.21127T, WFIEDEITN2024FE

F2024F12A31H, BrE F2023F EAFIERBMAEZER R ARART73.8ZTEITT AN2023FEM FiRFIN, £id

TTAN2024FEMERF, LRUSBRFISETURE.

MEDEE

3. T2024F12A31H . ARARNEFBRFTEE TARNRBFHATEANRRAMKIITARM127.17{25T (20235F12

H31H: ARM105.581Z7T).

(=+m) DER R
HER D MBI TOT

=] _ 2023412H31H
EF&mARIELST 10,658 10,367
EREmBERROERAT 14,335 13,273
EFEHROGERAS 3,511 3,349
&it 28,504 26,989
(=1 3) fIEHEIEN
AEH AT
e B L
EIISVON
R GERR AR 533,803 555,443 508,878 529,796
HRETAERE 55,348 59,864 54,422 58,732
FHERSRENBRESRE ™ 18,742 23,301 18,800 23,500
BRI R FRE LRI 5,162 3,432 2,087 2,067
Hith 1 - = -
Mt 613,056 642,040 584,187 614,095
FRZH
ERTREIES (387,450) (387,149) (386,114) (385,534)
Bk X H At £ m AL AR (53,549) (61,634) (54,043) (62,053)
U T 3R (9,510) (10,135) (10,956) (11,486)
150 B FO H At S BR AN AD (3K (20,085) (21,171) (8,283) (12,377)
Hith (1,357) (1,638) (869) (972)
it (471,951) (481,727) (460,265) (472,422)
EISET N 141,105 160,313 123,922 141,673
A FE TAREFSRABEFRTURE . HFETURENF SR,
(Z+R) FEHERBEFEN
AREEH ¥
wR L mee ase | ek e
FHERRALBAN
FI & EIRR S T 586 565 541 509
TR L HE 73 228 73 228
ER&RESR 83 (18) 83 (18)
R ) 0% 18 2 133 196 1 5
Hith 173 479 64 120
INGF 1,048 1,450 762 844
FERRAEeZH (639) (920) (640) (680)
FEHERAEEEAN 409 530 122 164
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(=+t) wHEWE

AEH AT
S mAR e 2mE 202 202%

oM SmA~ 21,094 27,873 6,779 6,336
FTHESRTA (361) 2,356 (236) 2,279
IR R 2 (186) = -
H A g & 1,942 (61) 1,228 (218)
HthiE TREEE 188 167 = 1

KRR H 1,338 69 11,808 12,017
Hith 1,765 (1,300) 1,743 (1,294)
&it 25,968 28,918 21,322 19,121

(Z+)\) 2 M EZHHE

g AT
THHEERE (10,512) (4,031) (1,221) (2,632)
PTESMIA 205 (210) 215 (242)
R GER AR 344 (886) 344 (886)
Ait (9,963) (5,127) (662) (3,760)

(=) LR
TR T EOMENT R MR M AGITE £ R, RSN AT SR TR £ R,

(M) HEfthdk YN
&M &1T
FFEBRA 14,632 12,386 145 131
Hith 1,506 3,034 53 176
&t 16,138 15,420 198 307
(M+—) fH& R
AEH x1T
WP ERR 2,322 2,439 2,206 2,311
HE MM 1,660 1,743 1,576 1,651
Hith 591 507 509 443
&t 4,573 4,689 4,291 4,405

(M+2) S REERSE

&M &1T
RI#%A 8,603 8,285 7,199 6,939
H. ITH K& FBFAIE 6,142 5,960 5,085 4,935
V& %A 3,123 3,231 2,509 2,597
118 05 2% A 2,215 1,985 2,053 1,756
At 13,941 13,501 11,761 11,292

(O+=) ERARER X

AEH pixy
R GE RN IR 46,909 83,137 50,166 70,493
R R (1,151) (555) (1,139) (286)
H A AR T (303) 110 (148) 126
BHRRERMESERER (5,073) (3,202) (5,073) (3,203)
Hith (312) 599 255 427

&it 40,070 80,089 44,065 67,5657
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(O+Pm) Hhlk &2
&R Py
KEMHEEER=HIA 7,009 5,978 = -
Hith 1,556 1,467 -
&1t 8,565 7,445 2 -
(M+=x) rEfHER
AEH 1T
HEARR SR Z A 28,417 36,737 20,625 26,728
BEERER (11,798) (21,777) (10,485) (16,592)
A1t 16,619 14,960 10,140 10,136
AEARKTIHRERERSSTFENBETRAT .
AEH 1T
F5E B H 105,579 102,377 85,253 83,943
A EBER2%ITEM SR 3 A 26,395 25,595 21,313 20,986
FATRABAREB R =L (231) (106) = -
R N A (10,202) (12,617) (10,808) (12,664)
REEIATTIRINE B 14 2 T AT R 00 202 26 = -
AR TR AR B 455 2,062 (365) 1,814
FrEfEA 16,619 14,960 10,140 10,136
(M+R)RERERIITER
1. FEFERATALEEHUETRE
ZAEH AT
FFE 88,960 87,417 75,113 73,807
. fERRERK 40,070 80,089 44,065 67,557
HMFE =M ERK 218 1,575 4 76
1B e 9,224 7,963 2,053 1,756
BT B (403) (3,465) (403) (3,465)
LEBEER>. ERE=MEAMKIE~HRE (436) (455) (51) (142)
NRMEEHRE 9,963 5127 662 3,760
ERETEN=E T BRI AT 352,187 348,456 339,975 339,180
TR (W) /ARK (3,470) 1 (13,036) (11,800)
C R (4,030) (20,952) (1,584) (21,325)
BEFRSH A (11,798) (21,777) (10,485) (16,592)
278 M R B Ry %S iR (158,367) (414,430) (264,553) (425,683)
Z7E MR AT E R %R DER (663,575) (264,209) (622,284) (274,800)
AEFENTENRESRE LT (341,457) (194,650) (450,524) (267,671)
2. JIRFHERERTPHAEEREE MM EIE.
AEH AT
FH A KR ITHAE LRI 259,491 168,680 192,744 187,161
BREEAABE =AM,
ENBREEFE > 598,391 476,884 598,391 476,884
HEES 118,243 135,435 118,243 135,435
H SR 1,296 7,436 1,296 7,436

&it 977,421 788,435 910,674 806,916
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(M+-+) EEE L E KT E
1. WANGFEERMEB L TR
FEART REREENPASHEENEMU IR ARARRER T IISHMLSAE=TERAAVRINEFEANIE
R ASAREREENAFEBETWERES. ATASAMN L EREMUTERENN, BZSE5RXENZTETRER, FAE
BENZEANERLERANAZWETZEIR, R AEANILEEW U EFFERS.

T2024F12R31H, ERPANGHEEMEMLERNA MR I ARTI4.24{25T (20235F12A31H . ARM125.19127T).
2. RPNGHEER S EE
(1) ARART. REREENEHUER

AEARRRIFERABNNENUTE, SEASIFIES AFEETUNESSE IRFFRMAFEERS . AEEAX
RANEFEE RGBT ERFREN S REM I,

F2024F12A31H  AERA KRB IR EHNEBUEERNE~NENART,365.68{27T (2023128310 . AR M 1,469.22
27T), KREFAZZFXLERETEDINEENEIARTS50.87/Z7T (2023FE12H31H . ARM65.25(27T) . LRZ 5T
RTAREFST X LEEM L ERNRARNEHO,

(2) HBE=ANMRTHEENEWLTE

REAFEHPEE=ZANMEROTREENEMUEENE BIAAIFUHSRE” HMOENRANEANETRER. T
20241283180, W FZERMANEICEMNEMU T RN EHE, TAFTRENTHER.

F2024F12A31H , AEHAFHAEMINMETHERUEERNERRTAARMTI71.74{25T (20235128310 ARM177.6012

) Hf, TRGUERESIRMNEELFAART66.19127T (20235128310 ARM176.39127) : T HAENIFZES

RO A RFAARTSL841Z5T (20235 12A31H. ART1.21Z7T) . THHUNFE T ERAIRNBRELTANIARTO7IZT
(2023128310 ARTOZTT).

(m+\) ERmE~%%
AL SR RBHOED . (£) 8RR (M) WAWIRE RBARNEMNRBRERZEMHFTE. 5
PR B LB R E R

F2024F 128310, ARANBFERBL LT T RS XFHIES HILERIHANERA~REFNKEREAARTOZIT (2023
F12A31H: ART1.43127T) . AEBIANRE T HAREMUEELF LN TR B HARELEFIA,

F2024F12A31H , AEBA LA S NN RHILERAS MGG L LRIAZHNEBILERA R (2023F128318 . F).,
NSRS
AEFABEFRMBREETUVSKITINFRERBENAE. 0 BELERBEAEANDEENRE —BHNARNH#TIR.
NEEZ PR FRREEFRT. ABKILENSBHBHHEEE, FETES LSRR F KB,
AERAFERINT U S5 H#TIIR .
(—) Tl %

APBEBRARAIRTLSE . KITHHFLERAS LS. 29 RTUYSORBMERARK. FHRS . RERS . Wio54518K

& HULEERS LRINEERS RERSRERRSE. ATFEHFLSARIRTUISTIERSKR. ALV SBERTT
BX5 WMLTHRS . BETERS . REMLEIZRTEZHRAF NHEE.

(Z) B gl 55
A HESERARA LS

(Z)AEREWSE
AHHOFEARAEHHEAANRARE LS REEREVS.

() EFHL S
ENBEFESHEL LS. OELSRIESRHLS.
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‘
i
=

FIRUN 599,800 2,090 13,738 902 (3,474) 613,056
FlE S, (460,110) (1,731) (12,978) (606) 3,474 (471,951)
RN EE 139,690 359 760 296 = 141,105
Hp: R ZF SRS 139,893 143 837 232 - 141,105
43 & 18 Fil B UL %R (203) 216 (77) 64 = =
FEBERALERN 121 138 (55) 215 (10) 409
He @R FFEHBRMEAEN 67 138 (5) 209 - 409
IYERE) FER B RAB LB 54 - (50) 6 (10) -
HAE W RN/ () 9,763 7,776 14,826 451 (1,334) 31,482
N (56,688) (839) (9,471) (462) 93 (67,367)
NN S (23) O (10) (16) = (50)
FE 28 92,863 7,433 6,050 484 (1,251) 105,579
bie i
EMERANA LS RERELS  ERLS  EALS BFRNE &
5 E R 17,938,655 249,849 403,581 48,303 (218,052) 18,422,336
ROBHA= 196,005
B 18,618,341
586 1 15% 16,488,572 57,452 364,559 31,236 (104,052) 16,837,767
RAPECHG 6,631
B 16,844,398
HAt
IR SH 2,053 134 7,102 48 (113) 9,224
HAMZH 252 10 27,531 16 = 27,809
ERBERK 40,451 68 (355) (123) 29 40,070
Hb = EHR % 4 - 214 = = 218
ER&IE 5,067,830 244 = = (11,853) 5,056,221

EI=Y O 630,685 2,044 11,682 1,182 (3,553) 642,040
F A (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,555 (481,727)
F BN 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
Hp: R 5T SRS 158,274 205 1,510 324 - 160,313

4330 18 F) BN % B 151 (18) (233) 98 2 -
FEBERALRRN 164 150 (86) 272 30 530
He @R FFEHRMEHEN 138 151 (25) 266 - 530

EBIEF LR RAEFRA 26 Q] (61) 6 30 -
HpE WA/ () 26,399 8,173 15,021 261 (1,039) 48,815
R (95,630) (376) (10,755) (488) (50) (107,299)
ERIEIN R 11 19 (5) 4 - 18
FERE 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 (1,057) 102,377
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AN EE ]

(HERANA ALS RRERES  ERLS  EAMS ANREE A&
IERR = 17,998,894 236,084 407,672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259
ROERA ™ 192,263
BR> 18,654,522
430 5 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119,869) 16,968,203
R EC R 6,589
Bk 16,974,792
HAth:
1B AR5 1,756 142 6,098 55 (88) 7,963
HAMZH 1,297 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
EARERX 79,644 (407) 744 (66) 174 80,089
HA T = ER K 76 - 1,499 - - 1,575
(B 3,626,788 244 - - (17,432) 3,609,600

T. XEAXERXS

(—) WMEEp

T BUER 2 B 5B A9 E AR AR 1T . 2024128 31H , WIBERHFH A 1736.54% A A A (20234F12831H : 36.54%) .

AEFASUWEBHTHAFLSTFRESHLEARST TBZEREAATHWIRFIULVEBLTHERS . TH> AR
B ZEX5MERBERNAT .

R

EREASH 49,283 54,987
FIE X 8] (%) 1.35-4.77 1.65-4.42
FI 2N 1,443 1,736
BRWE 57 34

(Z) C&RH
LR 2HERBARFEADNEEFAS AWM I PELSR EMAAINARTS,282.09Z5T. L&A FAEE SR,
NEE SN TRIUE, FTAEEMF L HEEE. Lo RKPEBMKETENRTHRF LS, F2024512
AS1H . L& R RHHAFT34.68%HIMAN (20235F12331H : 34.68%)

FARFAUERE, ARABENLL A RTHRS IERKTRANHRENT -

TP A~ 281 634
HAb R R 94,661 93,612
FIE X 8] (%) 1.90-4.20 2.44-4.20
FI 2N 2,104 2,522
BRWE 9 16

AEASLEASREEFHIRIEREFHNATDHTHNABLER S RERHLFRH#T.

(2) B EFEFRIELF
BIRRRATEARFIEAD (U THR BRANLE) BESNLERRS AR TN~ ABRFIEAD, 2EEEHFMINA
B.BAX. 10, £ BHRH. AFFAEE RAGE (REASHANTE, SEABHERHTARESEED).

TF2024£E12 8310 , BN /A SHHH R1727.19% A9 BEAN (20231283180 . 27.19%) ,
AEASERWAIRAERH EAFAREFINATHTHERFLERS HEEH W ERHET.
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(M) 5FATHLS
ATAFMRERNETEE5FRAIRSNIKENMET =FMT

"=

FHAS _ 9.953
RGBSR 43,357 44,831
Hth g~ 1,583 20
AlE

B R H fth £ RN 77 BRI 5,936 10,037
ST EES 179,221 154,158
ERTREFIES 1,913 2,902
Hitbfa i 35 9

T2024F12R31H, ST AFAMEXNRAKELITERAREBRAHRAHART119.001Z5T (2023F12A831H: ARM174.3212
7T,
AOHERNEFEEE5FRASINRERI RO T

ISV ON 1,636 1,853
F 2 S (1,994) (1,864)
FEERAEBAN 60 51
FEHERAEIH (6) (5)
BA W 11,698 12,018

AITEFABRZENZFIPZRR—RE W ERMERE L SRFHTT,

(H) EREMEELRANZS
AEASHENSEANLHHXHN—RIBNHEDENER, BERFUFRRT. TO024E, AEAKSHKENLEAT
REBAXKARS EROEEARKTT R (20235 F).

(R)RBEEAR

XREHEARBEAPI OINY  EEMENAREENNAR, T2024F REFLRHFMIN, 2EASKBEEARNXS
SHIREK (20234 . [{),

(E)hlFEE
BRIE# Mo, 2024 ARARKTSATRINESI KRR EEAXKTLS (20235 . F).

T— HEETRKE

(—) BRI
F202412A318 , AKARATHEES T ARFLER. ATERRANZEERFRHRERRERT SN A REARKITH
WERRHAE MR LA M (20234128318 F).

(Z) BARMEAE

A EH 4T
EEANRNIT
BRI R 46,350 41,341 - -
B R =R 86,605 27,279 153 579
&It 132,955 68,620 153 579

AERANEER~RIAKBEEIRZAMIATAEER MR AMKIE. T2024F128318, AEFAMLEETAEEA~HNAARMT
RESMAARTB64.52127T (20235128310 AR™M267.001Z7T) .,



MEBE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 93

A EH 1T
BEROR A 5,049,926 3,603,476 5,061,780 3,620,909
FFHRERIBR 2,731 3,347 2,486 3,102
RITKHILE 3,402 1,623 3,402 1,623
FEERIE 162 1,154 162 1,154
ait 5,056,221 3,609,600 5,067,830 3,626,788

TF2024F12B31H, BHRAEFARREIEAAE—FEMURN S AH589.14125T (20235F12831H . ARM601.47{27T) , EARK
EEGERFHESE—FEMN L,

(M) BB EAIE
FHREOHRD MMETHRABBSAEROT .
3 el

MAMEAREM 35,851 36,621

F20245F 128310, AERA MR AR FOREYA—FR (2023F12A31H: B,

(H)#ERY
1. B RYEE =
AEnfERE . HAERREENRAMOHE KB NED T

A M

B 11,987 18,029
ERZe ) 976 -
F )

% - 1,132

F20245F 128310, AERALZ L B LA KRS D ART104.23127T (20234 12A31H: ART170.39127T) , AFTRHE M
SRBFRAEHARTOLZIT (2023F12831H: ART11.25127T) . B MBS FE L EBE—FERNE .

F2024F12H31H, AERABHN KR AAER. LEHENES  GENEFRATERNRRIFDKENESGITAARD
2,757.66127T (2023F12A31H . AR™2,173.27125t) . Ao, B FREEFNN KRR HEERKENE N ART39.54127T (2023
F12A31H. ARM7417{Z7T).

F2024F12A318, ARAH M FB TRINERNRHERVSHIRRBOKENES B AART473ZTMART6.6412
7T (2023128310 . ARM32.71127t; ARM13.22127¢).

2. TR RIERY
AREFAEZNRENWEHES TIFSEDIRERRY ., F2024E 128310, AERH LU E BT L E 5 B R @AM ITE SRR
(20234FE12H31H . [E).
T+ KSR

(—) SRR & 18 SR A
AEANSERSARSMESAR ARAALEIRPYXESHMNE REEBSHTIRM. 297, KENRE. AXNEIZS
R SHZOEE FRUSOATESIMEREERK ., Bt AEAN BRZ N REFREMEROTE, FRTERLDRE R
FX W S BRI F .

AERATBEURTARARNEEFERMZHHEREEER S FEALERTPIRKBUE RRUREHNE. AEAREBS
AFENREERREARBRENARETDRFAATHBEATEIRTAR MO GRS RUEEEASRADEMAE.

ARNKEERNEFARE, AFEARTHOTESRIARS, SFEEHZH. BHMFAREHRMFIRGNE,
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AEAMNNKREERBREET EYNRERAMESNFR FBEITENRNNERRGERENREMBHRNNTERL, BMNR
HIRMDATUL RS AEAEHFHNEEEBRMNRG, KNREERMRT S, = RATL, HEINRESERUR TENREEE,
AEAARNEIESRRKE X OE. ERARK. 5N R RN M%ERRE.

(Z) 5 R KB
FEAFMAERNEARKRZERE AR SN FHEALARABKTROBERKNAL . EARKREARALSARNEEER

R, A EERNEAREREEEEERE. GRARRIEETERE” . MIERNERERANGTESHES VS, RIS TA
Blan 5 ERERMEHRELFEFERANR.

FEARRBEENBETHORBITREREREEES] SR80V SHEET T ERANTRER BRITETE /2. B,
HERE. TXHRGES ZERAZEEANTRER, DEERNE SRR E A ERATETITEE A EYEFRIRAER
B ERIUE BIPR. B, AT RIEFRNAERSEE, £FE T BRITR. TROTR . BRIFRMTLIFREFORAE.

1. ERARKKER

AEANBEREHEMRR. REFEFM. IXFZ. REARIARTREESHTNER LS SRELTICHEE. &
HERASEERRIERE, BURIEES IARE. FEFl. AXFRAREERSREEE ReBRRRERNR, MRA
RERUBRBERLE HHAEREERFHARALEETFREARAAEANERREEERKE,

HAREAATTHALENRFREMIAALESERMTRE AN EER 0N, WGEHTRE. RPLESERY
TRERAAER B (1)RERTEBREL L QFXEANKETERXRHLEBRANMAERBONELEZESZERN
KB

BRERAFSGKARATREANEI, S TALZELS AERAEREFERAFELFEAKTINIZN T FEFEARESRHA
BEE GESENIMPERTRES. PARE FcRENNAEEERAGHEREREOES TN, IALEELENER
RNEE#HTER. i, REAATFRERINYSEREAMRHREBE LS, ALFEZFEAMTARAREEZ A IR TE
P FFAIBESRRARIE R MBS | B 2R SR B X i 2 Mk 5508 R BE Al 5548 S OB LB 42 16 72 e R USSR PR RAZ AR R R

2. KB

AERABET —RIERARREFRNBEMER, SEERERARMRGRY . AEANEGFERAVNTERHHER
REGEREESE T HRERES HERHDMAAMITEER.

MM TR ANHREL R, FlmkEN. St~ T HEAN NERIES . S FRUBNMEE. BREERMBR Z MY
Htb S RASHIMAIRY AT AASHMIRE. BEELT. KUSH T AAAGRMEAIFNASIFMISHEMUS
MIEN fiF BERMEMARERELEER, T2024F12A310  AKAFFHRRAT SHTHAREK (202351273310 F).

3. ERITR

ARARBABE A EATRRRENRS N FHBABETHEER, ANTALINORHHFRATRORBIRAD, B4
ABRHERE (B0, ERARHERATTL S %) BRANFRL, TR ERASNDBERIED T EE, W5, RHERER
R ETEA R #9% RN TS TTRER B SR B E EAAE AP,

4. HHERBKITE

T UEREATEMNAANETEEETMTARMGERANGES TRESRMAS . AA S NRRFRENYSERE
B AERZA THAEHRARE IR EAS. AEARTSRA S THEBRERENR M ITE D NS EELNE,

MFPATHEARITENSH TR AFATHEEXSRTIANGANEEVNEHINEREEEEEEM A =R &BE
RED BT EHREEE WIAMBERBRK.

E—ME. BVERIANEERRRREZBNNESRTIE RANEIIAE—ME.
B BVMRFIAEERARREZENMNSRIE EHREEAIEREFARENSRIE MEANRYUDS HE DR,
BB N TEREGFHARENSRIR RENBRYD AE =K.

F-EREMIARBELYTZERIARKRLIARTHAGEARANESTIHBERIESE E-MBENE=MEREMTAZR
HETZERTIAENFSHAMBERRANSTITEERLES.

WASBEEEREFEARENSRASRIEEVERIANDTAEGFAREN SR> ZER>~NREEE D BN FRANTGR
fERA%K%.

AERALSENERHTAGERREITE, FHAEHREANTEFEMRT EANRRENRE. SERBMNERETRRKRNE
MEFBERAMERANERRR (BN, FABANTEMRAERE) AEARBESITDENNERERRAERXRHITESHE
AT b R, 8.

- EUERAREAEND

- TEERBRKITENSE RERMETRA
— {ERARK 2 ZIBE A WA

- BERAGERRERNHERE
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- FATHEMTENZFER. £5ES NENXA, LEREEESM

- B-MBRAMERMBRAREALS RN

KOS AR EE RS

KEFBEFEURNE MR OAFETHE, EHTOAN, KEAZERTHERAXE FULE3 EXHE BRLILVERE,

HREGEARED AN SO TR,

A= ARKITENS . BRRMETEA

RBEANREEEA4ESEEMURESTCEAXEEARE. AEANABNE =03 120 A BN FEENTHE ARKITE

REEE, PEARRTENXESYBETAMER. SORKARTMBLONE MO, A5 A S 57K B I FrE AR RS ER &

RAEM, RIBESVSIHENMER, ZEHEHITEE (MXZHFFIE BRARERIREIFDEY ERXTRE) NEESTR

BIEEMEL, B S AR SARARRE AR M O #E,

HEXEXAT

- BAMERIERZAERRINAREENHEBLEY TEABTHENX SN T, AERANTOMEINAIBITREE
SRAEMHATHE, MAREMEE, MRREFTEWEFHRE RS AN RBAHEK,

- BARAREEAEANSARNERELERABEREOTY. REISGHFHLE BRNARMNLESR, MERERAHN
AE, BARMKELHERAR, BAMEEIFARENREHORKOE DL

- BARKRMORNS EEA%EN, AEANEENNESH.

REFARARDERTFRARMRENZ G FHFTAMTIFHEER, AN AREINT I FRATFAMNRIBILREE, £ RKEH

EHRENERARBEERREEBEANTEER, AEATHEEHERTHERRKITERXLNRE, SRR THE

AR RBRYNMENTHER,

Fo04EE HITBARKBRIZERLEETAETL,

AR B E S INE H s iR

REAEGN A ORRATEEXSRTIENEARKEBVGERIAGEFCEZEM. AERAHTERA > HREN B

ENEERREFANEEGHENBETUNEMHAEERARENGEE CEINEMEE. AEAMNBMNESR T A VEM, BiTLt

BeMIAEATNGRARESTSANRE SEVMHEFIABREBAONNE, UBESR TETITFEHAAEF ARG HTL

155,

AEABIEEECE. EUNMENHKERTIANEARNKEAVEHINGERRAEEZEM, HFFETZAHEES ASTAOMER

HEL. ERAREAENTLUEREMMRAEARNGBEEMAOEL. EHKERTANEARE BVGERIAEEEEEBM,

RERAREHL U SIHENX TAHBEI0RMAEANGEEEMHEEL. MRERSALRIEWH T HEFTREEAR

B, AEAREZERIENEARKREVERIAEFREZEN, IRSHIEEFRBMNTARE ERAEEHRNEERE

MENKRHBEHERANERANS, BEHBAXSENRAEEKSBEARLFNFLEANFIFNBLHRER, WiZEm TERANE

BRIFEARE.

EX 4 ERRENHERE

TR EETREGRBEN, ARAMXANAERE SARGNEXSHTAENGERENREEERRFT % ANEEEE.

EMER AEAFHERZSAZSTREFEAREN, TEXENTEER.

- RATEIBEEAREERUYSEHR .

- BEABREE, MECFHESASFEARGBHRINAEANTAAS. B3R, FERBENA S HRFEELBILIOKX,

- FERABTFEREAMEEEELNEFILARER ATHESAETAEMBERL THASHENILS.

- BEARTEBETHHTHMESESR,

- RAFEBESAVSERSRIZERASTHERTHEX,

— MRRHTHMESRE —ERE > ZIINRR T X £ 15 AIREANEL,

SRAFEEEARE, EURRS N EHNERERRTE. ALRTEMIRINEHIEK.

BTREMHTENZFER. 2FES. NENXA MEEEESM

FERARKEEZEMOTFERAERREAMTESSRENELS . AERBEH#HTHEEEI. RJEZ M L 5LEEH

REERTHGERMANXBRAFIER, AEVNELFERIER. DIV RSEE. BEEESERE. TELFHRTBAMEMNE AR

RRZHUTM NARMLSEMNERAR. AEASEAZEANMBEEFRITONHEXLZFERSEAMERMNBEARER

BEY 5 R, A E B XX L ZF AR AR AT I TN, FHR AR SR MR, RN A SR,

KEAESFUHDTERBERIN. BARENBE THEFTNEENE, AEANSHEBESEFMNEERTELENEES

ERETRBEFENIAMNEBENTEES., AERAITEHRE T FAAESHNE, AERAFTRANEMZSNES THM

HEZM, KERMMNA 12N BFEERRE (E—NER) ANMNABNELPTRERRE (FMBRE=ZMR) iTE8%

BIREES, ERIAEARAR BTN —RII TN ERMBEN T HERNNEHA.
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MEAERRA R EMOT RN ERNTRERAREOZN, F20245FE, KREAXE T AENEREFBERNEFRRES
B, NRWEFHERETREMTN. o AEABRT BT ATMEERREN2025FE M 4™ S {E(CDP) RiTRLL G
KR FNSEEE 5 3.9%-4.5%.

BIBDEBEFIEIR LIFH TF10%, RER T2024E 12831 B R BEES ST L FI R BiT5%.
BEBEENEXEE WS

EENEEHRESTHNEEARZ—. BERWBELNNELEMI0%, MEEBEANERD10%, SERZEWBLHONEE
n10%, MEFEBENNERD10%, KERFT2024F 12831 BT RNBEES SN ENIEELRBITS%,
HFANFSHHUEORTN, AKAECEEEEMRANEARNBRKESHTEE. DUERTAEXKE . EBESNERFE
ST EANBEIRAESNEMAEAL,

BEZMREN TR RIS RN

FEAEGINHAN KT SEREEARERHXNRREHASRAN, HEZER-ENHARFIEME REAS KK
ERNIE,

5. R RIE B Yk E A 1E A B R A S K 4% AR B B O
THRFNFEERR . RRERNEHRANESMNT.

AEH ¥:S

b= | _ 2023%12H31H _ 2023%12H31H
FRNIE
B HRBITHRI 71,880 98,364 71,325 97,821
FHRE W FR I 119,558 143,422 168,067 140,421
HEES 477,735 544,247 477,735 554,200
PTE SRR 3,903 3,569 3,465 2,893
INEBEE SR 598,960 477,525 598,848 477,456
RGN 14,688,772 14,244,743 14,197,243 13,756,973
THMERE™ 566,969 731,493 498,137 659,023
BRI FE 537,881 700,985 531,425 696,356
H ARG HE 973,602 1,167,521 937,379 1,131,498
Hifth 17,338 8,536 6,925 4,719
N 18,056,598 18,120,405 17,490,549 17,521,360
FIMNRE
BRI 5,049,926 3,603,476 5,061,780 3,620,909
FFHREA 2,731 3,347 2,486 3,102
RITRFBILCE 3,402 1,623 3,402 1,623
FHERIE 162 1,154 162 1,154
N 5,056,221 3,609,600 5,067,830 3,626,788
Bit 23,112,819 21,730,005 22,558,379 21,148,148

ERDHFITT T20245F % 2023F12A31 0, AREARKTERAAER THEBREEA . BARE B EFP RS H b
ERBEERNEANEHRA. I THASNHERNE . LR ERANKESRAERET R A GERKESEST.

6. TERBRIERRKEO S

AEAEMRRMBERNERERX DA MARE". " HRE" M SRE".
FREEXRNEFRANERUNZW, PR EERXABS

ERRIEERANEARRKPRE BYE

BARE, BINMERNHEERT4E—

[—N="A
R

W, T

THMBARKESEMEMN. SRR EERABSEEHINTRAEE, ABEEMMEZRNBNELYTESEEEY,

BANERAK.

WNBETEEEN SR T AR EMATRIIERREMEITOT, RIEFHRE, F-—MRAKIDAMPERARK £
ERE=NEARENFEMETAERRX.
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RGN
041283 #—W&  $=h&  #=me &t
ERE%
A EEH
kXU 13,384,681 = = 13,384,681
AR B - 1,788,375 - 1,788,375
SRS = = 205,123 205,123
AHit 13,384,681 1,788,375 205,123 15,378,179
e ERREES (232,493) (350,334) (160,065) (742,892)
] 13,152,188 1,438,041 45,058 14,635,287
1T
KRB 12,964,008 = = 12,964,008
A RBS = 1,688,697 - 1,688,697
S - = 200,658 200,658
Hit 12,964,008 1,688,697 200,658 14,853,363
W ERREAE (221,951) (329,726) (157,928) (709,605)
P 12,742,057 1,358,971 42,730 14,143,758

ERER
FEH
KRB 13,372,962 - - 13,372,962
R - 1,325,842 - 1,325,842
= R - - 187,762 187,762
Ait 13,372,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
. ERREES (238,554) (329,057) (128,634) (696,245)
R 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321
T
R 12,949,557 - - 12,949,557
Loy - 1,226,631 - 1,226,631
= R - - 185,902 185,902
A1t 12,949,557 1,226,631 185,902 14,362,090
W ERREES (230,177) (302,302) (127,060) (659,539)
A 12,719,380 924,329 58,842 13,702,551
BRI &
041283 g—W& #=he #=me &t
ERE%
A EH
1M 546,787 = - 546,787
AR B = 26 - 26
S - = 1,486 1,486
Hit 546,787 26 1,486 548,299
e ERREES (9,061) (5) (1,352) (10,418)
e 537,726 21 134 537,881
17
KRB 540,480 = = 540,480
RS = = — -
= R = = - -
At 540,480 - - 540,480
R ERREEE (9,055) = = (9,059)
R 531,425 - - 531,425
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ER%%
&M
i 710,920 - — 710,920
by - 28 - 28
SRE - - 1,670 1,670
A1t 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
BEAREEE (10,129) (6) (1,498) (11,633)
B 700,791 22 172 700,985
4T
RS 706,431 - - 706,431
R - - - -
& K - - - -
&t 706,431 - - 706,431
B AR EEE (10,075) - - (10,075)
B 696,356 - - 696,356
H AR
mmgeAnR [ sk schR s=ee &
ER%%
AEH
IR 973,600 - = 973,600
R - - - -
BRE - - & 2
&t 973,600 - 2 973,602
EAREES (89) = (143) (232)
AT
RS 937,379 - = 937,379
RS - - - -
B K = = = =
Ait 937,379 - - 937,379
ERBEREE (73) - - (73)
‘mmgARE g-WE ®SME EEWR A
(S
A EH
RS 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
RS - - - -
(SP - - 17 17
&it 1,167,504 - 17 1,167,521
ERREEE (236) - (1,326) (1,562)
4T
RS 1,131,498 - - 1,131,498
R - - - -
& R - - - -
&it 1,131,498 - - 1,131,498

ERBEESE (221) - - (221)
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FHRE

041283 #—W&  $=h&  #=me &t

ERE%

AEH

1R RLBS 4,915,412 = - 4,915,412

AR B - 140,294 - 140,294

S - = 515 515

At 4,915,412 140,294 515 5,056,221

AT

1R 4,927,265 = = 4,927,265

RS = 140,294 = 140,294

= X = = 271 271

&it 4,927,265 140,294 271 5,067,830

ERE%

FEH

KRB 3,489,940 - - 3,489,940

AR - 119,416 - 119,416

SRS B - 244 244

Ait 3,489,940 119,416 244 3,609,600

4T

R 3,507,372 - - 3,507,372

h K - 119,416 - 119,416

=R - - - -

&it 3,507,372 119,416 - 3,626,788

it ff

041283 #—W& $=h&  #=me &t

ERE%

AEH

L2 11,016 - - 11,016

AR B = 3,700 - 3,700

S = = 370 370

Hit 11,016 3,700 370 15,086

4T

KRB 11,016 = = 11,016

XL = 3,700 = 3,700

= X = = 126 126

&it 11,016 3,700 126 14,842

ERER

AN

X 7,505 - - 7,505
RS - 12,410 - 12,410
ERB - - 244 244
At 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
1T

RS 7,505 - - 7,505
M - 12,410 - 12,410
= K - - - -

At 7,505 12,410 — 19,915




100 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

BRMTAEMERIBR

AEABVEEEREEARENSRASNEMNERS, BARRTHMBRL, AEHANEMEEERRATRKX LSRR
M REMER. EREGARENSRAT NEABRREEERATMFENERRNEITNOT.

A EH

BEEERARENAS

R 205,123 (160,065) 45,058 57,503
AR H 1,486 (1,352) 134 -
H AR 2 (143) 2 -
&it 206,611 (161,560) 45,194 57,503
4T

BEEEARENARS

R GTR AR 200,658 (157,928) 42,730 57,503
&1t 200,658 (157,928) 42,730 57,503
A EH

B 4EERARBENE™

RIRGERFETR 187,762 (128,634) 59,128 30,352
R R 1,670 (1,498) 172 -
H b Fas & 17 (1,326) 17 -
&it 189,449 (131,458) 59,317 30,352
4T

BEEEARENAR

RIEHRFIEIK 185,902 (127,060) 58,842 30,352
a1t 185,902 (127,060) 58,842 30,352

LFRFEAMAANEST, NEMERNE - ERXMRRMERNERREEH A AR,
T20245F 12310, ARARKTERVIERBEANERRESERN,
7. RIEEEANER
EMAHRMERERAASERARAEHAREERAISFELNOT

FER

2024%12H31H

(B AEN 293,487 1,761,055 2,857,357 4,911,899
RIEBEK 34,689 205,539 1,062,447 1,302,675
IR GERK 3,259 82,618 1,913,852 1,999,729
BB GER 6,979 25,034 7,152,043 7,184,056
&it 338,414 2,074,246 12,985,699 15,398,359

2023%12H31H

IELAEN 497,271 1,531,358 2,384,665 4,413,294
RIEEESK 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
IR GERK 12,327 71,083 1,866,124 1,949,534
BRGER 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7,280,732

&it 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502
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2024%12H31H

(e EN 293,487 1,760,838 2,617,995 4,672,320
RIUETE 34,689 205,539 1,000,593 1,240,821
I HERK 3,259 50,896 1,730,160 1,784,315
e e 6,979 25,034 7,146,000 7,178,013
&it 338,414 2,042,307 12,494,748 14,875,469
20234128310

(e EN 496,847 1,531,102 2,142,935 4,170,884
RIEEER 78,947 234,696 882,979 1,196,622
A TER 12,149 46,930 1,681,785 1,740,864
e 6,719 34,521 7,232,352 7,273,592
&it 594,662 1,847,249 11,940,051 14,381,962

KRR AMERBIIZT LA HERMDT

2024%12H31H

2023%12H31H

ZdEi A . B i FER B 5,960,632 39 5,775,759 39
P X s 2,442,665 16 2,640,962 18
KF . BREFA R EEE Y 1,692,064 11 1,578,132 11
BRI RKE MR AL 1,592,537 10 1,552,222 10
A 1,178,883 8 1,255,310 8
B 899,175 6 434,631 3
RE 481,687 3 549,892 4
BB 315,290 2 268,127 2
SE 151,558 1 201,391 1
Hith 683,868 4 648,076 4
Ait 15,398,359 100 14,904,502 100
T 20244 12H31H 2023%12H31H

TRz . CEMERE L 5,653,258 38 5,463,654 38
i X s 2,442,665 16 2,639,705 18
KF FEMALRIEEE L 1,608,871 11 1,493,515 10
B B RS RIKEERER 1,513,780 10 1,471,904 10
& 1,179,728 8 1,213,356 8
B 897,621 6 433,613 3
P 480,217 3 548,431 4
HE 313,518 2 266,231 2
SEnl 150,818 1 200,652 1
Hith 634,993 5 650,901 6
&it 14,875,469 100 14,381,962 100
BEHETEH

FEUERRREEERAEYSRUBANRLTEZRBRREEIRERERNBELT AEANMATSERAETREERERNOT

o

AiERENEERHMERARTEASZTRAMRME . XLERFTHEERFEMHFA. T2024F12A310 . AKH

E=d
Ao
BHERFETMAARTI791.341Z7t, AfTEARKSF AN ART3,791.34127T (2023FE12F31BAKR . ART2,617.701Z7T.

g

K17 AR™2,417.98{27T).
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8. ik
TRIFT AEARATEAREREREMER T %8I T OERITRIEHNERTRDERER.

‘
i
=

BUF ROEBUR S 655 82,346 = = = 1,039,643 = 1,121,989
B TFE (GE1) 196,330 2,183 = - = = 198,513
NEVRSE 243,188 279 317 2 = 7,058 250,844
SRAEHES 32,458 5,882 - - - - 38,340
TR ITHIEN = & = - - - - 2,596 2,596
ERETH R R H A - - - - = 3,970 3,970
g = - - - - 3 3
R LS 289 - - - - 233 522
Ait 554,611 8,344 317 2 1,039,643 13,860 1,616,777
A EEH

BUR RO BUR LG 6755 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
EfFE (1) 467,873 - 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
NEMERE 330,701 1,053 8 192 - 2,605 334,559
SR G5 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 - - 62,357
AT RITHIER Y = & - - - - - 3,743 3,743
EHEIT I R H A 10 31 - - - 3,873 3,914
HEEEITR - - - - - 335 335
B =S 180 8 - - - - 188
Ait 936,982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065,884 10,556 2,055,940
T

BURF RO BURF LG 6 55 78,527 - = = 1,021,199 = 1,099,726
EEE (GE1) 190,857 2,183 = = = = 193,040
NE RS 235,731 = 317 = = 6,946 242,994
SRAEFEFE 28,109 5,882 = = = = 33,991
BB - - - - - - -
Ait 533,224 8,065 317 - 1,021,199 6,946 1,569,751

%
1

BUR R AB G ES 79,534 8,854 10 - 1,046,341 - 1,134,739
EfFE (1) 465,445 - 16,840 6,323 - - 488,608
AEMRSE 325,487 66 - 181 - 434 326,168
SRV G 51,155 - 5,088 3,586 - - 59,829
g - - - - - 14 14
ait 921,621 8,920 21,938 10,090 1,046,341 448 2,009,358

A1 BTROTANRDMELFRERARE.
E2 . RIFRBUN R ABURTLE SN R T A BT EBUF R EBUSTLN, B, HEARRT. LS ASIMBEKR TR,
A3 RIFREAMFAN MR A ARG 2 SRR BEMRAS . A 83T, L RTRAEY > R fERTUEF.



9. ERHFFREPHEESH
R RMBIR UM H A SRFT >
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AEH

2024%12H31H

B RBFTRI 71,880 = = 71,880
U b FRIN = 119,558 - 119,558
FERS - 477,735 - 477,735
LT SRE = - 3,903 = 3,903
T NIRE SRR = = 598,848 112 598,960
R P USRI 1,711 100,241 465,017 566,969
FRAIR 446,759 2,304 88,818 537,881
H A% 673,519 137,609 162,474 973,602
Hit &A™ 3,938 1,237 12,163 17,338
&it 1,197,807 1,441,435 728,584 3,367,826
2023%12H31H

B RBITRI 98,364 - - 98,364
FHE LRI - 143,422 - 143,422
HEHEE - 544,247 - 544,247
ot b 439 3,130 - 3,569
ENEBESRE ™ - 477,456 69 477,525
TR MESRE = 2,122 174,616 554,755 731,493
AR H 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
HA AR % 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167,521
Hith & ra ™ 2,441 963 5,132 8,536
&it 1,261,053 1,726,844 887,765 3,875,662
AT

| BERERANS  &EWS AAREE &b

2024%412H31H

B RBITRI 71,325 - - 71,325
R b FRIN = 168,067 = 168,067
HE#ES = 477,735 = 477,735
PTESRA™ = 3,465 = 3,465
ENEBRESRE ™ - 598,848 = 598,848
TS SR 1,711 96,835 399,591 498,137
FRIIR K 446,759 = 84,666 531,425
HA AR % 651,256 130,195 155,928 937,379
Hith&ma /™ 619 178 6,128 6,925
&it 1,171,670 1,475,323 646,313 3,293,306
2023%12H31H

B REBITRI 97,821 - - 97,821
FIE LRI - 140,421 - 140,421
He#EE - 554,200 - 554,200
ETHE SRR E 439 2,454 - 2,893
ENBESRA ™ - 477,456 - 477,456
oA~ 2,122 169,429 487,472 659,023
BRI 599,447 - 96,909 696,356
H R A 533,171 379,007 219,320 1,131,498
Hithemh ™ 2,441 520 1,758 4,719
&it 1,235,441 1,723,487 805,459 3,764,387
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(=) TimXBE

T RERIEERTHNE (FR LR RENENFRNE) OEHMERARARRAMRMLSRERMNONE . ARAHIE
THREETBREEBTKES T HKENNE SCENE.

AEATHRREENEGERBIRIBRMNTHNRERER . THIRG ERITE FEENMERENZZMNERZ LS $
NHHRRE . BRTHREEHNERARATEZHAEEN . KIR b UK /9T,

FEARREFLRAMBZRSENNNERIREETHRE . AR EETKALASEEREAT NG, BdEHETEW
FHEANREEERE BREMTHNENEREE.

ZEWESRITHERIRIS

AEFARENTZRE T EFETRXZKESRITKESH.

ZHWERIEAXZ BN ARMBIMEANETFENTNEAZ NS TANFRLT. ROTKERENEZ S BHHE
B RAMNTERYANZGWENRABERLFHA.

R ZMMEMBITWER T Z NG ARG EEBRNL SERBESBNRITVEE AR TERENER. £ NREERAQEHE
EOTHHRE. FRGEERASXZUSHTHNE . L SERBILATHAS UHEREEREAAR, P EHSTLRNEMR
PSR A BB B3R, T HA 4R ) 4R A7 TS 2 B AL R R b IR R

TR T ERARTE R %

THNEBIRAEIE. TEEM. AMDHT. RODHT. GUEMERETRETRE,

MR ZKE, AEEAR B ORFZS, EIRRIES . SURMRAEHEFREHSERRRR.
AEAZETHNRHZRREE T WEEREEFRFREER A NEEEBARXZWESETH R ARG it
2 LEfRs.

SRITIK

MERTE, AT ETEBE SRR FIRN G QSR 2EEETHRERR. Hd, KEEERBLITEER. A0
HEARNBREEETKAASRENRITEER LSERBERSIFHRO . GUREDIT. #O F T7 AT KBS FHC K KB
TAERIRA TR,

B XA R FUC R KBS R BURME AT IER, R (Z) 1 FIRKE K (=) 20CRRE ( BIFRFTKEMZHME) .

1. FIRREE

RITWEFIRNE R IEFRATE HREVFEZZRETH BN SERTIKEREREMEFNEEZREANE.
AERAETERMBRAZTNVSENRIENLFEHMARRTEDTERAZN. PEARBOTNARTEEFREL T H
E, AFESRINWREFLENE THERRIZKE, —RTS. B—5HH BRARMNESE TGS AR EREE.

OB ERETEMNRBTNZFNERDARITNHNEZANEENTW, S ARODT. KBS SFSRAE
WEF BIEHABREASAREMENARZFTREATROTMKENENEER. XHWEON KR F 2B LM KRR
REEMAT. HH AR A ST, TR SO TETER.

EITEMEENEN A, ARAEHITENTEENRAD . AHEER, ITHERRMERER RIURE) T8 SBWATE
TEN TR T A GRM .

EENHRODH
RERNEXEENAMIHAEFREEN L ARALSTMEMA T KSR O GEN R REE M A 25 UKENET =T

A

EREZE =

W& R AFH R RARFTHRIN 71,880 = = = = 2 71,882
FRE LRI 86,109 876 30,369 = = 2,204 119,558
HEES 177,970 264,916 34,011 = = 838 477,735
P4 SRA - - - = = 3,903 3,903
ENEESRT ™ 598,472 373 = = = 115 598,960
R GER AR 8,274,789 3,850,713 1,185,832 212,832 670,519 494,087 14,688,772

X HHEErAE 9,496 72,551 3,433 78,864 4,223 571,127 739,694
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AN EE ]

FERRH 11,920 110,641 325,222 84,028 150 5,920 537,881
H % 151,747 127,785 276,318 227,245 181,517 8,990 973,602
Hihia TRER - - - - - 9,858 9,858
Hith 156 618 = = = 16,564 17,338
ERMA~ AT 9,382,539 4,428,473 1,855,185 602,969 856,409 1,113,608 18,239,183
SRR

& Mk R H & BRATLAG 7 BRI 219,376 1,751,631 100 = = 5,372 1,976,479
1) BT 0 HL & BRANLAG A 5K 235,600 334,526 31,731 = = 4,616 606,473
/AT E 15,965 2,192 893 120 478 59 19,707
X H ML TR - = = = - 2,883 2,883
PTESR AR - - - - = 9,291 9,291
SEH B € R K 9,483 940 - - - 9 10,432
R K 659,762 91,791 22,712 4,924 1,459 7,077 787,725
ERTHREIES 877,863 1,179,764 5,687,305 4,527,359 814,600 241,638 13,328,529
Hit 239 98 427 78 = 19,969 20,811
ERAHEET 2,018,288 3,360,942 5,743,168 4,532,481 816,537 290,914 16,762,330
MEEHENGRASIT 7,364,251 1,067,531  (3,887,983) (3,929,512) 39,872 822,694 1,476,853
AR EE ]

2023412A31H 3NAMA  3E129A 1ZE54E 5Z104F 1041 E E£R &it
SR

WME REFRHRRITRIN 98,364 - - - - 2 98,366
77 b 2R 119,681 3,113 12,886 - - 7,742 143,422
HFEES 226,381 248,849 67,850 - - 1,167 544,247
FTESRA~ - - - - - 3,569 3,569
ENBESRE = 476,884 400 - - - 241 477,525
RIMREFLER 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743
RHMEmA 15,203 120,481 10,112 36,472 70,120 649,673 902,061
AR A 12,607 234,774 444,585 131 - 8,888 700,985
Hh AR % 399,236 155,154 318,958 142,307 141,647 10,219 1,167,521
HANE TRER - - - - - 5,460 5,460
Hith 172 - - - - 8,364 8,536
SRR~ AT 6,053,252 8,988,902 1,099,816 396,598 1,025,799 732,068 18,296,435
SRR

[k & E At & R AL FRR I 553,566 1,944,613 100 - - 8,071 2,506,350
1) BT 0 HL & BRATLAG A 5K 268,521 352,031 45,500 60 - 7,839 673,951
HANARE 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
X HMERAR - - - - - 2,621 2,621
LT SRR - - - - - 8,271 8,271
SEH B 1 4 R K 15,461 1,578 - - - 51 17,090
T EcE N 747,420 89,734 11,281 4,143 2,146 8,530 863,254
ERTESITS 1,024,225 1,108,774 5,207,684 4,360,893 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Hith 1,440 2 500 3 - 27,741 29,686
ERARETT 2,636,158 3,512,036 5,266,516 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16,868,785

FEREHEMEEOD ST 3,417,094 5,476,866  (4,166,700)  (3,968,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650
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RERNEXEENBEMIHEFREENL, ATENLRA SRR AGF RN O DB UKENESITNT

VN

2o2uss 1273318 CotAMB oEGR 1ESE  sE0F  0RNE k8 &
EREF:

& RFRHRBITRI 71,325 = = = = 2 71,327
FRUE b FRIR 166,729 = = = = 1,338 168,067
FEASE 177,970 264,916 34,011 = = 838 477,735
PTESRE ™ - - - - = 3,465 3,465
ENBRESRA > 598,391 373 = = = 84 598,848
RRER MK 8,150,898 3,827,614 1,180,531 204,882 341,290 492,028 14,197,243
R HMHERA~ 7,288 72,514 3,301 13,722 4,122 408,633 509,580
AR R 11,541 108,976 321,355 83,700 = 5,853 531,425
HE At & 150,130 124,907 267,752 211,962 173,940 8,688 937,379
HbiNE TEELRA - - = = = 2,000 2,000
Hth - - - = = 6,925 6,925
B~ 9,334,272 4,399,300 1,806,950 514,266 519,352 929,854 17,503,994
AN

Bk B H At £ B AN A8 5 SR T 223,088 1,753,729 100 = - 5,498 1,982,415
= BUFFH & m A (AR 113,536 174,118 = - - 2,276 289,930
FARSE 6,860 2,192 893 120 478 33 10,576
LTHE SR AR = - - - - 8,434 8,434
SE B I 4 A R AR - - - = = = =
R I 47 5K 824,668 105,442 22,712 4,924 1,459 7,741 966,946
ERTREIES 866,411 1,177,504 5,663,284 4,523,757 814,684 241,216 13,286,856
Hit - - - = = 6,311 6,311
k= 2,034,563 3,212,985 5,686,989 4,528,801 816,621 271,509 16,551,468
HMEEHENMHRAESIT 7,299,709 1,186,315  (3,880,039)  (4,014,535) (297,269) 658,345 952,526
VN

2023%12H31H 3MNAMA  3FE129A 1E55% 5Z 104 1041 E [ ait
SRR

N & RFHH RBITRIM 97,821 - - - - 2 97,823
FIE LRI 132,973 12 - - - 7,436 140,421
FEAESE 226,381 258,749 67,850 - - 1,220 554,200
ETE SRR - - - - - 2,893 2,893
ENRESRE= 476,884 400 - - - 172 477,456
R 4,565,640 8,234,751 231,206 210,810 479,583 34,983 13,756,973
R MERA 11,457 120,231 9,703 34,672 4,176 495,329 675,568
G R 12,436 233,367 441,695 - - 8,858 696,356
HA R H 398,921 148,567 298,866 134,660 140,689 9,795 1,131,498
Hthiam TREER - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Hith - - - - - 4,719 4,719
SRME~AIT 5,922,513 8,996,077 1,049,320 380,142 624,448 567,407 17,539,907
AR

5 b &2 ELAth & B AN A 17 BRI 556,887 1,951,142 100 - - 8,257 2,516,386
8 B & R AL A 2R 134,923 226,400 18,486 - - 6,171 385,980
/AR 10,270 14,950 1,451 83 550 313 27,617
TSR RER - - - - - 8,025 8,025
S B 4 Rl R 7R AR - 1,125 - - - 7 1,132
R I 77 5K 887,705 103,100 11,281 4,143 2,146 9,037 1,017,412
ERfTHREIEH 1,015,341 1,100,149 5,184,469 4,357,288 784,153 238,104 12,679,504
Hith - - - - - 6,680 6,680
SRR ETT 2,605,126 3,396,866 5,215,787 4,361,514 786,849 276,594 16,642,736

FEEHEMHRAEIT 3,317,387 5,599,211 (4,166,467)  (3,981,372) (162,401) 290,813 897,171




SRR R E MR A R GUR MDA

TRITFTHEBRRARMERNETEASTRIOONEANERT, BT REPRAEANESR R SHRR
k12N A AR RS RAR A MG SR~ EERTIE M, ZAWREFTE ARG DABRBEER . KKE ”: A=
i HAMFREFRRAER.
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ARAIE . R

A& 20244 20234

BEEE AT . AEBEN  Httsaka 00 MEREN  Hsoks
EF100MNE = 68,085 (86,360) 50,438 (35,660)
TEE100ME S (68,085) 39,176 (50,438) 40,481
47 20244 20234

W R AT C mEREA  Hisaks 00 NESKN  Hisaks
EF100ME X 67,985 (34,059) 50,024 (34,456)
TRE100 5 & (67,985) 36,898 (50,024) 38,894

X BN B F M 2HE—

EFHREHARFE O KRR —FRRTHREZNNSRAT RER UG~ EHTSFRA

MW, ZAMBREARFANERAT RARNEEREAT. REEFTH. BERRIRFENEENANERUEBER.
WEMGERENEMEEETE—ENRLHNNPRFENAMENRALATELE LA ANERHHZ M,
ST SRNFEEATEER. B LRFIRE

FEANAZBEFRERAEANASEARF TN EERNBE, Fit LR F
HMEWANRZBEAEIE, ETESNTUTKRE B EAEAREMNERERILT, FESFRATEMES

TR R E IR R ARF 2 MBS o) 8E SR AR A9 RUe B A

2. CERXKE

AREFFKBITLEREFH~EMNLCRNE ZRREZMEYSRAMAERE,
RERANKITDWERARTWS, WHEET. K. BTMEMNRSITL S, KAEANLCENETEEFEEXT. AEFE

RICRHTAETREXMNERD E T AHTX R, 2024F K, AR\ ETICER

0.11815t/1%7T) .

AEAFTEBIINOHA OCRGREMDTER W (EaR) EFH LR RN BITEENT W, FRTEE

BHMENRS IR ZEFTRATLRREERE.

AEAXTHLEREHADS, MERTHRSHNARFTEARTKENESITMOT

Wz Bkt S, BiZ

BEARMO0.10577L/1£ 7T (2023F EREART

SENPEE=R

REHR

2024512791 5 | ART ARHART RRTRUART ATHARTAE &
SRR

& RAFH P RBITHRI 70,084 1,798 = 1,798 71,882
FE W FRI 67,401 35,445 16,712 52,157 119,558
HHHES 364,558 106,181 6,996 113,177 477,735
LT ERA 2,773 940 190 1,130 3,903
ENBRESRE = 598,960 = = = 598,960
RMER MK 14,002,706 538,128 147,938 686,066 14,688,772
T oM SRR 710,180 28,846 668 29,514 739,694
G R 452,467 85,414 = 85,414 537,881
HARARH 932,048 21,432 20,122 41,554 973,602
Hthiad TREER 3,874 = 5,984 5,984 9,858
Hith 14,582 2,530 226 2,756 17,338
SRE AT 17,219,633 820,714 198,836 1,019,550 18,239,183
SRR

& b & o fth S RRATLAG 7 BRI 1,966,999 5,831 3,649 9,480 1,976,479
= BUR A H th &R AR 493,642 112,831 - 112,831 606,473
HANES 9,131 9,114 1,462 10,576 19,707
XML AR 2,881 2 - 2 2,883
PR o SR 7,410 1,210 671 1,881 9,291
SEH B W€ R 5K 10,432 = = = 10,432
R I 77 3K 655,421 95,588 36,716 132,304 787,725
ERITREIES 13,257,087 56,770 14,672 71,442 13,328,529
Hith 14,451 6,212 148 6,360 20,811
k= ns 16,417,454 287,558 57,318 344,876 16,762,330
WA L% 802,179 533,156 141,518 674,674 1,476,853
CELTETR (BFR/BXEH) 194,035 (39,504) (69,763) (109,267) 84,768
BV 373 4,934,236 87,430 34,555 121,985 5,056,221




108 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

FEH

20235124318 © ART REHART EWTHAART ATHHARGME &t

ERB

M K AF MR RBITHRIN 95,818 2,534 14 2,548 98,366
FFRUE L FRI 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
FHAS 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
T ERAE~ 2,358 1,075 136 1,211 3,569
INEESR A~ 477,525 - - - 477,525
R GER IR 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244,743
oM ERE 875,009 26,773 279 27,052 902,061
B A 603,927 97,058 - 97,058 700,985
HAb AR 1,129,408 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,167,521
HAAE TRKRH 2,000 - 3,460 3,460 5,460
Hts 5,540 2,585 411 2,996 8,536
A=A 17,039,486 1,022,630 234,319 1,256,949 18,296,435
SRR

5 b R LAt & B AT A 17 BRI 2,503,915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350
150 B FO L th & BRANLAD (3R 408,894 265,057 - 265,057 673,951
HANAE 18,746 13,453 11,066 24,519 43,265
X HMEAR 2,620 1 - 1 2,621
LTHE SR AR 7,212 503 556 1,059 8,271
S [B] 1 € Rl 7 7 3K 15,958 - 1,132 1,132 17,090
R I 47 3K 692,704 103,713 66,837 170,550 863,254
ERTHREIES 12,628,393 74,074 21,830 95,904 12,724,297
Hth 22,327 6,843 516 7,359 29,686
SR GATT 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 568,016 16,868,785
RN E L& 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
CELFETR (FR/ZBXEH) 225,654 (112,644) (73,589) (186,233) 39,421
EHRIE 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600

ATEMMLCENKEHONH, MEEMR~HMAERITEARTKENES ~OT .

4T

20244 12H31H AR ETHART Htm#HHART SIHFARTNT &it
ERE:

M e K AF M F RBITHRIN 69,580 1,747 = 1,747 71,327
FRE M FR IR 132,061 20,455 15,551 36,006 168,067
HHEAS 364,558 106,181 6,996 113,177 477,735
TTESmAS~ 2,768 511 186 697 3,465
ENBESRE > 598,848 - — - 598,848
RGN 13,528,263 521,042 147,938 668,980 14,197,243
o MEEmA = 509,555 25 = 25 509,580
RV A 446,759 84,666 = 84,666 531,425
H s & 895,825 21,432 20,122 41,554 937,379
HMNSETRER 2,000 = - - 2,000
Hith 6,724 3 198 201 6,925
B~ EIT 16,556,941 756,062 190,991 947,053 17,503,994
AR

5 b R ELAth S B AN A 7 AR IR 1,968,130 10,635 3,650 14,285 1,982,415
B B A H At & BR AL AD (7R 255,438 34,492 = 34,492 289,930
HANAS = 9,114 1,462 10,576 10,576
TTESmAR 7,392 511 531 1,042 8,434
SE i [B] 1 4 Rl R 5K - - = = -
R I 47 3K 805,745 120,122 41,079 161,201 966,946
ERTHREIES 13,235,865 36,319 14,672 50,991 13,286,856
Hth 5,595 309 407 716 6,311
SR RATT 16,278,165 211,502 61,801 273,303 16,551,468
=M E LTER 278,776 544,560 129,190 673,750 952,526
CELTETR (AR/BXER) 191,641 (113,506) (77,848) (191,354) 287

BEHRIE 4,946,089 87,186 34,555 121,741 5,067,830
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AT

(EERANA ART TAART ARTHAART ATRARGAE &
BRI
N4 RAFHH RBRITRIT 95,319 2,490 14 2,504 97,823
R b FRIN 87,986 29,829 22,606 52,435 140,421
HHAES 438,133 98,773 17,294 116,067 554,200
ETHE SR~ 2,340 459 94 553 2,893
ENEESRE™ 477,456 - - - 477,456
R GEFR AR 12,891,847 694,760 170,366 865,126 13,756,973
T oM SR 674,949 590 29 619 675,568
FRAIR 599,447 96,909 - 96,909 696,356
HA AR HE 1,093,385 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,131,498
Hias TEEE 2,000 - - - 2,000
Hith 3,724 835 160 995 4,719
SRE~ AT 16,366,586 945,443 227,878 1,173,321 17,539,907
SRR
Bk B b £ B AL 7 UK TR 2,505,929 10,338 119 10,457 2,516,386
15 BUR A1 H fth & R AL A9 3K 223,555 162,425 - 162,425 385,980
HANES 4,764 11,787 11,066 22,853 27,617
LT SRR 7,033 459 533 992 8,025
SE B & R R R 5K - - 1,132 1,132 1,132
R 7R 821,732 124,901 70,779 195,680 1,017,412
ERTHEFIES 12,614,434 46,062 19,008 65,070 12,679,504
Hit 5,918 370 392 762 6,680
SR ARETT 16,183,365 356,342 103,029 459,371 16,642,736
RATLE LT #E 183,221 589,101 124,849 713,950 897,171
CEGETR (AR/BXEH) 220,498 (146,689) (77,319) (224,008) (3,510
(B 3,499,161 103,344 24,283 127,627 3,626,788

TRIFT AEARKTHEEMNCREHONEBZNTHNPSTHNARTLREAN BHI%NERT SMHEHTUHRE~S 0
FRESMOREDTETRSELTNBRIAENBEZN. LR RN AEARKTHEMGERAZWAEK.

ki S 17
EF1% 5,246 4,435 4,412 4,424
TR1% (5,246) (4,435) (4,412) (4,424)

DACRRHNRAFINZ M, AEAZAEENRENES HREEUTEE:
- AFNBERABARKEAXRTATHAMNEWL,

- CEREHNEFTANEM,

- LR THNENFME.
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() FEBh TR

RAMNERIEAKARFEEEN. ERERNUEERARERER S UE N R BKH A E RSB R . man it RS
TRERTERTEERNA . FRANNESUARLERRABERHERRASHER.

AEARY—BERDMEREBIRIER SENRESPRAASRHEPINEE. AW TUAREZR2THE AR
KBS

20245 ATHSBU AT LHAEFHERA R R, REERSREEEELRMAMEXS, BFGNREKHBARBEK T £/
BROFRE FEREGEIHA. EATEBELIAT S LNERERRTHRNTRFEREA.

AR E IR R BRI

AEFAARSXEAEASRINER HPEEEFHFR. NN EPER. BERS. BRRAN. BETERERAGIASEENET
FEMTRENOMARER,

BRFNFRIHEEENA SRR ESECEZARAEARNMNREENER B4R, AT L EEFTHENHRNT
BAIES AERARBASMAGRENTELREEFAIMN., REENLTTERESESRE, ERNBFES EREHNE, K
FEBNBERCENAT AT EHESEEEZA.

VEERBNESBR2ANMENEHREEERT. ARANRSMEERRERH.

- MNERETHOAESR. FHEEFRRN A HIKF.

- BREAFAFRMRA,

- BEGRSIHBNETENRIL,

- BRRSHAITY.

AEARHEBRIETH LR THEATRNATERANNT RSN, EHFFEREABARERIORAN M, 1L, RIEHLEZ
B A Mo AGR MEHER, FASEIHARE MELBAER, EARREINATRANASTE R, KAEFARE
TEEMRHSRA R,

BEBLT AEAFRPANAE=ZFLFERIAFENGERILEARENSTETRIA S, A REHIEBERITREMIEMTNE
E—REMTARBENSH, BN, BAMEAKETERIH. PESKAHAENRAZFAHMTRREET ALERKENS
BAEMFFADARKRKRFABNEBAETR.

ERmIAERINEDH
AEFAEMEFRNERR, WRFFRNERMETT. =& HR. SRR o580,

FEANRABRZNEBIRFRSAETONSERNARSALATHNELENER, DIAZMAFTRNEAEDTEZNKLR
R, AR REARNNRATREBAFASNEN, ARABE R TEEFRSAZINFEGHFHESTERAT R, X
LERHF T RERNE N, WEAKBARERFFAFALERFIYZARE, B2, RAEENNHEFREAEALTHERFHHRD
By, T2024F12A310, ARAKHR (WP EE—FH—FNU L) ERTRFIUESES TSI HIARTI1.37F 2T, Efs
KHIRRG S (BERL R EMESRAMMEIRRT . @mBAMEMSRMER. SHRBERE~RNREER) A2 HEITH
AR™1,569.111Z7C,

RERACNRKARDE, AEAETESRTIAT ST RFLEENTELRTIARVEAAGRASRABIITOT, KE
ANXLSRTETNPNASRES TRTNONTREFEZNESR.
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FEH

JHTESRA™

Re R FRHRETHR = 71,647 235 = = = = = 71,882
BHELHT 1,338 82,243 4113 867 452 32,684 - = 121,697
btk - - 121,723 58,901 267,753 34,781 - - 483,158
INBEEEA 31 - 598,598 - 379 = = - 599,008
REERABER 38,057 - 60,142 327,345 1,172,730 4214673 3944937 12957,917 22,715,801
RHhERAS 183,658 407 2,203 7,509 84,263 32,445 233833 259,714 804,032
FRR A 764 - 466 16,063 125,805 353,202 99,685 170 596,155
H A 2 = 68,130 89,465 144863 326208 256,503 200919 1,086,090
HitaE TARR 9,858 = = = = = = = 9,858
Hity 1,507 12,414 159 674 314 1,802 539 = 17,409
ER A b il 235,215 166,711 855,769 500,824 1,796,559  4,995795 4,535,497 13,418,720 26,505,090
FTESBAR

Bl R E A ST HRR = 71,342 150,926 1,859 1,776,757 108 - - 2000992
MBS R ER = = 16,024 142317 329,195 103,898 19,132 1,444 612,010
N = - 8,451 7,640 2,242 972 116 493 19,914
HtERA%K - - - - - 2,883 - - 2,883
SHEWSRHE R - = 8,702 793 948 = = = 10,443
R - 594,478 24,976 46,062 93,335 25,019 5,835 1,879 791,584
EXRTREIESH - = 282,630 321,323 1,504,019 7,026,826 5,143,564 1,153,130 15,431,492
Hit 797 7,425 347 239 7,639 3,023 1,397 - 20,867
FESHARER 797 673,245 492,056 520,233 3,714,135 7,162,729 5,170,044 1,156,946 18,890,185
Bkt 234418 (506,534) 363,713 (19,409) (1,917,576) (2,166,934)  (634,547) 12,261,774 7,614,905
fTESMIANSR

RANEENTESRIR - - 37 100 194 1 204 (102) 434
BRTEENTESRIA

RS AN - - 31,910 37447 256,121 9,082 = - 334560
NeF = - (31,956)  (37,459)  (264,729) (8,887) = - (343,031)
TEEMIARERAIN - - 9) 88 (8,414) 196 204 (102) _ (8,037)




12 EIZRF445RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

A&

FTEERA

AL RFRFRBAIRA - 98,167 199 - - - - - 98,366
e EN B 928 105,054 13,504 4,190 3,178 18,418 - - 145,272
KRS - - 104,300 125,791 252,532 69,379 - - 552,002
ENEESBAS 69 - 391184 85,938 408 - - ~ 477,599
R RAALER 46,938 - 364,740 359579 1427679 6,259,123 4,688,322 7,348,229 20,494,610
TR ERA* 175,667 - 10,235 8,657 144,125 142,980 171,530 267,015 920,209
R 1,670 - 407 15,869 165,347 509,016 133,740 - 826,049
Hty AR 14 - 328585 72,023 174624 373379 174,346 175046 1,298,017
HiiE TARE 5,460 - - - - - - - 5,460
Hito 301 6,296 25 41 166 1,063 708 - 8,600
FEESRATRE 231,047 209517 1213179 672,088 2,168,059  7,373358 5,168,646 7,790,290 24,826,184
ek

Rl & H At & BT MR - 74,283 29,843 454,880 1,995,050 108 - - 2,554,164
B B AR 2 AR - - 29,283 187,539 361,528 105,291 7,824 - 691,465
wNEE - - 16,405 9,411 15,893 1,598 140 531 43,978
ot ek - - - - - 2,621 - - 2,621
EHE WS E=R - - 12,557 2976 1,615 - - - 17,148
Ll ecE - 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,990 5,795 3,773 867,122
ERTREIEH - - 368,684 454,448 1,370,054 6,571,124 4979937 1,161,856 14,906,103
Hit 7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,395 - 29,760
FESRAGREN 7 785,498 471816 1,152,424 3843948 6,697,417 4995091 1,166,160 19,112,361
B3k~f 231,040 (575981) 741,363 (480,336) (1,675889) _ 675941 173555 6,624,130 5,713,823
fTEEBTARSR

BAREENITESRIA - - (95) 69 29 207 62 45 317
BREAENITEERIA

WEHN - - 79,050 51,037 310,131 15,159 - - 455377
bk - - (81,038)  (51,278)  (316,259)  (14,909) - ~ (463.484)
TSI ARERAT - - (2,083) (172) (6,099) 457 62 45 (7,790)
&7

FTEERA

e REMFRFTHR - 71,327 - = = - = - 71,327
[ EN 1,338 166,736 = = = - - - 168,074
bk &3 - = 121,723 58,901 267,753 34,781 = = 483,158
INBELRAT - - 598,518 - 379 = - = 598,897
RM SRR 35,896 - 56,138 315507 1,124,649 4068595 3,869,386 12,511,467 21,981,638
ot erA 15,505 = 108 7,508 84,222 31,918 232,984 192,296 564,541
R R = = 466 15,655 123,363 349,499 99,347 = 588,330
HBHAR A = = 68,039 87,895 141,171 315,051 239,360 191,127 1,042,643
HiE TRER 2,000 = - - = - - = 2,000
Hith = 6,925 = = = - = = 6,925

FOESRB~ B8 54,739 244,988 844,992 485466 1741537 4,799,844 4441077 12,894,890 25,507,533
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FTEERAER

Bl R E A s aEHRR = 72,621 152,314 3,031 1,778,855 108 = - 2,006,929
BEFAEESRNEER = = 14,806 66,258 179,098 32,069 2,159 = 294,390
KANKE = - 1,648 5,304 2,241 972 116 493 10,774
SHENSHAZHR - - - - - = = = -
R R = 740,599 36,334 53,666 107,184 25,019 5,835 1,879 970,516
E&THRETES = - 282619 314702 1500336 6,997,235 5139985 1,153,130 15,388,007
Hity = 6,311 = = = = - - 6,311
FrESUARER - 819,531 487,721 442961 3567714 7055403 5,148,095 1,155,502 18,676,927
B3kF 54739 (574543) 357271 42505 (1,826,177) (2,255559) (707,018) 11,739,388  6.830,606
fTESBIANER

RAREENTESRMTIR - - @) 12 (64) (15) (253) (102) (429)
BRTSENTESRIA

SN = - 29,566 34,191 248,953 535 = - 313245
ek - - (29,501)  (33,724)  (258,196) (535) - - (321,956)
TEEBIARESRAT - - 58 479 (9,307) (15) (253) (102) (9,140)
&7

FTESRE™

RERFRHREIHI - 97,823 - - - - - - 97,823
IR LT 928 139,496 - - - - - 140,424
bk - - 104,300 125,844 262,556 69,379 - - 562,079
IANBRELRAE - - 391,184 85,938 408 - - - 477,530
RERFAMBER 45,727 - 361,101 346,021 1,379,005 6094411 4621756 6,914,528 19,762,549
THMEBA 21,557 - 6,492 8,655 143,838 142,130 169,569 200,951 693,192
R E - - 407 15,858 163,878 506,061 133,506 - 819,800
Hb AR A - - 328,433 71,764 167,089 350,749 165,764 173,654 1,257,453
Hitla TARR 2,000 - - - - - - 2,000
Hitr - 4719 - - - - - - 4719
FETESMAS M 70,212 242,038 1,191,917 654,080 2,116,774 7,162,730 5,090,685 7,289,133 23,817,569
ek

Bl R E A S RAERRR - 76,298 31217 455,149 2,001,660 108 - - 2,564,432
EEFTEESRNEER - - 9,857 140,632 217,618 23,698 - - 391,805
N - - 5,707 4,781 15,526 1,598 140 531 28,283
SHEMSHE R - - - - 1,157 - - - 1,157
R - 825626 20,094 48,424 105,388 11,990 5,795 3773 1,021,090
EXTRFILH - - 366,894 447,432 1360428 6541807 4981438 1,161,856 14,859,855
Hity - 6,680 - - - - - 6,680
T ESRAKEM - 908,604 433,769 1,096,418 3,701,777 6579201 4,987,373 1,166,160 18,873,302
B3kF 70212 (666,566) 758,148 (442,338) (1,585003) 583,529 103312 6,122,973 4,944,267
fTEEBTARSR

BAREENITESRIA - - (156) ) (173) 57 65 45 (170)
BROSENTESRIA

REHA - - 77,018 47,494 303,084 4,064 - ~ 431,660
b it - - (78,918) (47,588)  (309,131) (4,122) - - (439,759)
TEEBIARERAT - - (2,056) (102) (6,220) (1) 65 45 (8,269)
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AERAFHKE. FHRE . RTRKAZLEERFLERENERSTREREMPEAIBIRHT .

&M

2024#£12H31H

BRI 3,722 9,168 114,407 1,622,384 244,766 3,055,479 5,049,926
FFHAR B KABR 139 363 188 2,031 10 = 2,731
RITRFILCE 466 895 2,041 = = = 3,402
FHEEAIE 49 10 103 - - - 162
Ait 4,376 10,436 116,739 1,624,415 244,776 3,055,479 5,056,221
2023412H31H

BRI 33,329 1,555 73,898 210,450 243,284 3,040,960 3,603,476
FFHAR R KABR 132 300 364 2,541 10 - 3,347
RITEKFLCE 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
FHERIE 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
&it 33,737 2,475 76,143 212,991 243,294 3,040,960 3,609,600

B fRfRRIMIE

RETRFKE . FRERE. RITRALEZRAUERIINERSTIZAREHE DB ROT -

T

2024%12H31H

BRI 3,722 9,168 114,407 1,627,810 251,194 3,055,479 5,061,780
FFHRERZBR 138 363 188 1,787 10 = 2,486
FITRRILCRE 466 895 2,041 = = = 3,402
FHERIE 49 10 103 = = = 162
&1t 4,375 10,436 116,739 1,629,597 251,204 3,055,479 5,067,830
2023%12H31H

BEROR A 33,328 1,555 73,898 210,451 249,526 3,052,151 3,620,909
FFHAR R R ABR 132 300 364 2,296 10 - 3,102
RITRFLCE 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
FHAERIE 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
&it 33,736 2,475 76,143 212,747 249,536 3,052,151 3,626,788

(h) eMAFMEMAGHARNE

ERIAAANENREIEERBRA SR ARAEETRT S L RSAROIRN, ATTENERTH ERBURNE, AEARBILE
RENGERARBESRIENARNME. HERAGRARELEAITRNEOTHEE IR TR M RGEAEAE S
iR MAKAMXANEERABGEEZETHSSZFEENIRTESENFAERE, FSNANESRITAEENEFEIRRK
F—E.

AEAGMERAEPRARAIENXEENN R, BEASHNBERATHTREEN NESEMRETHIER.
AEAUDP D E-—RANERIAIZQEEIHIHAXZNIESFEES XRAMRESEERTHTOHRNMTE (REAE).

AERAMDAZE_RRNERIATEGRIESRA  TEAN BEANAANETEAETH AL HRENREY L EF
BOBEEATSF ARFHFNAANEZRTREGBILAEARTELAINEEERHE I HRFHLANERREER
BRGEERPE. TEEARARMAASRENHT R - TR REREE T AN HHETEE MEERGEESEYATHT
WEE.

AEAXUNDAE=ZFRANERTIETIBAREAFANRLER LTRNAERALTESRIENRN, EREERGERAHE
ARME. MRNEERARTBZSRASRINIE FH% JHASE, ERAANENTERA T NEESEERTZ BT
TRNESH FESHTZERTHIFOEARE  IRTFRARRA KRR RN X TH T ASEHE.
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AEH
AR [ E-RR #SRR ®EEx &
ot
PSR~
CEFTETR - 2,923 - 2,923
MELHFETR - 980 - 980
RIMFRMER - - 53,485 53,485
SRR
ARG ENFENSRATREMNAANE
HEREHTHITALHRANSRE >
iz 180 23,238 278 23,696
B e - 75,004 = 75,004
RBREERESHA 9,856 722 139 10,717
AT R ITHVIER Y & - 3,003 = 3,003
METH 4,531 3,086 619,366 626,983
# g - 291 = 291
HADGAIE R
i 4,457 847,573 2 852,032
GhZEa: = 121,570 = 121,570
Hithilas TERHE 7,858 = 2,000 9,858
&it 26,882 1,078,390 675,270 1,780,542
SRR
ZHMER AR - - (2,883) (2,883)
TTHE SRR MR
CELTETR = (8,266) = (8,266)
MEFTETR - (1,025) = (1,025)
&it = (9,291) (2,883) (12,174)
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AEH
o23%12AmE ®¥-ER  ®¥=Ex  ®ZEx @it
ERE~
FTEERAR
CRGETHR - 2,288 - 2,288
MELGFETR _ 1,281 _ 1081
BRI - - 54,422 54,422
SR

ARG ENFENERAT REMBULRANE
HEAHTHITALHRAN ST

"% 430 53,014 434 53,878
ERIZE3-1 - 117,890 - 117,890
BERESEZE 12,539 720 35 13,294
TR ITHVER Y = & - 3,743 - 3,743
WHETHE 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,537
BRI - 321 - 321
EEMAAMETEBE TN LHREN
SRR
s - 203 181 384
BRI - 14 - 14
H AR
% 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
BNz - 373,146 - 373,146
HtiNE TRER 3,460 - 2,000 5,460
&it 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033
Al
THHEERAT - - (2,621) (2,621)
PR o RN
CRETAETR - (7,197) - (7,197)
MELTETH - (1,074) - (1,074)
&it - (8,271) (2,621) (10,892)
4T
024%12A38 | ®-ER  ®=ER  ®ZEx &t
ERE~
PTEERAR
CELETR = 2,871 = 2,871
MELTETR = 594 = 594
R R - = 53,485 53,485
SR T

ARG EMNFENERAT REBUAANETER
HESITALSHRGEHSRA

fR% - 22,579 278 22,857
ERZE-] = 75,004 = 75,004
WNHETHE 4,520 3,086 404,113 411,719
H AR
i = 819,344 = 819,344
ENZE:] - 118,035 - 118,035
HthiEm TEER = = 2,000 2,000
&it 4,520 1,041,513 459,876 1,505,909
SRR
PSR RE
CERLTETR = (7,412) = (7,412)
MELTETR = (1,022) = (1,022)

&it = (8,434) = (8,434)
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A*4T
‘mmgiATE ®oER ®SER ®ERR A
ERMA~
PSRBT~
CELFETR - 2,091 - 2,091
FIERLTETHR - 802 - 802
RIMFRMEK - - 54,422 54,422
SRUIEE

AXZENFENSRAT REMMUAARMNE
HEAERTHITALPRANSRE ™

s - 51,578 434 52,012
GRS - 117,890 - 117,890
M#ETR 9,346 11,204 484,718 505,268
EEMAAMETTEEH TN LEREN
SRR
&% - 203 181 384
R BT - 14 14
H AR
% - 760,780 - 760,780
AL FE - 370,718 370,718
Hia TRRH - - 2,000 2,000
ait 9,346 1,315,280 541,755 1,866,381
SRRk
LT SRR
CELTETR - (6,958) - (6,958)
MEFTETR - (1,067) (1,067)
&it - (8,025) - (8,025)

2024, ARAE—RAMNE_RREM TR B LEKRER (2023F X F).
AEALRE=ZRREMTALTHMNT:

AEEH SRR
L asteRR SSSSRRS RRGREX AGRETAEN  SEESAN
20241518 54,422 692,623 17 2,000 749,062
By = (16,777) = (16,777)
1B 3,856 25,274 - = 29,130
“®H (5,328) (81,813) 4 = (87,145)
ME=ZRREH - (128) (11) = (139)
Baait
W g 535 413 = - 948
HAthEr & - 191 = = 191
20244E128 318 53,485 619,783 2 2,000 675,270
FRAENAF/ RS
TR R PR 535 4,524 = = 5,059
TTAHALG & - 191 = 191
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A%H SRAF
L SOMERR . RBRSERS O RGGREX RGRETREX  SMASAN
2023415 1H 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793,015
S - (9,586) (12) - (9,598)
1 8,277 14,362 - - 22,639
EZC (5,392) (63,449) - - (68,841)
MNEZRREEE - (8,437) - - (8,437)
MEETT
s 3,440 16,606 - - 20,046
HnER A as - 242 (4) - 238
20234128318 54,422 692,623 17 2,000 749,062
FRHENAS /AT
TSR R P A 3,440 6,093 - - 9,533
ARG RS - 225 (4) - 221

AT ERE=ZFREMIELTIHNWT:

4T SR
L asseR TSMeRRT  RGGMER RRREIARX  SMASAN

20241818 54,422 485,333 - 2,000 541,755
By - - - = =
i 3,856 346 = = 4,202
E=1C (5,328) (73,978) - - (79,306)
BAE=ZEX - = - - -
M A

Was/ (4RK) 535 (7,310) - - (6,775)
20244128318 53,485 404,391 - 2,000 459,876
FRENE=/HEF.

AR R P AR/ (]RK) 585 (2,351) = = (1,816)

ARG &R - - - - -
4T SRR

L hsSMRRR SSMEMAS  RBNREX RGREIARE  SRESEH

202315 1H 48,097 521,165 - 2,000 571,262
i - - - - -
o 8,277 1,574 - - 9,851
#E (5,392) (48,920) - - (54,312)
BANEZREX - 137 - - 137
W@ AT

zs 3,440 11,377 - - 14,817
2023128318 54,422 485,333 - 2,000 541,755
FRENA=/EFR.

TEA B 3R T A 3,440 1,604 - - 5,044

TTAHMBER S - - - - _
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2. EUNRMETENEHMIA

AEAEURAANETENSEASMOE, AAANEGTET TITTHITETRE ARNMERERIRZNDAEZEXR.

(1) AERFHRPRBITRIM. FHRRLZRT. FEAS IARESHAS BUEHERRM. EAEHER FAAS. T
(B £ Bh 7= 5K H A B A0 E A 1 B — S ) HI A HoAth S ORI R A SR
HFUEERA~REMAGNIHART2E—FMUR, BESATHTHHNERSENEN, HKENERIREAANE.

(2) AR
EHIESRA A RN ENTRBOTHRN DR, BT LB OISR, WEBRNSELESRARKUE NS
SRR HEBIES R N OEEE AT,

(3) BHEHABHK
mFFHHERROHEIBREGAARRTRENEHEH M2 BLETRE, KKENELLARNMEN A BEIL. B
EHRRHRAA ROE MRS RBUIATE , WTLK 5% S8R 0T & BRI L 017 Bk,

(4) BRHEEAER. BLERRER
BRAEEAFR. FAUERAEROA R NHEMI S REWI AR, KL B SR B5R e B R MR ST
R,

ER()E@) DR R E BN SRAF TR QKA N ERERARNE.

(5) ERITHSIES
FEHARNENTHEN D BRASEXULRTAOTHRARE, M FEEHBTHRNAX LB IATHRNL
% HARHEN 5% % R R BB ERAKIRRS T D BHOT S RBUIERE,

TRIFT ERTHSESOKENENRIAROARNE.

2024412H31H 2023412H31H
A
ERTTHFIESH 13,328,529 14,201,955 12,724,297 13,148,371
AT
ERITRFIES 13,286,856 14,160,284 12,679,504 13,104,310
() BXEE

AEARTRAEERNEAMSLLE~ARRTN FEENE MEEN 2 HEZEEMNE.
- BREAERAZLEMEMRITEENNRENRARAEX,
- RIEAERAFELER N NERBIFLEAREERERIR,
- REBEEMNAAEMNIFIESELE.
AEHNEEEZETEERZRSNMEXES] NERERSHLAETELRNLENE INEERANEERMEERALNEH
BR. ATEZEEAERSREEEEARLLRMERNAREFEL. TR024F12A310, AKARARZHMAART19,939.8412
T —RERBFAART6,541.3527C, b —REBARBTMAANRT16,526.121270, BAFREH12.37%, —REARAFTREK A
10.25%, B —RERFRE H10.24%, KITEABFMHART19,518.66127T, —RARBFNZLL—RERABHHYNART
16,202.44127C, RAFE R E H12.32%, —RBERFE R RN O —REARTE L LY H10.19%,

T=Z. BZERRRARED
AEARAFTEEENR=MRERAEE.

TH. kBR#F
HFEARGESRENTRAR, KEAN N LLBREFZHT T EFHIIR.

TH. MERERZHUAE
ATEEFRE F0256F4A29AHAE T ATNBRAIRAHMSHE.

TR . SHIMESHERRR
RIREFRE T ITH ST (B EBAIK) HAFT20245F B S IRFHIHORTH T 5 1. 202478 B RN 8 — 4 0 K FTHR {3

BR%.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

EES

Board of Directors

B SREER
Audit Department Senior Management
\ \ \ \ \
PAE B . e . .
R e %R S PR W5 SRA
’ - _ Business Development and Digitalization Management Market Development & Equity
Executive Office Policy Research Department Planning Department Department Investment Department
(CPC Committee Office) Y, (Research Institute) ) ) ) y,
BT 2R BEIRIKF Ml 588 el 2= SRl N =51 FEepEwg | EEOHTERRLER
T o —— Energy and Water Resources Industry and Sci-tech Housing P Fi Housing and Urban
ransport Departmen Department Innovation Department T GG =S Development Department
J J J J S
| | | | —
TN AN# BEMM TR NANAE o LIRS
15;%*4&;:5 %@#ﬁfigg (% ;Zﬂégf (3% RUBERIZ A (REEE. BTREHKD)
Information Technology = 2 NN X Department of Party, Trade Union and Youth Afiairs
Department Operations Department Human Resources Department Office of the Steering Group for CPC CPG Cammiiee Publct Depariment,
) Y (CPC Committee Organization Departmeth) Disciplinary Inspection (CPC Ethics Ofﬂc% PG Comnitee Unied Fron Work Depariment
FHTRR
(FFRMEERER)
CDB Party School
(CDB Institute of Development Finance) )

= = . - TN U 2 SN A=
SERHHT REWHT THLE 51T WEEE ST =
Beijing Municipal Branch Tianjin Municipal Branch Hebei Provincial Branch Shanxi Provincial Branch fner F? Qoo IoneCLS
egion Branch )
\ \ \ \ \
AT 4T AIERIT TIRT 4T RHE DT BEA DT

Suzhou Municipal Branch

Zhejiang Provincial Branch

Ningbo Municipal Branch

Anhui Provincial Branch

Fujian Provincial Branch

\
WEE DT

Hunan Provincial Branch

\
I RENT

Guangdong Provincial Branch

\
AT 21T

Shenzhen Municipal Branch

\
I AERERR T

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous

Region Branch )

\
BEE T

Hainan Provincial Branch

\
FEAERBRX DT
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region Branch

\
FEENT

Qinghai Provincial Branch

\
TEEKERAR AT
Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region Branch

R B AX 21T
Xizang Autonomous
Region Branch

\
EBDT

Hong Kong Branch

\
BARNA

\
Pk

FERJL RETRMRRL 5 " e R
Representative Office Representative Office A %‘ﬂ\ A %‘E‘% Representative Office
in Cairo in Moscow Representative Office Representative Office in London

in Rio de Janeiro in Caracas

TERRTFAT

Main Subsidiaries

EAEmERIELT
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.

EFIESKRDERAT
CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

EREMBEERMBRAT
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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RREARNRAEEERS
Committee on Strategic Development
and Investment Management

BESNRE

Board of Directors Office

Audit Committee

HItER

2 AR ERERS

Risk Management Committee

KERZHEHNERS

Committee on Related-Party

Transaction Control

AEEHMERS

Committee on Human Resources

and Remuneration

EEAIE M3 AL R B2 R
Legal and Compliance Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Risk Management Gizal Brsviary Pemeriie
Department Department Market Department Department P
J J J J J
. Sy N~ =15 I o 7
somasy | MSEs | gamss | aegew | e
Rural Revitalization Department oclala einoo oan Vanagemel Asset Preservation Department ategic Lle
Programs Department Department Department
J J J J J
\ \ \ \ \
& Evd kA = Evd Evd — = -
il B5Y PRI BEKT B RSB 3
General Office Procurement Department Retired Staff Department CDB Global Finance
CDB Headquarters
v v v v v
4T 3 I\ = = = — = —
Bt EFRE R E R E— B R A E= 3 ERRAE= 2
| memﬁna\ Hn%ngoe Do Jﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ;g International Loan International Business International Business International Business
Otﬂoe)/ln‘m/anon e Deeggpment Conterfor BRI Management Department Department | Department Il Department Ill
J J J J
\ \ \ \ \ |
TTFEDT REDT T ERE DT BWITE DT LiEHAT LA T
Liaoning Provincial Branch Dalian Municipal Branch Jilin Provincial Branch Heilongjiang Provincial Branch Shanghai Municipal Branch Jiangsu Provincial Branch
/ / / / / /
\ \ \ \ \ \
EIImaT SIRE DT WWRBE DT BFEHAMT EE DT LA 21T
Xiamen Municipal Branch Jiangxi Provincial Branch Shandong Provincial Branch Qingdao Municipal Branch Henan Provincial Branch Hubei Provincial Branch
/ / / / / /
\ \ \ \ \ |
BERMRT & 21T "MEDT SEEDT BREGE 71T HRE21T
Chongaing Municipal Branch Sichuan Provincial Branch Guizhou Provincial Branch Yunnan Provincial Branch Shaanxi Provincial Branch Gansu Provincial Branch
J J J v v
\ \ \ \ \ \
5 (S| 5 S/ 5 N 5
ESREZE REL AR TS (R4 AR Bz AR
Representative Office “, ) Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office Representative Office
in Vientiane Repre§e/rltzatt|ve Office in Minsk in Jakarta in Sydney in Budapest
in Astana

RIERREEERAT

China-Africa Development Fund
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=BT

BEIJING MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik AEETH AP EX TN R A 1585 FRESR
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

#R4(Zip): 100031

E31%(Tel):(010) 63223100

& & (Fax):(010) 66412282

KETHT
TIANJIN MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik KB X RKBIEISIREBLRTOAE26RE

Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Center A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

ik 4%(Zip):300061

E3iE(Tel):(022) 85681234

£ E(Fax):(022) 88355858

FEE 3T

HEBEI PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik ARETREFABEOSHEES 7BE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

B4R (Zip):050051

€337 (Tel):(0311) 85288100

£ E(Fax):(0311) 85288112

LIFEE T

SHANXI PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik KIRH/NERKAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
B4 (Zip):030006

1% (Tel):(0351) 4937222

f& H(Fax):(0351) 4937224

ARHBRBEST

INNER MONGOLIA AUTONOMOUS REGION
BRANCH

ik IFFIES T RF X KE) K165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
84w (Zip):010098

E31E(Tel):(0471) 3310014

f£ E(Fax):(0471) 3310021

TTENT

LIAONING PROVINCIAL BRANCH

Ik SRR T X FF K #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
#B 4% (Zip): 110014

E31E(Tel):(024) 22952975

1£ E (Fax):(024) 22953371

KEDH T

DALIAN MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik KiEFPLUXARE15-17SERESMAE25E
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

#iR4%(Zip): 116001

E31E(Tel):(0411) 82228888

f£E (Fax):(0411) 82633839

EMENT

JILIN PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik KEM R AKI9S

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
#R 4w (Zip): 130022

E31E(Tel):(0431) 85279600

f£ E (Fax):(0431) 85279700

BRIIERDT

HEILONGJIANG PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ok BRI X G 82775

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
#8 4R (Zip): 150028

31E(Tel):(0451) 53907900

f£ E (Fax):(0451) 53907808

ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

LiBHNT

SHANGHAI MUNICIPAL BRANCH
ik HIEWIERE68S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai

R 4%(Zip):200120

31(Tel):(021) 20266688

t£ E (Fax):(021) 58883659

SIAERMT

JIANGSU PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik BR ML AR 2325

Add: 232 Jiangdong Middle Road, Nanjing
84 (Zip):210019

E31E(Tel):(025) 83276222

& B (Fax):(025) 83276204

AMEH 2T
SUZHOU MUNICIPAL BRANCH
ik N Tk K R EMEH2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou

B 4%(Zip):215123
8iE(Tel):(0512) 67887142
£ E(Fax):(0512) 67887114

I E T

ZHEJIANG PROVINCIAL BRANCH

Stk AN AT X2 695314

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

#B 4% (Zip):310020

E31E(Tel):(0571) 81686131

f£ E(Fax):(0571) 89778068

TIRTH T

NINGBO MUNICIPAL BRANCH

Sohk: TR EM X RILEETTS

Add: 577 Haiyan North Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
1R 4%(Zip):315040

E31E(Tel):(0574) 83872888

f£E (Fax):(0574) 83872100

RHEMT

ANHUI PROVINCIAL BRANCH

il AAET B LK LLFE6995

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
#B 4R (Zip):23007 1

E31E(Tel):(0551) 62867889

1£ E (Fax):(0551) 62875868

BEENT
FUJIAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH
bt : M EE KR RATE R REE127 S

Add: 127 Degui Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,

Fuzhou

1R 4% (Zip): 350003
i%(Tel):(0591) 87856844
£ H (Fax):(0591) 87856408

EIHaT
XIAMEN MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik B ERXETEI00SRWLE LSO (ENWE

Huly) 34-402

Add: 34/F-40/F, Fortune Center, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

#B 4R (Zip):361001

E31E(Tel):(0592) 2394308

f£ E(Fax):(0592) 2393111

IBEEST
JIANGXI PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik B EHAAMX FMPKRIET1005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan District,

Nanchang

84 (Zip):330038
£8i(Tel):(0791) 86592323
t£ E (Fax):(0791) 86592333

LWFREHT

SHANDONG PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik SFRITHE 5116665 Rk &R ODIR

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

#R 4R (Zip):250014

e31E(Tel):(0531) 81928100

1£ B (Fax):(0531) 81928282

EoHHMT

QINGDAO MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik FRHHEXESPE295. 315

Add: 29, 31 Hong Kong Middle Road, Qingdao
IR 47(Zip):266071

E31E(Tel):(0532) 81978277

&£ H(Fax):(0532) 81978288

AREEMT

HENAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH
3k FNTH £ 7K 2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
B4R (Zip):450008

31E(Tel):(0371) 66000888

£ B (Fax):(0371) 66000777

#ALE 24T

HUBEI PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ok BT R 8 R AIEKEI08S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
ik 4%(Zip):430062

83%(Tel):(027) 86759777

& H(Fax):(027) 86759666

HEE T

HUNAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik KD HRORATHE ZEI18SHTAE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang Middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

B4R (Zip):410002

E31E(Tel):(0731) 84906851

£ E(Fax):(0731) 84906699

IRENT

GUANGDONG PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik N TR X BB AERK1005Z—3. 16-252
Add: 3/F, 16/F-25/F, 100 West Huangpu Road, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou

#B4w(Zip):510627

€835 (Tel):(020) 38633017

£ H(Fax):(020) 38633000

RNH T

SHENZHEN MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik SRYITH R E X B = 052003 S ER £ R PO KES.
10. 18, 19, 28-332

Add: 6/F, 10/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial
Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District,
Shenzhen

84w (Zip):518038

E31E(Tel):(0755) 25985666

& E(Fax):(0755) 25987800

IEREERR ST

GUANGXI ZHUANG AUTONOMOUS REGION
BRANCH

ot ETHE A X RERE1495

Add: 149 Minzu Avenue, Qingxiu District, Nanning
#R4(Zip):530028

#i%(Tel):(0771) 8018114

f£H (Fax):(0771) 5527233

BREMMT

HAINAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik BOMHEX KREF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
#B 4% (Zip):570311

31 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

1£ B (Fax):(0898) 68551933
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BERXTHT

CHONGQING MUNICIPAL BRANCH

ik EBRTTIERSRHES

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
R4 (Zip):400023

815 (Tel):(023) 67858000

1£ H(Fax):(023) 67858114

m)IE 1T

SICHUAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik RET ST X KT EE120SERF R BITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

B4R (Zip):610041

335 (Tel):(028) 86029998

1& H(Fax):(028) 86029617

AMENMT

GUIZHOU PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik REAHELZFEEKE6S LB HEE#10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

1R 4%(Zip):550003

1% (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1& HE(Fax):(0851) 88651605

ZEEST

YUNNAN PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik RIAT 1881765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
B4R (Zip):650228

81 (Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

BREGE 7T

SHAANXI PROVINCIAL BRANCH

ik ART MK SERFRIRITRE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
One, Xi'an

B4R (Zip):710075

e81E(Tel):(029) 87660578

£ E (Fax):(029) 87660581

HREMT

GANSU PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik ZMNHEEK17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
B4R (Zip): 730030

E81E(Tel):(0931) 8866628

£ E (Fax):(0931) 8866237

ML ERBBXAT

XINJIANG UYGUR AUTONOMOUS
REGION BRANCH

ik BEARFHHWLEIBBSERFRRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
B4R (Zip):830002

B33 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

& H(Fax):(0991) 2335002

EFBENT

QINGHAI PROVINCIAL BRANCH
ik ATHRCHK2S

Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining

B4 (Zip):810001

E83%(Tel):(0971) 6161990
f£H(Fax):(0971) 6161900

TEEKRBBR T

NINGXIA HUI AUTONOMOUS

REGION BRANCH

ik RITEREFRELEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
B4R (Zip): 750004

81 (Tel):(0951) 5695900

f£ B (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B EIER 2T

XIZANG AUTONOMOUS REGION BRANCH
ik RrEET )\ — 28 SA

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa

R4 (Zip):850000

317 (Tel):(0891) 6623966

1& H(Fax):(0891) 6597788

BEDT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FEFIRERA1SERS R A /O — B2

Add: 32/F One International Finance Center, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

E215E (Tel):(00852) 28016218

£ (Fax):(00852) 31522161

FERRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

ik SRR FF BB ER T 451841415 (A) 1. 28T
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

£83(Tel):(002-02) 27507406

BHRME R

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
ok T BB R AR IS AR R AE1S
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow, Russian Federation
815 (Tel):(007-905) 7629919

BARRNARRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

i ERELBRN AT RO ISR AEHS5510Z
Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

83E(Tel):(0055-21) 976329938

AIANErAR R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EREHAINRNTHESMEEREERE N
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela
3% (Tel):(0058-0412) 5752344

B RRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
i RECHTER T EA1265

Add: 125 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1AR, UK
817 (Tel):(0044) 2079338691

GE e

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
ik ERARTREEGZEFLX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital,
Lao PDR.

81 (Tel):(00856)-20-57516123

FHTIE AR AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA

ik 5= ST ATIB T AT A4 T 8 5 FI SR SRR H155/17 5,
C3.2#, 2478 HAE

Add: Room 247, Building C3.2, Mangilik El avenue, Build.
55/17, Yessil District, Astana, Kazakhstan

81E(Tel):(007) 7718459098

AR R e R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
it AT BT e IR T R RHE R H70S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
815 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

AR

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

Hodik: ENEE R A LA ANIA At T H Sopo Del KEARE22/Z
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

B21E(Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

ik SRAR WH R E/R T MNE R T BEE20S3ZE

Add: 3/F, 20 Bond Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia
£33%(Tel):(0061) 421838660

kR RL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN BUDAPEST
ik AFF AR MIATEHH7S

Add: 1054 Budapest, Szabadsag tér 7.
E215E(Tel):(0036) 707429425

EFEmARIIAE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

ik AR B ARK SR AH 29SS SR OCEIR
Add: 9/F, Block C, Financial Street Center, No.B9,
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

B4R (Zip): 100033

81E(Tel):(010) 88308477

f£E(Fax):(010) 50801916

EFESRBBRAS

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

ik AR B AR X ERIIIAE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
1R 4%(Zip): 100037

81E(Tel):(010) 88300999

1&£E(Fax):(010) 88300954

EREmAERNBERAT

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

ik R HEEXEF = E2003SERE PO KRE
2. 7. 8. 14, 156, 17, 21-27. 34

Add: 2/F, 7/F, 8/F, 14/F, 15/F, 17/F, 21/F-27/F, 34/F,
CDB Financial Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen

B4R (Zip):518038

81 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

1& HE(Fax):(0755) 23980900

FIERBRESBRAT

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Medb: ERBAEBX EXTTNAH28 SR MR R OR
BE10-11B

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Center, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
B4R (Zip): 100031

£83%(Tel):(010) 59892900

£ B (Fax):(010) 59566969
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HitiRE (IRBEFRETTED)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT IN ACCORDANGE WITH ISAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Baker Tilly China [2025] No.8008

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 130 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgements, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarized as follows:

— Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts;

—  Consolidation of structured entities.
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Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's gross carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position amounted to RMB15,378.18 billion with
a credit loss allowance of RMB742.89 billion. The total exposure of loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts was RMB5,056.22 billion,
for which a provision of RMB15.09 billion was recognized. The credit
impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at amortized cost,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts recognized in the
Group's consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to RMB41.84 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, as of 31 December 2024 represented
management’s best estimate of expected credit losses (“ECL") at that date
under International Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts has increased significantly since their initial recognition, and
applied a three-stage impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management
assessed the credit loss allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking
information and using the risk parameter model that incorporates key
parameters, including probability of default, loss given default, exposure at
default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management
judgements and assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate model and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk
(*SICR"), default or credit-impaired;

(8) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights
for forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the
measurement of ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters
and data inputs, and applied significant management judgements and
assumptions in measuring the ECL, and the amounts of ECL and provisions
estimated are significant. These reasons resulted in this matter being
identified as a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14,
Note 21, Note 36 and Note 50(2) to the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets
management plans and funds, etc., that were issued, initiated, managed
and invested by the Group. As at 31 December 2024, total assets of the
consolidated structured entities and unconsolidated structured entities,
issued, initiated and managed by the Group, amounted to RMB9.42 billion
and RMB136.57 billion, respectively. In addition, as at 31 December 2024,
the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities invested by the
Group which were issued, initiated and managed by other institutions
included in the consolidated statement of financial position amounted to
RMB17.17 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above
structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements:

—  its power over these structured entities;
— its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these
structured entities;

— its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns
from these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether
the Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of
such structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key
audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Note 4(2) and Note 45 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the
loans and advances, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval
and application of methodologies of models, and the ongoing
monitoring and optimization of such models;

(2) Internal controls related to the review and approval of the portfolio
segmentation, model selections, parameters determination, the
criteria for SICR, the definition of default and credit-impaired, the use
of forward-looking scenarios and the judgement of risks from major
uncertainties;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs
used by the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and
calculations of present values of such cash flows for loans and
advances to customers at amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions
in relation to the models. We examined the ECL calculation on a
sample basis, to validate whether or not the ECL calculation reflect
management’s modelling methodologies;

(2) We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-
financial information, relevant external evidence and other factors
of the borrowers, to assess the appropriateness of management’s
identification of SICR, defaults and credit-impaired loans;

(3) For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed the basis
management used for determining the economic indicators, number
of scenarios and relative weightings, assessed the reasonableness
of forecasted economic indicators, economic scenarios and relevant
weightings;

(4) We examined key data inputs to the ECL models for selected
samples, including historical data and data at the measurement date,
to assess their accuracy and completeness. We also tested the major
data transfers between the ECL calculation engines and relevant
information systems, to verify their accuracy and completeness;

(6) For loans and advances to customers in Stage 3, we tested on a
sample basis on the credit loss allowance computed by management
based on estimated future cash flows and discount rates with
reference to financial information of borrowers and guarantors, the
latest collateral valuations, and other information including forward-
looking factors, etc.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Group's internal controls related to the Group's assessment on
whether it controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group's contractual rights and obligations in light
of the transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's power
over the structured entities through review of related contracts and
agreements;

(3) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from
the structured entities, including but not limited to commission income
earned and asset management fees earned as the asset manager
or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if any, the
liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities;

(4) Assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of decision-making authority of the structured
entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its role
as the assets manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities,
and the rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group’s 2024 Annual Report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgements and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Qiu Jingzhi.

Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants LLP
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
29 April, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 613,056 642,040
Interest expense 7 (471,951) (481,727)
Net interest income 7 141,105 160,313
Fee and commission income 8 1,048 1,450
Fee and commission expense 8 (639) (920)
Net fee and commission income 8 409 530
Net trading and foreign exchange (loss)/gain 9 (8,131) 13,083
Net gain/(loss) on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost 2 (186)
Dividend income 10 16,021 18,046
Net gain/(loss) on investment securities 1 1,942 (61)
Other income, net 12 11,695 10,437
Operating income 163,043 202,162
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 1,338 69
Operating expenses 13 (18,514) (18,190)
Credit impairment losses 14 (40,070) (80,089)
Other impairment losses on assets (218) (1,575)
Profit before income tax 105,579 102,377
Income tax expense 15 (16,619) (14,960)
Profit for the year 88,960 87,417

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 86,904 85,283
Non-controlling interests 2,056 2,134
88,960 87,417

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended 31 December

Notes _ 2023
Profit for the year 88,960 87,417
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 91 118
Net gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments through other
comprehensive income 2,504 (100)
Subtotal 2,595 18
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 677 1,416
Net gain of debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income S rn
Others (518) (233)
Subtotal 24,627 8,360
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 27,222 8,378
Total comprehensive income for the year 116,182 95,795
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 114,019 93,598
Non-controlling interests 2,163 2,197
Total 116,182 95,795

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Notes 2023

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 71,882 98,366
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 119,558 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 477,735 544,247
Derivative financial assets 19 3,903 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 598,960 477,525
Loans and advances to customers 21 14,688,772 14,244,743

Financial investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 739,694 902,061
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 537,881 700,985
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 983,460 1,172,981
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 3,479 522
Property and equipment 26 148,570 134,310
Deferred tax assets 27 196,093 192,263
Other assets 28 48,354 39,528
Total assets 18,618,341 18,654,522
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 1,976,479 2,506,350
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 606,473 673,951
Placements from banks 31 19,707 43,265
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,883 2,621
Derivative financial liabilities 19 9,291 8,271
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 10,432 17,090
Due to customers 34 787,725 863,254
Debt securities issued 35 13,328,529 12,724,297
Current tax liabilities 11,655 25,861
Deferred tax liabilities 27 6,631 6,589
Other liabilities 36 84,593 103,243

Total liabilities 16,844,398 16,974,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 182,650 182,650
Investment revaluation reserve 39 19,279 (7,548)
Surplus reserve 40 244,369 229,477
General reserve 40 285,230 278,378
Currency translation reserve 3,018 2,487
Other reserve 41 78 321
Retained earnings 42 589,567 545728
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,745,439 1,652,741
Non-controlling interests 43 28,504 26,989

Total equity 1,773,943 1,679,730

Total liabilities and equity 18,618,341 18,654,522

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Legal Representative, President Executive Vice President,

Chairman in charge of the finance function Head of Finance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended 31 December

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

2023

Profit before income tax 105,579 102,377
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 40,288 81,664
Depreciation and amortization 9,224 7,963
Interest expense for debt securities issued 387,450 387,149
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 20,085 21,171
Interest income for investments securities (55,348) (59,864)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (403) (3,465)
Net loss on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 9,963 5127
Net (gain)/loss on investment securities (1,944) 247
Net gain on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and (436) (455)
other long-term assets
Net foreign exchange loss (4,030) (20,952)
Share of profit of associate and joint ventures (1,338) (69)
Dividend income (188) (167)
Subtotal 508,902 520,726
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Ne;tg:::;?na;s:c:glti)[?;?:::t(iesnvgith central banks and deposits with banks and 141,812 29,411
Net increase/(decrease) in financial assets held under resale agreements 6 (469)
Net decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 168,887 31,566
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (491,657) (408,620)
Net increase/(decrease) in placements with banks and other financial institutions 48,757 (55,263)
Net increase in other operating assets (26,172) 79,070
Net decrgase Fn (‘due'to F:ustomers and deposits from banks and (604,982) (339,545)
other financial institutions
Net (decrease)/increase in placements from banks (23,265) 51,111
Net (decrease)/increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (6,616) 1,672
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (12,062) (47,823)
Subtotal (805,292) (658,890)
Income tax paid (45,067) (56,486)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (341,457) (194,650)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2023

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost and

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,589,082 1,564,244
Cash received from returns on investment securities 65,822 66,101
Cash received from other investing activities 1,402 2,423
Cash paid for purchase of debt instruments qt amortized cost and financial assets (1,208,945) (1,473.526)

at fair value through other comprehensive income
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment, intangible assets and (23.652) (21.551)

other long-term assets
Net cash inflows from investing activities 423,709 137,691
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 2,374,527 2,377,639
Cash received from borrowings from governments and other institutions 511,770 102,536
Cash received from other financing activities - 1,458
Transactions with non-controlling interests (525) (365)
Cash paid for repayments.of ert securities issued and borrowings from (2,349.390) (1,898,590)
governments and other institutions
Cash paid for interest on ert. selcurities issued and borrowings from (#17.721) (397.351)
governments and other institutions
Dividends paid (11,808) (12,018)
Other cash paid related to financing activities (2,471) (1,714)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 104,382 171,595
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2,352 7,416
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 188,986 122,052
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 788,435 666,383
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 44 977,421 788,435
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 592,570 581,332
Interest paid (65,168) (73,041)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China Development Bank was
converted into a joint stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established
jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin”), and renamed as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the National Financial Regulatory
Administration (the “NFRA’", the former the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission) and after completing the review by and registration of
corporate changes with the State Administration of Business and Commerce,
China Development Bank Corporation changed its name to China Development
Bank, and changed its form of organization from a joint stock corporation
to a limited liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates under
business license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
G0001H111000001 issued by the NFRA on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After
the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor’s rights, debts and
businesses of the former China Development Bank Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align
their business focus with Chinese major medium and long-term economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as to raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student
loans, and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture,
and people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative,
industrial capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure
connectivity, energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going
Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development
strategies and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”.
Branches and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(1) Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2024 relevant to and adopted by the Group
The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2024:

(@) Amendments to IAS 1-Non-current Liabilities with Covenants and Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(b)  Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7-Supplier Finance Arrangements
(c)  Amendments to IFRS 16-Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive income of the

Group.
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(2) Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

~

~

—~

=

effective dates in 2024

The Group has not early adopted the following new and amended IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(@) IFRS 18

(b)  IFRS 19

(c)  Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
(d)  Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
(e)  Volume 11

(

Amendments to IAS 21

Lack of Exchangeability

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity
Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2027
1 January 2027
1 January 2026
1 January 2026
1 January 2026
1 January 2025

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

(@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

its Associate or Joint Venture

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Accounting period
The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”). They were authorised for issue by the Bank’s board of directors
on 29 April, 2025.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or
in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to
liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis, as management is satisfied that the Group has adequate resources
to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and entities (including subsidiaries and structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gain on transactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss is also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred assets.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e., recognized in the consolidated income statement). When
the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.



(5) Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which the investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of
loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
loss. Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the associate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued, except for equity instrument designated as fair
value through other comprehensive income.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

(6)

(7

-~

(8)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a) Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead
of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected
credit loss in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI" but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3'), for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net
of the expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset (i.e., its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider
ECL and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

(b) Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement
using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") are analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes
in the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
items in equity holders’ equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a) Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those
services as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee
benefits include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well
as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to government
mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. The group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which
the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’'s head office and domestic branches
(“Domestic Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by
the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with
reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in
the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011,
The entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of
early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is
recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for
recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes
in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred.



(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing model and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

(i) Amortized cost ("AC"). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers at amortized cost, debt instruments at
amortized cost and other receivables.

(i) FVOCI. Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income include debt securities, and equity
instruments designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income which are not held for trading purpose.

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL'). Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading
financial assets, derivative financial assets, loan and advances
to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss, equity
instruments other than designated at FVOCI, debt investments that
do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order
to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely
to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of other
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated.
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Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses
whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group
will assess the contractual terms of the financial assets which may lead
to changes in the timing distribution or amount of the contract cash
flows and determine if the requirements of the above contract cash flow
characteristics are met. If the contract terms do not meet the requirements
of the above contract cash flow characteristics, the related financial assets
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity
instruments are described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer’s perspective (including special financial
instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability but are classified
as equity instruments), such as government and corporate bonds.
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one
of the following three measurement categories:

() Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.

(i) FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured
at FVOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if
doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets
and liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer’s Perspective (excluding special financial instruments that meet
the definition of a financial liability but are classified as equity instruments);
that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL,
except where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVOCI. The Group
designates the non-trading equity instruments that are expected to be
held for a long time for the purpose of long-term strategic corporation as
FVOCI.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets, it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group
does not restate any previously recognized gain, loss (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest. Reclassification date is the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, and measured at FVTPL. The FVTPL is applied to derivatives,
financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition.
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(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial
liability as measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch); (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets
and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key management personnel.

For the financial liabilities recognized due to the transfer of financial assets
does not meet the conditions for termination of recognition, the Group
retains to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes the
received consideration as a financial liability. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership and the
Group retains the control over the transferred financial asset, the financial
assets and relevant liabilities shall be recognized to the extent of its
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the
categories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal
repayments; (ii) plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount; (iii) for financial assets, adjusted for any credit
loss allowance. Interest income and interest expense from these financial
assets is included in “Interest income” and “Interest expense” using the
effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities,
periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market
rates of interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial
asset or a floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount
equal to the principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the
future interest payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying
amount of the asset or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability
as the present value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the
carrying amount discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment is recognized in profit or loss as income or expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through Other
Comprehensive Income (“OCI"), except for the recognition of impairment
gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign exchange gain and loss on the
instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in “interest income” using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns are designated as FVOCI. When this
election is used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established, and it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognized in profit or loss and presented in the income statement
within “Net trading and foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it
arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair
value or which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented
separately in “Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange (loss)/gain” in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially in profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gain or loss
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities including the
effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current profit and
loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group’s measurement of ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money; and

(iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured
using the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-
stage impairment model to calculate their credit loss and recognize their
ECL, as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1 and have its ECL
measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instrument
for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.



Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are
measured at FVOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and it should not be presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial
instrument other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the Group
measures the credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit loss at the current reporting date and the amount of
expected credit loss reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For POCI,
at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative changes
in lifetime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

The Group will write off a financial asset when reasonably expects that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the financial assets after the
Group has completed all necessary measures and legal procedures. If in a
subsequent period the loan written off is recovered, the amount recovered
will be recognized in profit or loss through impairment losses.

(9) Contractual modification

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being
unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying
amount are also recognized as gain or loss on derecognition of debt
instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset
and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss.
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Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS”) to investors.
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these
ABS. As the asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining
account records related to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes or partially derecognizes the transferred financial assets
according to the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group
has an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. Otherwise, financial assets and financial
liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit loss
provision required to settle the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income statement

A loan commitment is a definite commitment provided by the Group
to a customer to grant a loan to the customer on agreed contractual
terms during the commitment period. The credit loss allowance of loan
commitments provided by the Group is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest
rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit
loss allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
separately identify the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected credit loss
on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with the credit loss
allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit
loss exceeds the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
loss is recognized as a provision.
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(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined
price at a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements are transactions where the Group sells
financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a
future date under repurchase agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of
pledged repo. The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement
of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are not
recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the
period of the respective transaction using the effective interest method
and is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Except for derivatives that are
designated and qualified as hedging instruments, the resulting gain or
loss in derivative is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial asset, are treated as separate derivatives when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the hybrid
contracts and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group
choose to designate the hybrid contract at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting to
account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria. The
Group’s hedging relationships include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

(a) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group’s profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change
of non-trading equity investment designated as at FVOCI, are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to
maturity. If the hedged item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying
value adjustment is recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group’s exposure to variability in
cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect
profit or loss.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized
hedged item. If the cumulative amount in the cash flow hedge reserve
which recognized in other comprehensive income is a loss, and all or
part of the loss is expected to be irreparable in the future accounting
period, the Group shall reclassify the expected irreparable part from other
comprehensive income to profit and loss in the same period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under the following situations:

- When the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized directly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of
the income statement. When the hedging relationship ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the
hedging relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired
or has been sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains in
other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast transaction
ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred immediately to profit
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the Group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of
proceeds received, net of transaction cost.

The distribution to the holders of equity instruments is recognized as profit
distribution.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group's property and equipment comprise buildings, office and
machinery equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and
construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount
or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircraft 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or

loss.



(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value of assets not
retained plus related costs, and subsequently measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each
reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a
foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is
disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In
principle, foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use,
but, in the event that they are needed for the Group’s own business or
management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts
and managed as newly acquired property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation is
recognized the same way as property and equipment and land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the
carrying amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the period of use, customer
has both of the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right to use
one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the contractual
lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(i)  decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that
decrease the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or
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(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all
other lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contain any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognize the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as “Operating
expenses” in the income statement on a straight-line basis over each
period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes finance
lease receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases. The
Group presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment
in the lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is
the present value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
unreceived lease payments receivable at the commencement date, which
is discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each period
during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and
recognizes such interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis,
the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference interest rate, which is determined according to
the situation of the institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the
amount of lease liability and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles
and other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-
use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
the lease less any lease incentives received;

(iii)y any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
subsequently by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the
ownership of the underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at
the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of the lease
term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the
changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of the right-of-
use assets accordingly. When the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognizes the remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.
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(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The lease payments need to be discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group
calculates the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes
such interest expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i)
there is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (ii) there is a change
in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
(iii) there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or a rate used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a
change in the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset,
extend or terminate the lease, or the circumstances of the actual exercise
of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other
intangible assets. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which generally range from 1 to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment loss and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit, and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-
rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-
generating unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies,
other institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under
custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the
Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants
loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangement and collection of the
entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assets or liabilities of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

-

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognized, but disclosed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations
for future events

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
twelve months.

Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss
of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers
to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at
the original effective interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash
shortage. Among them, POCI financial assets should be discounted at the
credit-adjusted actual interest rate of the financial assets.
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The ECL model involves periodic review of key definitions, parameters,
and assumptions, such as estimates of future macroeconomic conditions
and the borrower’s credit behaviour (e.g., the possibility of customer
default and corresponding loss). A number of significant judgements are
required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring expected
credit losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in
credit risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as
definition of default and credit impairment;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used
in measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 50(2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured
entities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates
the Group’s power over the structured entities, performs analysis and
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the
asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if
any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities. The
Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through
analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the structured
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset
value, comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques
commonly adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the
Group uses only observable market data, however areas such as credit
risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital,
perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity
to comparable companies and their performance indicators may not
be observable and require management to make estimates and apply
judgements. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or
partial derecognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine
whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.
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The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
with such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash
flows from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass
through” of those cash flows to independent third parties.

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transferred.

- where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the
Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these
financial assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
transferred financial assets.

Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
effect is uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for
items of uncertainty, taking into account existing taxation legislation and
past practice of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax in the period in which such a
determination is made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any
such indication exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition
of subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows
at appropriate discount rates. In assessing the present value of future
cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised over the
related income, operating expenses and discounting rate to calculate the
present value.

TAXATION

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China
is 256%. Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local
rates. The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be implemented
in accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit
business, fee income on financial services and income from trading of
financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for
Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui (2016) No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui (2017) No.2) and “Circular on the Relevant Issues
concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cai
Shui (2017) No.56), managers of asset management products shall pay
VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

City construction tax

City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Education surcharge

Education surcharge is calculated as 3% of VAT. Local education
surcharge is calculated as 2% of VAT.
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2024 were as follows:

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB94,877 100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Development Fund Mainland China RMBS0,000  100% directly helg | OT-Securiies investment & investment

management and advisory
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management
CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB30,000  100% directly helg \OrSecuriies investment & investment

management and advisory
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its
subsidiaries, and there was no restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 533,803 555,443
Debt investment securities (a) 55,348 59,864
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 18,742 23,301
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 5,162 3,432
Others 1 _
Subtotal 613,056 642,040

Interest expense

Debt securities issued (387,450) (387,149)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (53,549) (61,634)
Due to customers (9,510) (10,135)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (20,085) (21,171)
Others (1,357) (1,638)
Subtotal (471,951) (481,727)
Net interest income 141,105 160,313

(a) Interest income of debt investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 586 565
Loan arrangement fee 73 228
Credit commitment fee 83 (18)
Consultancy and advisory fee 133 196
Others 173 479
Subtotal 1,048 1,450
Fee and commission expense (639) (920)

Net fee and commission income 409 530
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9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gain 507 7,750
Net (loss)/gain on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss (3,316) 6,414
Net loss on foreign exchange derivatives (5,166) (3,228)
Net (loss)/gain on interest rate derivatives (156) 2,147
Total (8,131) 13,083

10. DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 15,833 17,879
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 188 167
Total 16,021 18,046

11. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,942 (61)

12. OTHER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 7,623 6,408
Others 4,072 4,029
Total 11,695 10,437

13. OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Staff costs 8,603 8,285
Taxes and surcharges 4,573 4,689
General operating and administrative expenses 3,123 3,231
Depreciation and amortization 2,215 1,985
Total 18,514 18,190

14, CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 46,909 83,137
Debt instruments at amortized cost (1,151) (555)
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (303) 110
Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (5,073) (3,202)
Others (312) 599
Total 40,070 80,089

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 28,417 36,737
Deferred tax (Note 27) (11,798) (21,777)
Total 16,619 14,960
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The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 105,579 102,377
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 26,395 25,595
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (231) (106)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (10,202) (12,617)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 202 26
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 455 2,062
Income tax expense 16,619 14,960

16. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 2 2
Balances with central banks 71,880 98,364
Total 71,882 98,366

17. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 83,120 90,664
Other domestic financial institutions 1,232 651
Overseas banks 34,393 51,879
Other overseas financial institutions - 70
Subtotal 118,745 143,264
Accrued interests 863 217
Total 119,608 143,481
Less: Allowance for impairment losses-Stage 1 (50) (59)
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 119,558 143,422

As at 31 December 2024, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB34,333 million (31 December 2023:
RMB16,964 million), which were mainly pledged funds for borrowings from other banks and security deposits pledged with clearing houses.

18. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 436,462 480,281
Other domestic financial institutions 3,000 15,000
Overseas banks 37,977 48,108
Subtotal 477,439 543,389
Accrued interests 838 1,167
Total 478,277 544,556
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (542) (300)
- Stage 2 - 9)

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 477,735 544,247

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the
consolidated statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favourable or
unfavourable as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly.
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The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2024

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 343,258 2,923 (7,839)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 30,192 - (427)
Subtotal 373,450 2,923 (8,266)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 50,785 980 (1,025)
Subtotal 50,785 980 (1,025)
Total 424,235 3,903 (9,291)

31 December 2023

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 4457774 2,269 (7,197)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 1,278 19 -
Subtotal 447,052 2,288 (7,197)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 159,477 1,281 (1,074)
Interest rate options 5,135 - -
Subtotal 164,612 1,281 (1,074)
Total 611,664 3,569 (8,271)

(2) Hedge accounting
Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits
issued by the Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2024, the notional amount of
the Group amounted to RMB8,758 million (31 December 2023: RMB7,542 million).

The Group’s fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging
ineffectiveness portion recognized from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings
from other banks for the Group’s leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability
attributable to interest rate risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group’s subsidiary CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
The Group uses foreign exchange forward hedging contracts and currency swaps to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to foreign
exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being foreign exchange exposure formed by internal transactions within the Group. As at 31 December 2024,
the notional amount of interest rate swap amounted to RMB20,481 million (31 December 2023: RMB15,599 million), the notional amount of currency swaps
amounted to RMB6,861 million (31 December 2023: RMB340 million), the notional principal of foreign exchange forward hedging contracts amounted to
RMB30,188 million (31 December 2023: RMBO million).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow
hedge and the profit or loss relating to the ineffective portion were insignificant.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 599,008 477,507
Others 1,161 1,161
Subtotal 600,169 478,668
Accrued interests 84 172
Total 600,253 478,840
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (1,293) (1,315)
Subtotal (1,293) (1,315)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 598,960 477,525

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.



152 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) The composition of loans and advances to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 14,635,287 14,190,321
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 53,485 54,422
Loans and advances to customers, net 14,688,772 14,244,743

(@) The composition of loans and advances to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 15,134,606 14,646,153
Finance lease receivables and others 210,177 203,494
Subtotal 15,344,783 14,849,647
Accrued interests 33,396 36,919
Total 15,378,179 14,886,566
Stage 1 13,384,681 13,372,962
Stage 2 1,788,375 1,325,842
Stage 3 205,123 187,762

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (232,493) (238,554)

Stage 2 (350,334) (329,057)

Stage 3 (160,065) (128,634)
Subtotal (742,892) (696,245)
Loans and advances to customers measured at amortized cost, net 14,635,287 14,190,321

(b) The composition of loans and advances to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 53,576 54,855
Fair value change 91) (433)
Total 53,485 54,422

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments -Collateral.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2024 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 16,406 (16,406) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (15,181) 25,020 (9,839) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (41) (5,661) 5,702 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 60,487 8,578 4,337 73,402
Remeasurement (a) (38,089) 30,722 38,106 30,739
Mature or reverse (30,076) (21,874) (5,282) (57,232)
Write-off - - (6,089) (6,089)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 5,676 5,676
Others 433 898 (1,180) 151

As at 31 December 2024 232,493 350,334 160,065 742,892
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As at 1 January 2023 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 46,845 (46,845) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (14,613) 34,105 (19,492) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (5,727) 5,727 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
Remeasurement (a) (26,283) 109,287 2,937 85,941
Mature or reverse (21,208) (22,939) (7,815) (51,962)
Write-off - - (11,210) (11,210)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 5,205 5,205
Others 431 1,334 (1,855) (90)
As at 31 December 2023 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs) and Loss Given Defaults (LGDs); transfers
among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant change of credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or
“set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.

During the year, the Group transferred loans from Stage 1 to Stage 2 and Stage 3 with a principle amount of RMB697.58 billion, with a corresponding increase in
impairment provisions of RMB64.68 billion. Loans transferred from Stage 2 to Stage 3 amounted of RMB30.86 billion, with a corresponding increase in impairment
provisions of RMB10.81 billion. Loans transferred from Stage 2 to Stage 1 totaled RMB69.10 billion, with a corresponding decrease in impairment provisions of
RMB15.36 billion. Loans transferred from Stage 3 to Stage 2 amounted of RMB14.65 billion, with a corresponding decrease in impairment provisions of RMB3.91
billion.

(3) Past due loans and advances to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by
installment, if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

Past due

As at 31 December 2024
Unsecured loans 2,566 430 1,190 10,739 14,925
Guaranteed loans 1,632 832 752 743 3,959

Loans with collateral

Loans secured by collateral 8,884 3,230 6,067 13,822 32,003
Pledged loans 23,966 140 3,457 5,673 33,236
Total 37,048 4,632 11,466 30,977 84,123

As at 31 December 2023

Unsecured loans 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147

Guaranteed loans 615 6,786 2177 672 10,250

Loans with collateral

Loans secured by collateral 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 46,271

Pledged loans 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070

Total 36,724 12,173 36,656 28,185 113,738
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,711 2,122
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 18,848 41,457
Corporate bonds 3,137 10,299
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 75,004 117,890
Asset management plans 291 321
Stock and fund investments 10,717 13,294
Wealth management products issued by other banks 3,003 3,743
Other equity investments 626,983 712,537
Subtotal 739,694 901,663
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
Corporate bonds - 384
Asset management plans - 14
Subtotal - 398
Total 739,694 902,061

23. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 441,896 592,081
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 360 240
Corporate bonds 93,631 105,936
Asset-backed securities 18 20
Investments in trust plans and others 6,471 5,453
Subtotal 542,376 703,730
Accrued interests 5,923 8,888
Total 548,299 712,618

Stage 1 546,787 710,920

Stage 2 26 28

Stage 3 1,486 1,670

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (9,061) (10,129
Stage 2 (5) (6)
Stage 3 (1,352) (1,498)
Subtotal (10,418) (11, 633)

Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 537,881 700,985
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2024 10,129 6 1,498 11,633
Originated or purchased financial assets 3 - 33 36
Remeasurement (a) 209 (1) - 208
Mature or reverse (1,395) - - (1,395)
Write-off = = (179) (179)
Foreign exchange differences 115 - - 115
As at 31 December 2024 9,061 8 1,352 10,418

As at 1 January 2023 10,209 - 1,806 12,015
Transfers:

Transfer to Stage 2 - 13 (13) -
Originated or purchased financial assets 45 - - 45
Remeasurement (a) (247) 6 - (241)
Mature or reverse (51) (13) (295) (359)
Foreign exchange differences 173 - - 173
As at 31 December 2023 10,129 6 1,498 11,633

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 666,939 551,841
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 15,932 9,381
Corporate bonds 159,773 222,894
Asset-backed securities 503 166
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 121,492 373,033
Subtotal 964,639 1,157,315
Accrued interests 8,963 10,206
Total 973,602 1,167,521
Stage 1 973,600 1,167,504
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 2 17

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 6,055 3,460
Unlisted equity 3,803 2,000
Total 9,858 5,460
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 983,460 1,172,981

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in
fair value of such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2024 236 - 1,326 1,562
Originated or purchased financial assets 26 - - 26
Remeasurement (a) (102) - - (102)
Repayment and transfer out (71) - (156) (227)
Write-off - - (1,027) (1,027)
As at 31 December 2024 89 - 143 232

As at 1 January 2023 128 - 1,324 1,452
Originated or purchased financial assets 84 - - 84
Remeasurement (a) 59 - 10 69
Repayment and transfer out (35) - (8) (43)
As at 31 December 2023 236 - 1,326 1,562

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

25. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 3,479 522

Net 3,479 522

26. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost (a) 202,155 181,560
Accumulated depreciation (a) (48,041) (41,578)
Allowance for impairment losses (a) (5,554) (6,305)
Fixed asset held for disposal 10 633
Total 148,570 134,310

(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the following:

Cost

As at 31 December 2023 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 1,094 181,560
As at 31 December 2024 25,126 10,116 45,773 120,715 425 202,155
Accumulated depreciation

As at 31 December 2023 (9,499) (3,143) (5,192) (23,744) = (41,578)
As at 31 December 2024 (10,680) (3,863) (7,106) (26,392) = (48,041)
Allowance for impairment losses

As at 31 December 2023 (73) (17) (845) (5,333) (37) (6,305)
As at 31 December 2024 (73) (36) (861) (4,547) 37) (5,554)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2023 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 1,067 133,677
As at 31 December 2024 14,373 6,217 37,806 89,776 388 148,560
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27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 196,093 192,263
Deferred tax liabilities (6,631) (6,589)
Net 189,462 185,674

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 185,674 166,230
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) 11,798 21,777
Charged to other comprehensive income (7,993) (2,329)
Others (17) (4)
As at 31 December 189,462 185,674

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attributable to
the following items:

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 748,099 187,025 712,529 178,132
Fair value changes of financial instruments 59,700 14,925 49,012 12,253
Provisions and others 27,542 6,883 23,113 5,786
Subtotal 835,341 208,833 784,654 196,171

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments and others (79,563) (19,371) (44,223) (10,497)
Subtotal (79,563) (19,371) (44,223) (10,497)
Net 755,778 189,462 740,431 185,674

As at 31 December 2024, there were no significant unrecognized deferred income taxes.
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28. OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Prepayment to vendors 15,107 13,815
Interest receivable 7,598 7,933
Right-of-use assets 1,694 1,979
Investment properties 1,982 1,954
Goodwill (1) 1,257 1,247
Intangible assets 1,077 1,053
Long-term deferred expenses 1,118 1,080
Deposits with securities exchange 146 147
Others 21,070 13,228
Total 51,049 42,436

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (349) (107)

Others (2,346) (2,801)

Subtotal (2,695) (2,908)

Other assets, net 48,354 39,528
(1) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,257 1,247
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Net balances 723 713

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on
the result of the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: RMB534
million).

29. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 1,905,612 2,430,145
Other domestic financial institutions 42,249 44,845
Overseas banks 27,155 28,876
Other overseas financial institutions 4 687
Subtotal 1,975,020 2,504,553
Accrued interests 1,459 1,797

Total 1,976,479 2,506,350
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30. BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 518,830 566,003
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 53,145 70,666
Foreign governments 29,882 29,443
Subtotal 601,857 666,112
Accrued interests 4,616 7,839
Total 606,473 673,951

The collateral pledged under borrowings from governments and financial institutions is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments-
Collateral.

31. PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 10,627 19,609
Overseas banks 9,021 23,304
Subtotal 19,648 42,913
Accrued interests 59 352
Total 19,707 43,265

32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly comprise of the borrowing with
conversion options from non-financial enterprises.

33. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 10,423 17,039
Subtotal 10,423 17,039
Accrued interests 9 51
Total 10,432 17,090

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments-Collateral.

34. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 559,546 647,531
Term deposits 114,239 104,916
Pledged deposits 1,753 1,938
Certificates of deposit 109,651 106,253
Subtotal 785,189 860,638
Accrued interests 2,536 2,616

Total 787,725 863,254
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35. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions 12,894,808 12,301,027
Subordinated bonds issued 30,010 30,010
Tier-two capital bonds issued 154,718 154,692
Interbank certificates of deposit 7,355 -
Subtotal 13,086,891 12,485,729
Accrued interests 241,638 238,568
Total 13,328,529 12,724,297

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2024

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2024 2025-2065 1.35-5.85 11,925,258
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2025-2037 2.08-4.27 872,166
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2024 2025-2032 2.45-4.50 13,394
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2024 2025-2037 1.00-5.39 47,734
Bonds issued by the Bank 12,858,552
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2017-2024 2025-2027 2.00-5.57 15,395
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2022-2024 2025-2029 2.05-3.47 21,968
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2023 2026 3.50 699
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (1,806)
Debt securities issued by the Group 12,894,808

As at 31 December 2023

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.69-4.27 926,084
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4.50 14,490
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 64,678
Bonds issued by the Bank 12,261,614
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2014-2023 2024-2027 1.38-5.77 25,673
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (2,842)
Debt securities issued by the Group 12,301,027

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2024

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

As at 31 December 2023

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, the coupon rate of the bond remains unchanged.
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(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2024

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,723
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,995
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 154,718

As at 31 December 2023

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,776
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,916
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 154,692

The Group issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2020, 2022 and 2023. The Group has an option to redeem part or all of the
bond at face value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were
met, subject to regulatory approval. If the Group did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

(4) Interbank certificates of deposit

As at 31 December 2024

RMB interbank certificates of deposit issued by the Group and the Bank in

) 2024 2025-2027 2.20-2.40 4,482
domestic market
Foreign currlency interbank certificates of deposit issued by the Group and 2024 2027 4.89 2873
the Bank in overseas market
Interbank certificates of deposit issued by the Group and the Bank 7,355

36. OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred government subsidies for education loans 19,076 20,250
Provision for loss on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 15,086 20,159
VAT and other taxes payable 11,130 12,630
Amounts received in advance 10,444 9,277
Security deposits for leasing 6,426 6,906
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 5,107 7,505
Accrued staff cost 3,962 3,627
Maintenance deposits from lessees 3,538 2,689
Lease liabilities 885 10,357
Payables for security brokerage service 204 1,439
Others 8,735 8,504

Total 84,593 103,243
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37. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38. CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 31 December

Capital premium 182,650 182,650

39. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January (7,548) (14,624)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 34,974 9,110
- Net gain on investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss on disposal (1,344) 264
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI (1,153) 113

Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVOCI 2,505 (44)
Less: income tax effect (8,155) (2,367)
As at 31 December 19,279 (7,548)

40. SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory
surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank's share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to
statutory surplus reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated loss of the Bank or to increase the
Bank’s share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank (a) 279,278 272,496
Subsidiaries (b) 5,952 5,882
Total 285,230 278,378

(a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No.20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the
Bank is required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5%
of the outstanding balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of their profit for the year
as general reserves.

41. OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve includes remeasurement of employee benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges.
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42. RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 1 January 545,728 513,776
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 86,904 85,283
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (7,511) (7,381)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve (7,381) (7,271)
Appropriation to general reserve (6,852) (17,953)
Dividends (21,321) (20,683)
Others - (43)
As at 31 December 589,567 545,728

(a) Profit appropriation for 2024

The Bank appropriated RMB7,511 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2024. Other proposals for profit appropriations of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2024 are pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

—_
(=)
-

Profit appropriation for 2023

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 26 August 2024, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2023
was approved as following:

(i) An appropriation of RMB7,381 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

(i) An appropriation of RMB6,782 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

(iii) A cash dividend of RMB21,321 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2023 which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. As of 31 December 2024, the cash dividend had been paid.

(c) As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that are attributable to the Bank
amounting to RMB12,717 million and RMB10,558 million.

43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 10,658 10,367
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 14,335 18,273
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,511 3,349
Total 28,504 26,989

44. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 259,491 168,680

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 598,391 476,884
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 118,243 135,435
Investments in government bonds 1,296 7,436

Total 977,421 788,435
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45. STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Consolidated structured entities

46.

47.

—

R

Structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by
the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2024, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to above totaled RMB9,424 million (31 December 2023: RMB12,519
million).

Unconsolidated structured entities

(a) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated structured
entities.

As at 31 December 2024, the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB136,568 million
(31 December 2023: RMB146,922 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB5,087 million (31 December
2023: RMB6,525 million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

(b) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the third party

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2024, the information on the amount of total
assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain.

As at 31 December 2024, the balance of structured entities issued by other institutions held by the Group amounted to RMB17,174 million (31 December 2023:
RMB17,760 million). Among them, the balance reported on trading assets and other financial assets amounted to RMB16,619 million (31 December 2023:
RMB17,639 million), and the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to RMB484
million (31 December 2023: RMB121 million), and the balance reported on the investment on equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounted to RMB71 million (31 December 2023: RMBO million).

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3(13) and Note 4(4).

As at 31 December 2024, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMBO million
(31 December 2023: RMB143 million), which retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and therefore has not been
derecognized in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no continuing involvement in these assets. And the Group had no balance in respect of loans transferred
that qualified for full derecognition.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm'’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office
level. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating
segments are set out below:

Banking operations

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major
source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond
investments, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.

Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.



W45 % » FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 165

Interest income 599,800 2,090 13,738 902 (3,474) 613,056
Interest expense (460,110) (1,731) (12,978) (606) 3,474 (471,951)
Net interest income 139,690 359 760 296 = 141,105
Include: Net interest income from customers 139,893 143 837 232 - 141,105
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) (203) 216 (77) 64 - -
Net fee and commission income 121 138 (55) 215 (10) 409
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 67 138 (5) 209 - 409
Inter-segment net fee and commission 54 - (50) 6 (10) -
Other income, net (a) 9,738 7,668 6,347 434 (1,320) 22,867
Operating expenses and credit impairment and (56,686) (732) (1,002) (461) 79 (58,802)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 92,863 7,433 6,050 484 (1,251) 105,579
As at 31 December 2024
Segment assets 17,938,655 249,849 403,581 48,303 (218,052) 18,422,336
Unallocated assets 196,005
Total assets 18,618,341
Segment liabilities 16,488,572 57,452 364,559 31,236 (104,052) 16,837,767
Unallocated liabilities 6,631
Total liabilities 16,844,398
Other information
Depreciation and amortization 2,053 134 7,102 48 (113) 9,224
Capital expenditure 252 10 27,531 16 - 27,809
Credit impairment losses 40,451 68 (355) (123) 29 40,070
Other impairment losses on assets 4 - 214 - - 218
Credit commitments 5,067,830 244 - - (11,853) 5,056,221

Interest income 630,685 2,044 11,682 1,182 (3,553) 642,040
Interest expense (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,555 (481,727)
Net interest income 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
Include: Net interest income from customers 158,274 205 1,510 324 - 160,313
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 151 (18) (233) 98 2 -
Net fee and commission income 164 150 (86) 272 30 530
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 138 151 (25) 266 - 530
Inter-segment net fee and commission 26 0] (61) 6 30 -
Other income, net (a) 26,417 8,122 7,609 265 (1,025) 41,388
Operatiqg expenses and credit impairment and (95,629) (325) (3.348) (488) (64) (99,854)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 (1,057) 102,377
As at 31 December 2023
Segment assets 17,998,894 236,084 407,672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259
Unallocated assets 192,263
Total assets 18,654,522
Segment liabilities 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119,869) 16,968,203
Unallocated liabilities 6,589
Total liabilities 16,974,792
Other information
Depreciation and amortization 1,756 142 6,098 55 (88) 7,963
Capital expenditure 1,297 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
Credit Impairment losses 79,644 (407) 744 (66) 174 80,089
Other impairment losses on assets 76 - 1,499 - - 1,575
Credit commitments 3,626,788 244 - - (17,432) 3,609,600

(a) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gain, net (loss)/gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income,
net (loss)/gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of associates and joint ventures.
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48. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
transactions with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 49,283 54,987

Interest rate range (%) 1.35-4.77 1.65-4.42

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,443 1,736
Net trading gain 57 34
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the
obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital
of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 281 634
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 94,661 93,612
Interest rate range (%) 1.90-4.20 2.44-4.20

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,104 2,522

Net trading gain 9 16

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under
normal commercial terms.

3

-

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. lts principal activities are domestic and overseas
investments in project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of
business under normal commercial terms.

4) Transaction with subsidiaries

The carrying amount of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's statement of financial position is as follows:

—_
=

As at 31 December

Assets

Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 9,953
Loans and advances to customers 43,357 44,831
Other assets 1,583 20
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 5,936 10,037
Due to customers 179,221 154,158
Debt securities issued 1,913 2,902
Other liabilities 35 9

As at 31 December 2024, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB11,900 million
(31 December 2023: RMB17,432 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,636 1,853
Interest expense (1,994) (1,864)
Fee and commission income 60 51

Fee and commission expense (6) (5)
Dividend income 11,698 12,018

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business. The
Group’s transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 were not significant.

(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,
management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of
the Group.

(2) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

equity instruments 46,350 41,341
property and equipment 86,605 27,279
Total 132,955 68,620

The Group’s capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly property and equipment for lease. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s capital
commitments of property and equipment for lease were RMB86,452 million (31 December 2023: RMB26,700 million).

(3) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 5,049,926 3,603,476
Letters of guarantee issued 2,731 3,347
Bank acceptance 3,402 1,623
Letters of credit issued 162 1,154
Total 5,056,221 3,609,600

As at 31 December 2024, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB58,914 million (31 December 2023:
RMB60,147 million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.
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(4) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

2023

Contractual amount 35,851 36,621

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(5) Collateral

(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

2023

Bonds 11,987 18,029

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 976 -

50.
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As at 31 December 2024, the principal of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB10,423 million (31 December 2023:
RMB17,039 million) as set out in Note 33. All repurchase agreements were due within one year from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables, leased assets under operating lease, bonds and deposits with banks, where the Group was a lessor, were
pledged as collateral for borrowings from other banks. As at 31 December 2024, carrying amounts of these collateral amounted to RMB279,720 million (31
December 2023: RMB224,744 million).

As at 31 December 2024, certain bonds were pledged as collateral for due to customers and securities lending by the Group, the carrying amounts of two
business mentioned above amounted to RMB8,473 million and 664 million, respectively (31 December 2023: RMB3,271 million and 1,322 million, respectively).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the combinations
of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot be carried out
without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and minimize the
potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these
funds in medium to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries and pillar industries. The Group seeks to increase its profitability by
minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management needs
and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including, among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs of its customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the risk
limits in reliance on reliable and timely information from its information systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly reviews
and continues to make improvements to its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate best practices.
The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives. Off-
balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, also expose the Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the former NFRA's regulatory guidelines on the internal credit rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies, procedures, control and management, data collection and IT infrastructure. It is a
two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility credit ratings for estimated
loss given default when the customers become default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also established internal
guidelines and criteria for country rating, sovereign rating, regional rating and industry rating.



(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures
on the entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan
applications, credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-
lending monitoring and non-performing loan management. By applying
strict and standardized credit operational procedures, the Group strives
to strengthen its end-to-end credit management for pre-lending due
diligence, credit rating, review and approval, disbursement review
and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the mitigating
effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of non-
performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial
asset. Indicators that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or in part, include: (i) enforcement has
been completed; and (i) the Group has no other recovery alternative but
to foreclose and dispose of the collateral, and does not expect the value
of the collateral to fully cover the principal and interest of the financial
asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is
also exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and
it manages its risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully
screening counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and investment returns, adopting rating-based underwriting
by comprehensively considering the internal and external credit rating
information, and reviewing and adjusting credit limits in a timely manner
through limit management systems. In addition, the Group also provides
off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantee services to
customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of having to make
payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where the risk
approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts risk
control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk

(b) Collateral

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and
measures, including the requirement for collateral. The Group has
developed operational guidelines for the acceptability of specific assets
pledged as collateral and their capability to mitigate credit risk, and
regularly reviews the assessment results of the collateral.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as
toll collection rights, real estates, land use rights, equity securities, cash
deposits and equipment, collaterals held for financial assets other than
loans and advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the
financial instruments. Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for
asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally
secured by pools of financial assets. As at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023, the Group held no significant foreclosed assets.

(c) Credit ratings

The Group uses internal client credit ratings to reflect the probability of
default assessments of individual counterparties, and employs different
internal rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrower
information and specific information (e.g., the borrower’s revenue and the
industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into the rating models, and
also includes external data of the borrower as supplementary information.

In addition, the models also fully consider the expert judgements of credit
and risk management officers, thus enabling the credit ratings to capture
factors that may not have been considered by other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for
its debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI, as
well as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method
applied by the Group in assessing the expected credit loss of its financial
assets is a risk parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of
expected credit loss, the group assesses whether the credit risk of the
relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since the initial
recognition and uses a “three-Stage” model to measure the credit loss
allowance and ECL:

e e FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 169

Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
but it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument
in the next 12 months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall
have their credit loss allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the
expected credit loss of the financial instrument expected to arise over its
remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit
loss. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by customers and the corresponding loss). In assessing the
expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the
Group uses judgements, assumptions and estimates where appropriate,
including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk
("SICR");

- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios and management overlay adjustments;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis,
a grouping of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous.
In performing this grouping, the Group uses information such as the
type of borrower, industry, usage, and type of collateral to ensure the
reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and
whether a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group
recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss
for the next 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key
parameters of ECL measurement include probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes
its PD, LGD and EAD based on the internal rating system currently used
for risk management purpose. In accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative analyses of historical statistics
(such as counterparty ratings, guarantee methods and collateral types,
repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking information.

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to
the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract or other violations
of the debt contract that have a significant impact on the normal debt
repayment.

LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time
of default.
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The group uses an internal credit rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and
specific loan information collected at the time of a loan application are
incorporated into the rating model. The group regularly monitors and
reviews the assumptions associated with the calculation of expected
credit loss, including the probability of default and changes in value of the
collateral over each period.

In 2024, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology
or key assumptions.

SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition at
each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of
its financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable
and supportable criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been
a significant change in their credit risk. Key factors considered include
regulatory and operating environments, internal and external credit ratings,
solvency, viability as a going concern, terms of loan contracts, repayment
behaviors, among others. The Group compares the risk of default of
financial instruments on the reporting date against that on the initial
recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine
whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s
PD, changes in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided
that credit risk has significantly increased if contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. As of the report date, low credit risk financial instruments
with a high credit rating (internal rating above admittance threshold) are
deemed to have a low credit risk and no assessment is performed as
to whether the credit risk on the report date has significantly increased
compared with the initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment
occurs under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives. In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired,
the Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative
factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation
to interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more
than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in
corporate bonds due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granted the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise have provided;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios and management overlay adjustments

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking information.
Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the key
economic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various business
types, including macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect index and
Real estate index, etc. The impact of these economic indicators on the
PDs and LGDs varies from one type of business to another. The Group
comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and
statistical analyses to determine the relationships between these economic
indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group assesses and forecasts
these economic indicators at least on an annual basis, calculates the best
estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group
determines the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and
pessimistic scenario, as well as the corresponding macro-economic
forecast under each scenario. The group’'s multi-scenario economic
forecasts include the most likely base scenario and a number of possible
scenarios that reflect positive or negative trends in the economy. The
group assesses and determines the weighting of each scenario. The
weighting of base scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of
the rest scenarios. The Group uses the weighted 12-month ECL (Stage
1) or weighted lifetime ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure relevant
impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses are calculated
by multiplying the expected credit loss under each scenario by the
corresponding scenario weighting.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements reflect
the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes. In 2024, the Group
has taken into account different macroeconomic scenarios and made
forward-looking forecasts of macroeconomic indicators. Including: quarter-
on-quarter GDP growth, used to estimate ECL, ranges from 3.9% to 4.5%
in the benchmark scenario for 2025.

Assuming that the key economic indicator fluctuates by 10% either
upwards or downwards, the variation in ratio of the impairment provision
balance accrued by the Group as of 31 December 2024 will not exceed
5%.

Impact of scenario weights changes on the balance amounts

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis.
Assuming that the weight is optimistic scenario increases by 10% while
the weight of the base scenario decreases by 10%; or assuming that the
weight of the pessimistic scenario increases by 10% while the weight of
the base scenario decrease by 10%, the variation in impairment provision
balance accrued by the Group as 31 December 2024 would not exceed
5%.

For changes in the business definitions of certain parameters, the Group
has established a management overlay model to adjust credit risk loss
impairments for accurate risk assessment. The adjustment amount under
the management overlay model does not have a material impact on credit
risk loss impairments.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of
each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash
flows are discounted and aggregated to determine the present value of
the assets’ future cash flows.
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(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 71,880 98,364
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 119,558 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 477,735 544,247
Derivative financial assets 3,903 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements 598,960 477,525
Loans and advances to customers 14,688,772 14,244,743
Financial Investments 566,969 731,493
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 566,969 731,095
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) - 398
Debt instruments at amortized cost 537,881 700,985
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 973,602 1,167,521
Others 17,338 8,536
Subtotal 18,056,598 18,120,405
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 5,049,926 3,603,476
Letters of guarantee issued 2,731 3,347
Bank acceptance 3,402 1,623
Letters of credit issued 162 1,154
Subtotal 5,056,221 3,609,600
Total 23,112,819 21,730,005

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are
based on carrying amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision
Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2024 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (159) 159 - -
Transfers to Stage 1 251 (251) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (126) 126 -
Remeasurement (a) (3,289) (4,779) - (8,068)
Charge for the year 8,458 242 - 8,700
Mature or reverse (1,749) (3,949) - (5,698)
Foreign exchange differences (1) (6) - (7)
As at 31 December 2024 11,016 3,700 370 15,056
As at 1 January 2023 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (956) 956 - -
Transfers to Stage 1 2,763 (2,763) - -
Remeasurement (a) (1,946) 4,093 - 2,147

Charge for the year 2,841 - - 2,841

Mature or reverse (3,087) (5,197) - (8,284)
Foreign exchange differences 10 84 - 94

As at 31 December 2023 7,505 12,410 244 20,159

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs and LGDs; transfer among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decreases) of credit impairment in the period, and the
consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.
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(9) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk”.

- “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of
expected loss.

- “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.
“High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a
12-month expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit loss.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 13,384,681 = = 13,384,681
Medium Risk = 1,788,375 = 1,788,375
High Risk = = 205,123 205,123
Total 13,384,681 1,788,375 205,123 15,378,179
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (232,493) (350,334) (160,065) (742,892)
Net 13,152,188 1,438,041 45,058 14,635,287
AsastDeemberzos  seget  Saez  Sged Tl

Credit Grade

Low Risk 13,372,962 - - 13,372,962
Medium Risk - 1,325,842 - 1,325,842
High Risk - - 187,762 187,762
Total 13,372,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (238,554) (329,057) (128,634) (696,245)
Net 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 546,787 - - 546,787
Medium Risk - 26 - 26
High Risk - - 1,486 1,486
Total 546,787 26 1,486 548,299
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (9,061) (5) (1,352) (10,418)
Net 537,726 21 134 537,881

Credit Grade

Low Risk 710,920 - - 710,920
Medium Risk - 28 - 28
High Risk - - 1,670 1,670
Total 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (10,129) (6) (1,498) (11,633)
Net 700,791 22 172 700,985

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 973,600 - - 973,600
Medium Risk = = = =
High Risk - - 2 2
Total 973,600 = 2 973,602

Expected credit losses on assets (89) - (143) (232)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 17 17
Total 1,167,504 - 17 1,167,521
Expected credit losses on assets (236) - (1,326) (1,562)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 4,915,412 - - 4,915,412
Medium Risk - 140,294 - 140,294
High Risk - - 515 515
Total 4,915,412 140,294 515 5,056,221

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,489,940 - - 3,489,940

Medium Risk - 119,416 - 119,416

High Risk - - 244 244

Total 3,489,940 119,416 244 3,609,600
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 11,016 - - 11,016
Medium Risk - 3,700 - 3,700
High Risk - - 370 370
Total 11,016 3,700 370 15,086

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,505 - - 7,505
Medium Risk - 12,410 - 12,410
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 7,505 12,410 244 20,159

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession
of collateral to mitigate potential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential loss are shown
below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 205,123 (160,065) 45,058 57,503
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,486 (1,352) 134 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 2 (143) 2 -

Total 206,611 (161,560) 45,194 57,503
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Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 187,762 (128,634) 59,128 30,352
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,670 (1,498) 172 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 17 (1,326) 17 -
Total 189,449 (131,458) 59,317 30,352

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2024, the quality of the Group's

collateral or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers

The principal of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

Unsecured loans 293,487 1,761,055 2,857,357 4,911,899
Guaranteed loans 34,689 205,539 1,062,447 1,302,675
Loans secured by collateral 3,259 82,618 1,913,852 1,999,729
Pledged loans 6,979 25,034 7,152,043 7,184,056
Total 338,414 2,074,246 12,985,699 15,398,359

Unsecured loans 497,271 1,631,358 2,384,665 4,413,294
Guaranteed loans 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
Loans secured by collateral 12,327 71,083 1,866,124 1,949,534
Pledged loans 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7,280,732
Total 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502

Total loans and advances to customers by industry

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Loans and advances to customers

Transportation, warehousing and postal services 5,960,632 39 5,775,759 39
Urban renewal 2,442,665 16 2,640,962 18
Wa&izigggservaﬁon, environmental protection and public 1,692,064 11 1,578,132 11
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,692,537 10 1,662,222 10
Manufacturing industry 1,178,883 8 1,255,310 8
Realty business 899,175 6 434,631 3
Mining industry 481,687 3 549,892 4
Education 315,290 2 268,127 2
Financial industry 151,558 1 201,391 1
Others 683,868 4 648,076 4
Total 15,398,359 100 14,904,502 100
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The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities
include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December
2024, the Group's total restructured loans amounted to RMB379,134 million (31 December 2023: RMB261,770 million).

(i) Investment in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2024

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 82,346 - - - 1,039,643 - 1,121,989
Financial institutions 32,458 5,882 - - = = 38,340
Corporates 243,188 279 317 2 - 7,058 250,844
Asset-backed securities 289 - - - - 233 522
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 196,330 2,183 - - - - 198,513
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 2,596 2,596
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 3,970 3,970
Asset management plans - - - - - 3 3
Total 554,611 8,344 317 2 1,039,643 13,860 1,616,777

As at 31 December 2023

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
Financial institutions 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 - - 62,357
Corporates 330,701 1,053 8 192 - 2,605 334,559
Asset-backed securities 180 8 - - - - 188
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 467,873 - 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 3,743 3,743
Investments in trust plans and others 10 31 - - - 3,873 3,914
Asset management plans - - - - - 335 335
Total 936,982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065,884 10,556 2,055,940

(a) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
(b) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the People’s Bank of China (the

“PBC"), Huijin and Policy banks of China.

(c) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.
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() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties

31 December 2024

Balances with central banks 71,880 = = 71,880
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 119,558 - 119,558
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 477,735 - 477,735
Derivative financial assets - 3,903 - 3,903
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 598,848 112 598,960
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,711 100,241 465,017 566,969
Debt instruments at amortized cost 446,759 2,304 88,818 537,881
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 673,519 137,609 162,474 973,602
Other financial assets 3,938 1,237 12,163 17,338
Total 1,197,807 1,441,435 728,584 3,367,826

31 December 2023

Balances with central banks 98,364 - - 98,364
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 143,422 - 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 544,247 - 544,247
Derivative financial assets 439 3,130 - 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 477,456 69 477,525
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,122 174,616 554,755 731,493
Debt instruments at amortized cost 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167,521
Other financial assets 2,441 963 5132 8,536
Total 1,261,053 1,726,844 887,765 3,875,662
(3) Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of fluctuations in the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from changes in market prices including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group's major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in its trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to establish an effective market risk management system, which can fully identify, accurately measure,
continuously monitor and effectively control market risks in trading and non-trading businesses, and ensure that market risk exposures are controlled within an
acceptable range of the Group, and achieve a balance between risks and benefits.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and the Business Development Department within
the scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department is responsible for managing the market risk of the whole bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the treasury transaction business. The Business Development Department assumes the responsibility for the overall
asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical preparation of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to the banking book.

Market risk measurement and management approaches
Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book through exposure limit control, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit control.
The Group establishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors of market risk, business complexity and other factors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc.
The Business Development Department is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis and other methods.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer to Note 50(3)(a) interest rate risk and Note 50(3)(b) foreign exchange rate
risk (including trading book and banking book).
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(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk in the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBC. The PBC established
RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and market factors.
In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging
instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity

of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.

31 December 2024

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 71,880 - - - - 2 71,882
Dgpo;ltsl with banks and other financial 86,109 876 30,369 B B 2,204 119,558
institutions
Plgcemehts with banks and other financial 177,970 264,916 34,011 B B 838 477,735
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 3,903 3,903
Financial assets held under resale 598,472 373 B B B 115 598,960
agreements
Loans and advances to customers 8,274,789 3,850,713 1,185,832 212,832 670,519 494,087 14,688,772
Financial assets measured at fair value 9,496 72,551 3,433 78,864 4,203 571,127 739,694
through profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 9,496 72,651 3,433 78,864 4,223 571,127 739,694
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through B B B B B B B
profit or loss (Designated)
Debt instruments at amortized cost 11,920 110,641 325,222 84,028 150 5,920 537,881
Financial assets at fair value through other 151,747 127,785 276,318 227,245 181,517 18,848 983,460
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 156 618 - - - 16,564 17,338
Total financial assets 9,382,539 4,428,473 1,855,185 602,969 856,409 1,113,608 18,239,183
Financial liabilities:
Dgpo;lts. from banks and other financial 219,376 1751631 100 B B 5.372 1976479
institutions
Bgrroyvm.gs from governments and financial 235,600 334,526 31731 a a 4616 606,473
institutions
Placements from banks 15,965 2,192 893 120 478 59 19,707
Financial \|ab|\|lt\es measured at fair value a B B B a 2,883 2,883
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 9,291 9,291
Financial assets sold under repurchase 9,483 940 B B B 9 10,432
agreements
Due to customers 659,762 91,791 22,712 4,924 1,459 7,077 787,725
Debt securities issued 877,863 1,179,764 5,687,305 4,527,359 814,600 241,638 13,328,529
Other financial liabilities 239 98 427 78 - 19,969 20,811
Total financial liabilities 2,018,288 3,360,942 5,743,168 4,532,481 816,537 290,914 16,762,330
Net interest repricing gap 7,364,251 1,067,531 (3,887,983) (3,929,512) 39,872 822,694 1,476,853
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Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central banks 98,364 - - - - 2 98,366
De.zpo:.sltsl with banks and other financial 119,681 3113 12,886 _ _ 7.742 143,422
institutions
Plgcemems with banks and other financial 226,381 248,849 67,850 B _ 1167 544,047
institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 3,569 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements 476,884 400 - - - 241 477,525
Loans and advances to customers 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743
Flnanglal assets measured at fair value through 15.203 120,481 10.112 36,472 70,120 649,673 902,061
profit or loss
Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 15,203 120,300 9,912 36,472 70,120 649,656 901,663
fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through _ _
profit or loss (Designated) N 61 200 7 39
Debt instruments at amortized cost 12,607 234,774 444,585 131 - 8,888 700,985
Financial assetls alt fair value through other 399.236 155154 318,958 142,307 141,647 15.679 1.172.081
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 172 - - - - 8,364 8,536
Total financial assets 6,053,252 8,988,002 1,099,816 396,598 1,025,799 732,068 18,296,435
Financial liabilities:
Dgpo.snsl from banks and other financial 553,566 1944613 100 ~ _ 8,071 2,506,350
institutions
quroyvmgs from governments and financial 268,521 352,031 45,500 60 ~ 7839 673,951
institutions
Placements from banks 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
Financial I|ab|||lt|es measured at fair value B B B B _ 2621 2621
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 8,271 8,271
Financial assets sold under repurchase 15,461 1578 - _ _ 51 17.000
agreements
Due to customers 747,420 89,734 11,281 4,143 2,146 8,530 863,254
Debt securities issued 1,024,225 1,108,774 5,207,684 4,360,893 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Other financial liabilities 1,440 2 500 3 - 27,741 29,686
Total financial liabilities 2,636,158 3,512,036 5,266,516 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16,868,785
Net interest repricing gap 3,417,094 5,476,866 (4,166,700) (3,968,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on
the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount,
and does not reflect the potential impact of non-parallel yield curve movements.

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Increase 100 basis points 68,085 (36,360) 50,438 (85,660)
Decrease 100 basis points (68,085) 39,176 (50,438) 40,481

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVOCI
held at the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual
situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the
risk management activities to mitigate the interest rate risk.



(b) Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
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The Group’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (‘EUR”), Japanese Yen (‘UPY”) and, to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB depreciated by 0.1057 RMB/1 USD during the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: depreciated by 0.1181 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign

exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and

liabilities presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

Financial assets:

As at 31 December 2024

Cash and balances with central banks 70,084 1,798 - 1,798 71,882
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 67,401 35,445 16,712 52,157 119,558
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 364,558 106,181 6,996 113,177 477,735
Derivative financial assets 2,773 940 190 1,130 3,903
Financial assets held under resale agreements 598,960 - - - 598,960
Loans and advances to customers 14,002,706 538,128 147,938 686,066 14,688,772
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 710,180 28,846 668 29,514 739,694
o asatod st vae trosgh poftor e+ 710180 2846 o8 29514 738,604
Financial assets at fair value through profit or B B B - B
loss (Designated)
Debt instruments at amortized cost 452,467 85,414 - 85,414 537,881
F”lima‘r'ef;iiﬁie”ﬁgzﬁd at fair value through other 935,922 21,432 26,106 47,538 983,460
Others 14,582 2,530 226 2,756 17,338
Total financial assets 17,219,633 820,714 198,836 1,019,550 18,239,183
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,966,999 5,831 3,649 9,480 1,976,479
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 493,642 112,831 - 112,831 606,473
Placements from banks 9,131 9,114 1,462 10,576 19,707
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,881 2 - 2 2,883
Derivative financial liabilities 7,410 1,210 671 1,881 9,291
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 10,432 - - - 10,432
Due to customers 655,421 95,588 36,716 132,304 787,725
Debt securities issued 13,257,087 56,770 14,672 71,442 13,328,529
Others 14,451 6,212 148 6,360 20,811
Total financial liabilities 16,417,454 287,558 57,318 344,876 16,762,330
Net on-balance sheet position 802,179 533,156 141,518 674,674 1,476,853
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 194,035 (39,504) (69,763) (109,267) 84,768
Credit commitments 4,934,236 87,430 34,555 121,985 5,056,221
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As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 95,818 2,534 14 2,548 98,366
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
Derivative financial assets 2,358 1,075 136 121 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements 477,525 - - - 477,525
Loans and advances to customers 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244,743
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 875,009 26,773 279 27,052 902,061

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily

classified at fair value through profit or loss 674,611 2773 279 27,002 901,663
H,Z,;CS/Z ’;':Z(;s at fair value through profit or loss 298 B B B 208
Debt instruments at amortized cost 603,927 97,058 - 97,058 700,985
F”;?J”ﬂfg;’:;?ie”ﬁizﬁd atfair value through other 1,131,408 20,798 20,775 41573 1,172,981
Others 5,540 2,585 41 2,996 8,536
Total financial assets 17,039,486 1,022,630 234,319 1,256,949 18,296,435
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,503,915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 408,894 265,057 - 265,057 673,951
Placements from banks 18,746 13,453 11,066 24,519 43,265
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,620 1 - 1 2,621
Derivative financial liabilities 7,212 503 556 1,059 8,271
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 15,958 - 1,132 1,132 17,090
Due to customers 692,704 103,713 66,837 170,550 863,254
Debt securities issued 12,628,393 74,074 21,830 95,904 12,724,297
Others 22,327 6,843 516 7,359 29,686
Total financial liabilities 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 568,016 16,868,785
Net on-balance sheet position 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 225,654 (112,644) (73,589) (186,233) 39,421
Credit commitments 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax arising from 1% possible movement of RMB spot and forward foreign exchange rates against
a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities and derivative instruments in the statement of financial
position. There is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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As at 31 December As at 31 December

2024 2023

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax
1% appreciation 5,246 4,435
1% depreciation (5,246) (4,435)

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or loss due to possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are
adopted and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;
- the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of exchange rate movements.

—
=

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, it is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase its assets as
needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies to effectively mitigate liquidity risk. These policies and approaches include the forecasting
and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2024, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through the issuance of financial bonds. In accordance with the approval from the former NFRA, all
RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoy the same credit as policy financial bonds for a long time without a specific maturity date of debt credit, which enables
the Bank to continuously raise funds in the domestic markets by issuing new bonds.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposits, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, to fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It
is impracticable for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and different types. A
mismatched position might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

The Business Development Department and Treasury Department are the execution departments for detailed daily management. The Group’s liquidity
management processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance new
debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and not be
withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantee or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments
will either expire, be terminated or not meet requirements for drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group's funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence
and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues
fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to
redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31
December 2024, long-term (with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB11.37 trillion, and other long-term
debts (including deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements and due to customers) amounted to RMB156.91 billion.
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by
their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial
instruments by the Group may different from the table as below:

As at 31 December 2024

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

- - 71,647 235 - - - - - 71,882

Deposits with banks and other 1,338 82,243 4,113 867 452 32,684 - - 121,697
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other - - 121723 58901 267,753 34,781 - - 483,158
financial institutions

Financial assets held under 31 B 598,598 B 379 B B B 599,008
resale agreements

Loans and advances (o 38,057 - 60,142 327,345 1,172,730 4214673 3944937 12,957,917 22,715,801
customers

Financial assets measured at fair a4 og 407 2,203 7,509 84,263 32,445 233833 259,714 804,032
value through profit or loss

Debtinsiruments at amortized 764 - 466 16,063 125805 353,202 99,685 170 596,155

cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 9,860 - 68,130 89,465 144,863 326,208 256,503 200,919 1,095,948
comprehensive income

Other financial assets 1,507 12,414 159 674 314 1,802 539 - 17,409

Total non-derivative financial assets 235,215 166,711 855,769 500,824 1,796,559 4,995,795 4,535,497 13,418,720 26,505,090

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! I - 71,342 150,926 1,859 1,776,757 108 - - 2,000,992
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 16,024 142,317 329,195 103,898 19,132 1,444 612,010
and financial institutions

Placements from banks = = 8,451 7,640 2,242 972 116 493 19,914

F|n§n0|al liabilities measlured at B B B B B 2883 B B 2,883
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 8,702 793 948 a B B 10,443
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 594,478 24,976 46,062 93,335 25,019 5,835 1,879 791,584

Debt securities issued - - 282,630 321,323 1,504,019 7,026,826 5,143,564 1,153,130 15,431,492

Other financial liabilities 797 7,425 347 239 7,639 3,023 1,397 - 20,867

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 797 673,245 492,056 520,233 3,714,135 7,162,729 5,170,044 1,156,946 18,890,185

Net position 234,418 (506,534) 363,713 (19,409) (1.917,576) (2,166.934) (634,547) 12,261,774 7,614,905

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow = = 37 100 194 1 204 (102) 434
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow - - 31,910 37,447 256,121 9,082 - - 334,560

Total outflow - - (31,956) (37,459)  (264,729) (8,887) - - (343,031)

Total derivative cash flows - - 9) 88 (8,414) 196 204 (102) (8,037)
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Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central
banks

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets held under
resale agreements

Loans and advances to
customers

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized
cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets
Total non-derivative financial assets
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments
and financial institutions

Placements from banks

Financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Due to customers
Debt securities issued
Other financial liabilities

Total non-derivative financial
liabilities

Net position

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow

Derivatives settled on a gross
basis:

Total inflow
Total outflow

Total derivative cash flows

As at 31 December 2023

Past due/ On demand Within 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over Total
undated 1 month months months years years 10 years

- 98,167 199 - - - - - 98,366

928 105,054 13,504 4,190 3,178 18,418 - - 145,272

- - 104,300 125,791 252,532 69,379 - - 552,002

69 - 391,184 85,938 408 - - - 477,599

46,938 - 364,740 359,579 1,427,679 6,259,123 4,688,322 7,348,229 20,494,610

175,667 - 10,235 8,657 144125 142,980 171,530 267,015 920,209

1,670 - 407 15,869 165,347 509,016 133,740 - 826,049

5,474 - 328,585 72,023 174,624 373,379 174,346 175,046 1,303,477

301 6,296 25 4 166 1,063 708 - 8,600

231,047 209,517 1,213,179 672,088 2,168,059 7,373,358 5,168,646 7,790,290 24,826,184

- 74,283 29,843 454,880 1,995,050 108 - - 2,554,164

- - 29,283 187,539 361,528 105,291 7,824 - 691,465

- - 16,405 9,411 15,893 1,598 140 531 43,978

- - - - - 2,621 - - 2,621

- - 12,657 2,976 1,615 - - - 17,148

- 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,990 5,795 3,773 867,122

- - 368,684 454,448 1,370,054 6,571,124 4,979,937 1,161,856 14,906,103

7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,395 - 29,760

7 785,498 471,816 1,152,424 3,843,948 6,697,417 4,995,091 1,166,160 19,112,361

231,040 (575,981) 741,363 (480,336) (1,675,889) 675,941 173,555 6,624,130 5,713,823

- - (95) 69 29 207 62 45 317

- - 79,050 51,037 310,131 15,159 - - 455,377

- - (81,038) (51,278)  (316,259) (14,909) - - (463,484)

- - (2,083) (172) (6,099) 457 62 45 (7,790)
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Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity
date.

As at 31 December 2024

Loan commitments 3,722 9,168 114,407 1,622,384 244,766 3,055,479 5,049,926
Letters of guarantee issued 139 363 188 2,031 10 = 2,731
Bank acceptance 466 895 2,041 - - - 3,402
Letters of credit issued 49 10 103 - - - 162
Total 4,376 10,436 116,739 1,624,415 244,776 3,055,479 5,056,221

As at 31 December 2023

Loan commitments 33,329 1,555 73,898 210,450 243,284 3,040,960 3,603,476
Letters of guarantee issued 132 300 364 2,541 10 - 3,347
Bank acceptance 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
Letters of credit issued 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
Total 33,737 2,475 76,143 212,991 243,294 3,040,960 3,609,600

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for
a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market
data and relies as little as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants
could consider in setting a price, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of wealth
management business and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the wealth management business. Fair value of securities investments
denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives is calculated by
applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. All significant inputs for the fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are
observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies’ approach. The
fair value of these financial instruments is based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments,
including credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to
comparable companies and their performance indicators, etc.



(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:
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31 December 2024

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives = 2,923 = 2,923
— Interest rate derivatives - 980 - 980
Loans and advances to customers - - 53,485 53,485
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss
- Bonds 180 23,238 278 23,696
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 75,004 - 75,004
- Stock and funds 9,856 722 139 10,717
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - 3,003 - 3,003
— Equity investments 4,531 3,086 619,366 626,983
— Asset management plans - 291 - 291
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Bonds 4,457 847,573 2 852,032
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 121,570 - 121,570
- Equity investments 7,858 - 2,000 9,858
Total 26,882 1,078,390 675,270 1,780,542
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,883) (2,883)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (8,266) - (8,266)
— Interest rate derivatives - (1,025) - (1,025)
Total - (9,291) (2,883) (12,174)
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31 December 2023

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives - 2,288 - 2,288
- Interest rate derivatives - 1,281 - 1,281
Loans and advances to customers - - 54,422 54,422

Financial investment

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at
fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 430 53,014 434 53,878
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 117,890 - 117,890
- Stock and fund 12,539 720 35 13,294
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - 3,743 - 3,743
- Equity investments 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,537
- Asset management plans - 321 - 321

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 203 181 384

— Asset management plans - 14 - 14

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Bonds 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 373,146 - 373,146
- Equity investments 3,460 - 2,000 5,460
Total 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,621) (2,621)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (7,197) - (7,197)
- Interest rate derivatives - (1,074) - (1,074)
Total - (8,271) (2,621) (10,892)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

As at 1 January 2024 54,422 692,623 2,017 749,062
Disposals - (16,777) - (16,777)
Additions 3,856 25,274 = 29,130
Settlements (5,328) (81,813) (4) (87,145)
Transfer out from Level 3 = (128) (11) (139)
Total loss recognized in

- Profit or loss 535 413 - 948

- Other comprehensive income - 191 - 191
As at 31 December 2024 53,485 619,783 2,002 675,270

Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in

- Profit or loss 535 4,524 - 5,059

- Other comprehensive income - 191 - 191
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Financial assets

Financial assets
Loans and Financial assets at at fair value

advances to fair value through through other financial a::;fsl
customers profit or loss comprehensive
income
As at 1 January 2023 48,097 742,885 2,033 793,015
Disposals - (9,586) (12) (9,598)
Additions 8,277 14,362 - 22,639
Settlements (5,392) (63,449) - (68,841)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (8,437) - (8,437)
Total loss recognized in
— Profit or loss 3,440 16,606 - 20,046
— Other comprehensive income - 242 (4) 238
As at 31 December 2023 54,422 692,623 2,017 749,062
Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
— Profit or loss 3,440 6,093 - 9,633
— Other comprehensive income - 225 (4) 221

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables due in one year within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate
the fair value.

Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take
into consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rates which are based on PBC’s established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023

Debt securities issued 13,328,529 14,201,955 12,724,297 13,148,371

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group is used for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

51.

52.

to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and

to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established by the
Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the NFRA. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with the NFRA.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,993,984 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,654,135 million, total Core Tier 1 capital
RMB1,652,612 million, capital adequacy ratio 12.37%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 10.25%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 10.24%.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group has no subsequent events to be disclosed.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures in current year.
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